
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 152
School Board Meeting

Probstfield Center for Education Board Room 224
2410 14th Street South
Moorhead, Minnesota

 
December 11, 2017

7:00 PM

MISSION STATEMENT: To develop the maximum potential of every learner to thrive in
a changing world.

ATTENDANCE:

Mark Altenburg ___________ Scott Steffes __________

Cassidy Bjorklund ___________ Bill Tomhave __________ 

Melissa Burgard ___________ Matt Valan __________ 

Kara Gloe ___________ Brandon M. Lunak __________

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Call to Order and Roll Call

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Preview of Agenda - Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

D. Approval of Meeting Agenda

Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

E. We Are Proud

We Are Proud of the Moorhead High School girls cross country team for
placing first in the Section 8AA meet on Oct. 26 to win the section title for the
first time since 2012 and qualify for the state tournament. The team placed 15th at
the Class AA state championship on Nov. 4. Team members are Lexi Maddux,
Taylor Melton, Riley Polomny, Sofie Overturf, Mikayla Allen, Kate Ludwig,
Cassidy O'Meara, Ashley Buegel, and Malery Selberg. Head coach is Jeremy
Blake, and assistant coaches are Erik Hanson, Dan Dooher, Ira Bailey, Isaac
Lundberg, and Justin Gall.
 

We Are Proud of Moorhead High School boys cross country team members
Zach Johnson and Dawson Strom for qualifying for the 2017 Class AA state
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tournament. Cross country coaches are Jeremy Blake, Erik Hanson, Dan Dooher,
Ira Bailey, Isaac Lundberg and Justin Gall.

F. Matters Presented by Citizens/Other Communications (Non-Agenda Items)

(Citizens who wish to address a non-agenda item have the opportunity to speak
by raising their hand and being recognized by the School Board chair. Speakers
must state their name and will be limited to three minutes. Speakers must complete
the sign-up form, which outlines the public input process, and submit it to the
School Board secretary.)

2. CONSENT AGENDA

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine, and have been made
available to the School Board at least two (2) days prior to the meeting; the items will be
enacted by one resolution. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
School Board member so requests, in which event that item will be removed from this
agenda and considered under separate resolution. To the extent possible, School Board
member inquiries on consent agenda items are to be made directly to the district
administration prior to the time of the meeting.

A. SUPERINTENDENT - Dr. Lynne Kovash

(1) November 27, 2017 Meeting Minutes

B. FINANCE AND OPERATIONS - Brandon Lunak

(1) December Claims

(2) Donation

C. LEARNING AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Missy Eidsness

D. HUMAN RESOURCES - Kristin Dehmer

(1) Resignations

(2) Retirement

(3) Other Leave of Absence

(4) Change in Contract

(5) Family/Medical Leave

(6) New Employees

(7) Request for Additional Staffing

E. LEARNER SUPPORT SERVICES - Duane Borgeson

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
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3. MAJOR MAGNITUDE FIELD TRIP REQUEST - MOORHEAD HIGH

SCHOOL ORCHESTRA STUDENTS TO NEW YORK CITY: Missy

Eidsness

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Major Magnitude Field Trip request for
Moorhead High School students to travel to New York City, New York on March 4-9,
2019.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

4. OVERVIEW OF K-6 SPANISH IMMERSION PROGRAM: Missy Eidsness

5. FISCAL YEAR 2017 AUDIT REPORT: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to accept the fiscal year 2017 school district audit report
as presented by Eide Bailly LLP.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

6. CERTIFICATION OF FINAL 2017 PAYABLE 2018 PROPERTY TAX

LEVY: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the certification of the final 2017 Payable 2018
Property Tax Levy in the amount of $18,897,608.09.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

7. RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING COMBINED POLLING PLACES:

Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Resolution Establishing Combined Polling Places for Multiple Precincts

and Designating Hours During Which the Polling Places Will Remain Open for Voting for School District Elections

Not Held on the Day of a Statewide Election as presented.

 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

8. SUPERINTENDENT SEARCH PROCESS: Bill Tomhave

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve a proposal from the MSBA Executive Search
Service to assist in recruiting a superintendent for Moorhead Area Public Schools
beginning January 2018 for an estimated professional fee not to exceed $10,000.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
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Comments:
 

9. POLICY 731 MAPS ELECTRONIC NETWORK AND SYSTEMS

RESPONSIBLE USE AND SAFETY: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, MAPS Electronic Network and
Systems Responsible Use and Safety 731, as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

10. POLICY 610 ONLINE LEARNING OPTIONS: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Online Learning Options 610,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

11. POLICY 640 MAPS GRADUATION POLICY: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, MAPS Graduation Policy 640,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

12. POLICY 102 STATE AND FEDERAL LAW PROHIBITING

DISCRIMINATION: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, State and Federal Law Prohibiting
Discrimination 102, as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

13. POLICY 232 HEALTH INSURANCE COMMITTEE: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Health Insurance Committee 232,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

14. POLICY 303 RECORDS RETENTION: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Records Retention 303,
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as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

15. POLICY 201 SCHOOL BOARD LEGAL STATUS: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, School Board Legal Status 201,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

16. POLICY 216 OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL BY SCHOOL BOARD

MEMBERS: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Out-of-State Travel by School
Board Members 216 , as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

17. POLICY 221 SCHOOL BOARD POLICY DEVELOPMENT, ADOPTION

IMPLEMENTATION, AND REVIEW: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, School Board Policy
Development, Adoption, Implementation, and Review 221, as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

18. POLICY 233 POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Policy Review Committee 233,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

19. POLICY 236 ACTIVITIES ADVISORY COUNCIL: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Activities Advisory Council 236,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
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20. POLICY 239 PARENT ORGANIZATIONS/BOOSTER CLUBS: Brandon

Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Parent Organizations/ Booster
Clubs 239, as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

21. POLICY 301 SCHOOL DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION: Brandon Lunak

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, School District Administration 301,
as presented.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

22. COMMITTEE REPORTS

23. OTHER PERTINENT ITEMS TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD

24. ADJOURNMENT

CALENDAR OF EVENTS

 
School Board - December 11, 7 p.m., PCE

 

Robert Asp PTAC - December 12, 6:30 p.m., Media Center

 

S.G. Reinertsen PTAC - December 12, 6:30 p.m., Media Center

 

Moorhead High School Task Force - December 13, 5:30 p.m., Media Center

 

Instruction and Curriculum Advisory Committee - December 14, 7 a.m., PCE

 

Health/Safety/Wellness Committee - December 14, 9:30 a.m., PCE

 
Citizen Finance Advisory Committee - December 14. 6 p.m., PCE
 
Red River Area Learning Center Family Night/Parent-Teacher Conferences - December 14,
5:30-7:30 p.m., Vista Center for Education
 
Dorothy Dodds PTAC - December 14, 6:30 p.m., Media Center
 
Horizon Middle School Campus PTAC - December 19, 6:30 p.m., Horizon West Media
Center
 
Winter Break Begins - December 22
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E-12 Classes Resume - January 2
 
Joint Powers Committee - January 4, 7 a.m., PCE
 
District Health Insurance Committee - January 4, 4 p.m., PCE
 
Continuing Education Committee - January 5, 4 p.m., PCE
 
Indian Education Parent Committee - January 8, 6 p.m., PCE
 
School Board - January 8, 7 p.m., PCE
 
Moorhead Schools Legacy Foundation - January 9, 7 a.m., PCE
 
Ellen Hopkins PTAC - January 9, 6:30 p.m., Media Center
 
Robert Asp PTAC - January 9, 6:30 p.m., Media Center
 
S.G. Reinertsen PTAC - January 9, 6:30 p.m., Media Center
 
Dorothy Dodds PTAC - January 11, 6:30 p.m., Media Center
 
Policy Review Committee - January 15, 7 p.m., PCE
 
Horizon Middle School Campus PTAC - January 16, 6:30 p.m., Horizon East Media Center
 
Coffee with the Mayor and Superintendent - January 17, 10 a.m., Moorhead Center Mall
 
Instruction and Curriculum Advisory Committee - January 18, 7 a.m., PCE
 
Early Childhood Family Education Advisory Committee - January 18, 6:30 p.m., PCE
 
School Board - January 22, 7 p.m., PCE

 
Activities Advisory Council - January 23, 7:15 a.m., MHS Conf. Room
 
District Technology Committee - January 23, 3:45 p.m., PCE
 
Superintendent's Advisory Council - January 25. 7 p.m., PCE
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: November 27, 2017 Meeting Minutes 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.039C

 
Attached please find the November 27, 2017 meeting minutes for your review. 

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the November 27, 2017 meeting minutes as presented.

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

112717 Minutes Cover Memo
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REGULAR MEETING           
SCHOOL BOARD 
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 152 
PROBSTFIELD CENTER FOR EDUCATION 
NOVEMBER 27, 2017 
PAGE 1 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: Chair Tomhave called the meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m., requested board member roll call, and led everyone in attendance with the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

Members Present: Mark Altenburg, Cassidy Bjorklund, Melissa Burgard, Kara Gloe, Scott 
Steffes, Bill Tomhave, Matt Valan, and Brandon Lunak. 

Member Absent: Dr. Lynne A. Kovash. 

OATH OF OFFICE: Chair Tomhave led the Oath of Office Ceremony for Kara Gloe, who took 
her seat on the School Board.  

PREVIEW OF AGENDA: Acting Superintendent Brandon Lunak recommended approval of 
the agenda to proceed with a revision to page 1. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Bjorklund moved, seconded by Steffes, to approve the agenda as 
revised. Motion carried 7-0. 

WE ARE PROUD: We Are Proud of the Moorhead High School volleyball team for placing 
fourth in the 2017 Class 3A state tournament Nov. 10-12 at Xcel Energy Center in St. Paul. The 
Spuds beat Champlin Park in five sets to advance to the seminfinals before losing to Lakeville 
North and Prior Lake. Moorhead beat Willmar in five sets to win the Class 3A, Section 8 
championship on Nov. 4 to advance to the volleyball state tournament for the third consecutive 
year. The Spuds ended their season with a record of 22-11. 

Team members are Valerie Hernandez, Natalie Cook, Lexi Gilbertson, Callie Ahlgren, Claire 
Howell, Ayana Blythe, Megan Haugo, Alyssa Knain, Sam Zimmerman, Jalen Ennen, Kortney 
Carney, Mallory Lee, Brook Carney and Brooke Walthall. Head coach is Char Lien, assistant 
coaches are Anna Curley, Amy Bjerke, Amber Gunkel and Katy Braaten, and student managers 
are Andie Kassenborg and Kylie Francis. 

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS - The board approved the 2017 committee assignments as 
determined: 

DISTRICT-WIDE STANDING COMMITTEES: 
Steffes and Valan - Activities Advisory Council 
Burgard and Altenburg - Community Education Advisory Council 
Steffes and Altenburg - District Health Insurance Committee 
Bjorklund and Gloe - Instruction and Curriculum Advisory Committee (ICAC) 
Tomhave and Burgard - Policy Review Committee 
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ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEES: 
Not Required - Calendar Committee 
Tomhave and Bjorklund - Citizen Finance Advisory Committee 
Burgard and Steffes - Continuing Education Committee 
Gloe and Steffes, Alt. - District Technology Committee 
Burgard - Early Childhood Family Education Advisory Committee 
Bjorklund and Steffes - Health/Safety/Wellness Committee 
Gloe - Indian Education Parent Committee 
Valan - Minnesota State High School League 
Steffes - Sabbatical Leave Committee 
Valan and Altenburg - Safe and Healthy Learners Committee 
Valan - Special Education Parent Advisory Committee 
Bjorklund and Valan - Staff Development Committee  
Members Rotate - Superintendent’s Advisory Council (SAC) 
Bjorklund - Teacher Evaluation Committee 
Altenburg - Title I District Parent Advisory Committee 

COMMUNITY COMMITTEES: 
Tomhave (Steffes Alternate) - Clay County Joint Powers Collaborative Governance Board 
Tomhave and Steffes - Joint Powers Committee 
Valan and Altenburg, Alt. - Moorhead Schools Legacy Foundation 

ADOPT-A-SCHOOL: 
Tomhave - Dorothy Dodds Elementary 
Altenburg - Ellen Hopkins Elementary 
Burgard - Robert Asp Elementary 
Steffes - S.G. Reinertsen Elementary 
Bjorklund - Horizon Middle School 
Gloe - Moorhead High School  
Valan - Red River Area Learning Center 

SCHOOL BOARD COMMITTEES: 
Tomhave and Bjorklund - Executive Finance Committee 
Valan and Tomhave - MSBA Legislative Liaison 
Bjorklund and Gloe and Steffes, Alt. - Negotiations and Grievance Committee 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY CITIZENS/OTHER COMMUNICATIONS: (Citizens who 
wish to address a non-agenda item have the opportunity to speak by raising their hand and being 
recognized by the School Board chair. Speakers must state their name and will be limited to three 
minutes. Speakers must complete the sign-up form, which outlines the public input process, and 
submit it to the School Board secretary.) 
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Rachel Beck, Rachel’s Daycare, 1327 12th Ave. S. - Expressed concerns with younger students’ 
safety due to the district’s current 1-mile transportation policy and recommended adjusting it to a 
half- or a quarter-mile. 

Angie Dannewitz-Johnson, 3022 32nd Ave. S. - Noted the importance of transportation for 
Spanish Immersion students who live outside the Hopkins Elementary attendance area. 

CONSENT AGENDA: Burgard moved, seconded by Bjorklund, to approve the following items 
on the Consent Agenda: 

Minutes - Approve the November 13, 2017 Meeting Minutes as presented. 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Post Employment Benefit Valuation Reports 
Under GASB 73, 74 and 75 - Approve both the GASB statement 73 and the GASB statement 74 
and 75 for the valuation year beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 as presented. 

Change in Contracts 
Bahaa Kadhem - Night Custodian, Dorothy Dodds Elementary, .8 FTE to Night Custodian, 
Horizon Middle School West Campus, 1.0 FTE effective December 1, 2017 (additional hours per 
the 2017-2018 staffing plan). 

Resignations 
Mariah Hoeper - Food Service, Dorothy Dodds Elementary, effective November 13, 2017. 
Fadumo Jama - Food Service, Moorhead High School, effective October 6, 2017. 
Susan Geist - Food Service, Moorhead High School, effective November 9, 2017. 
Ron Halvorson - Custodian, Moorhead High School, effective November 17, 2017. 
Sarah Kluck - Bus Driver, District-wide, effective November 21, 2017. 
Jarrod Pahl - Hall Monitor, Moorhead High School, effective November 30, 2017. 

Family/Medical Leaves 
Galen Bare - Food Service, medical leave (non-FMLA) beginning October 18, 2017 for an 
 undetermined amount of time. 
Faye Smiley-Aakre - Teacher, Ellen Hopkins Elementary, medical leave (non-FMLA) beginning 
 October 30, 2017 for approximately two months. 
Michael Engelke - Custodian, Horizon Middle School East Campus, medical leave (FMLA) 
 beginning December 4, 2017 through approximately February 2, 2018. 
Mari Lourdes Shamdas - Teacher, Robert Asp Elementary, family medical leave (FMLA) 
 beginning December 4 2017 through January 19, 2018. 
Patricia Schmidt - Teacher, Horizon Middle School West Campus, medical leave (FMLA) 
 beginning December 11, 2017 through approximately February 2, 2018. 
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Candace Havey - Paraprofessional, Early Intervention Services, medical leave (non-FMLA) 
 beginning December 15, 2017 through January 1, 2018. 
Becky Wolford - Teacher, Robert Asp Elementary, medical leave (FMLA) beginning November 
 10, 2017 through approximately December 21, 2017. 
Kelly Iverson - Jump Start Teacher, Probstfield Center for Education, medical leave (non- 
 FMLA) beginning April 2, 2018 for the remainder of the school year. 

Other Leave 
Linda Pederson - Paraprofessional, Moorhead High School, beginning November 15, 2017 
through January 1, 2018. 

New Employees 
Tanya Steidl - Assistant Cook, Horizon Middle School East Campus, A13 (1) $16.50 per hour, 
 6.25 hours per day, effective November 7, 2017 (replaces Debra Ramsett). 
Kristine Thompson - Destination Imagination Coordinator, District-wide, .05 (8) $2579, effective 
 November 14, 2017 (replaces Lauri Johnson). 

Christopher Friese - AVID Tutor, Horizon Middle School East Campus, $12.00 per hour, 2 hours 
 per day, effective November 16, 2017 (new position). 
Darius Razi - Night Custodian, Horizon Middle School East Campus, A12 (0-3) $16.21 per hour, 
 8 hours per day, effective December 1, 2017 (replaces Robert Haugen). 
Dassiah Boyer - Night Custodian, Horizon Middle School West Campus, A12 (0-3) $16.21 per 
 hour, 8 hours per day, effective December 1, 2017 (new position per the 2017-18 staffing 
 plan). 
Luis Lopez - Night Custodian, Horizon Middle School West Campus, A12 (0-3) $16.21 per hour, 
 8 hours per day, effective December 1, 2017 (new position per the 2017-18 staffing plan). 

Motion carried 7-0. 

FISCAL YEAR 2017 AUDIT REPORT: Derek Flanagan, Eide Bailly LLP, presented the 
executive summary of the district’s audit report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. The 
report provides an overview of the district’s finances and demonstrates the district’s 
accountability for the money it receives and spends. 

The board reviewed the draft audit report and will be asked to accept the report at the December 
board meeting. Completion of the audit was delayed until approval of the GASB Post 
Employment Benefit Valuation Reports, which were approved earlier in the meeting. Total 
revenues budgeted were $74.4 million and actual revenue was $79.4 million with a difference of 
6.8 percent. For expenditures the district had budgeted $76.9 million. Actual expenditures were 
higher at $81.4 million for a difference of about negative 5.8 percent. The higher than usual 
variance from the budgeted amount was due in part to a nearly $2 million adjustment made to  
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both revenues and expenditures to record pension support received and expended from the state 
related to pension funding. The district’s unassigned fund balance is at 16.8 percent of general 
fund operating expenditures, which is just under the 17 percent minimum required according to 
School Board policy. 

TRANSPORTATION REVIEW AND EVALUATION: Brandon Lunak, acting superintendent, 
explained that in May he was tasked with a review of the district’s transportation system 
throughout the course of the 2017-18 school year. This is the first of two or three presentations 
that will come to the board. 

Dan Bacon, director of transportation and safety, provided information related to Minnesota 
Statutes 123B.86 and 123B.88, other Minnesota school district transportation policies, impact 
(schools, affected students, current routes, average load and additional routes) related to 
changing from 1 mile to .5 mile routes, and the cost of that change. The current minimum cost 
per contracted route is approximately $50,000. With a load of 45 students per bus the district 
would expect an annual cost increase of $850,000 to add transportation for students who live 
between .5 and 1 mile. If the district increased the target load to 60 students, the expected annual 
cost increase is $700,000. Any additional program changes would increase this cost to over $1 
million annually. 

Bacon said as programs are added or changed, there are frequently unforeseen and unaccounted 
impacts on transportation costs. The upfront cost of adding buses to the fleet are approximately 
$100,000 per bus. Buses last approximately 12 years before needing to be replaced. As buses are 
added to the fleet, additional storage space will increase, which will add construction costs. In 
the past 32 years the district has contemplated moving to a 2-mile radius due to budget 
constraints on at least three occasions including as recently as five years ago. 

Jonathan Atkins, City of Moorhead traffic engineer, provided information regarding the last three 
year’s standard practice of sidewalk infill, which is geared toward more walkability. He also 
provided information related to roadway safety and signs. Visibility and consistency of signing 
and pavement marking is important to public safety, especially where children need to get to 
school. Fluorescent yellow green signs are used at schools and libraries, and standard yellow are 
used in other places. 

Lt. Derek Swenson, Moorhead Police Department, provided information from a law enforcement 
perspective and offered to provide additional information if the board or district have specific 
concerns. 

Valan thanked Dan Bacon for his many years of service and expertise to the school district. 
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INTERIM SUPERINTENDENT: Chair Tomhave noted Brandon Lunak was appointed acting 
superintendent on September 11, 2017. Due to the early resignation of Dr. Lynne Kovash on 
November 30, 2017, the district is required to name an interim superintendent until such time as 
the School Board commences the search and hires a new superintendent. 

Tomhave recommended that Brandon Lunak be named the interim superintendent of Moorhead 
Area Public Schools effective December 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. Mr. Lunak will retain 
the benefits of the Administrator’s Master Agreement and will be compensated based on a pro-
rated annual amount of $154,715. 

Tomhave moved, seconded by Steffes, to approve Brandon Lunak as interim superintendent of 
Moorhead Area Public Schools effective December 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 or earlier if a 
permanent superintendent is able to assume the position. Motion carried 7-0. 

2016-17 WORLD'S BEST WORKFORCE REPORT SUMMARY: Missy Eidsness presented 
information regarding the 2016-17 World’s Best Workforce Report Summary and the Minnesota 
Department of Education’s Rubric for the 2016-17 World’s Best Workforce Report Summary. 
Information for this summary was compiled from the district’s World’s Best Workforce 2016-17 
Annual Report on Curriculum, Instruction and Student Achievement. The summary report 
addresses stakeholder engagement; goals and results; identified needs based on data; systems, 
strategies and support for students, teachers, principals and the district; and equitable access to 
excellent teachers.  

The district is required to submit the 2016-17 report summary to the Minnesota Department of 
Education by December 15, 2017. 

Steffes moved, seconded by Valan, to approve the 2016-17 World’s Best Workforce Report 
Summary and submit to Minnesota Department of Education before December 15, 2017. Motion 
carried 7-0. 

FIRST READING OF POLICIES: The board conducted a first reading of the policies, MAPS 
Electronic Network and Systems Responsible Use and Safety 731, Online Learning Options 610, 
MAPS Graduation Policy 640, State and Federal Law Prohibiting Discrimination 102, Health 
Insurance Committee 232, Records Retention 303, School Board Legal Status 201, Out of State 
Travel by School Board Members 216, School Board Policy Development, Adoption, 
Implementation, and Review 221, Policy Review Committee 233, Activities Advisory Council 
236, Parent Organizations/Booster Clubs 239, and School District Administration 301. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: Brief reports were heard related to the Robert Asp PTAC, Policy 
Review Committee, Moorhead Schools Legacy Foundation, District Staff Development 
Committee, Activities Advisory Council, Executive Finance Committee, Safe and Healthy 
Learners Committee, and Community Education Advisory Council meetings and the Moorhead 
High School play Aida, state volleyball semifinal game, and section girls swim meet. 14
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OTHER PERTINENT ITEMS TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD: Chair Tomhave 
requested board members to turn in the Lakes Country Service Cooperative Board of Directors 
election ballots to Michelle prior to the end of the month. 

ADJOURNMENT: Hearing no objections, the Chair adjourned the meeting at 9:26 p.m. 
  

         _________________________________ 
Matt Valan, Clerk 
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: December Claims 

  

Assistant

Superintendent of

Finance and Operations

Memo

OASFO.18.036C

 

The December claims are as follows:
 

General Fund    $1,482,771.61

Food Service Fund $172,857.87

Community Service Fund $36,702.68

Post Employment Irrevocable Trust Fund $7,700.00

Construction Fund                       $1,819,836.74

TOTAL: $3,519,868.90

 
The November wire payments are as follows:
 

General Fund                                $1,964,258.46

Post Employment Irrevocable Trust  $484.00

TOTAL: $1,964,742.46

 
Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the December claims, subject to audit, in the amount of

$3,519,868.90 and the November wire payments, subject to audit, in the amount of $1,964,742.46.

 
BML: dmb
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Donation 

  

Assistant

Superintendent of

Finance and Operations

Memo

OASFO.18.038C

 

Moorhead Area Public Schools has received the following donations:
 

Clay County Sheriff's Office has donated $362.00 to purchase winter clothing for students in need
this winter season.

 
Clay County Social Services has donated $345.00 to Food for Thought to cover snack break for
elementary students K-4.

 
Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the donation from the Clay County Sheriff's Office in the
amount of $362.00 and Clay County Social Services in the amount of $345.00.

 
BML:dmb
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Resignations 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.053C

 

The administration requests approval of resignations of the following people: 

 

Grisalda Cervantes 

Food and Nutrition Server, Dorothy Dodds Elementary, effective November 15, 2017.

 

Lorena Sanchez
Food and Nutrition Server, Dorothy Dodds Elementary, effective November 28, 2017.

 

Bahia Sarki

Lunchroom Supervisor/Crossing Guard, Dorothy Dodds Elementary, effective December 1, 2017.

 

Jessica Kvanvig 
Administrative Assistant, Community Education, effective December 13, 2017.

 

Michael Broadland 
Night Custodian, Horizon Middle School East Campus, effective December 15, 2017.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the resignations of Grisalda Cervantes, Lorena Sanchez, Bahia

Sarki, Jessica Kvanvig and Michael Broadland as presented.
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Retirement 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.055C

 

The administration requests approval of retirement for the following person: 

 

Michael Dahlberg 
Teacher on Leave of Absence, effective December 4, 2017.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the retirement of Michael Dahlberg as presented.

 
KLD:smw
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Other Leave of Absence 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.056C

 

The administration requests approval of the Other Leave of Absence for the following person: 

 

Shana Sharp
Sign Language Interpreter, Horizon East and West Campus/Moorhead High School, effective December

18, 2017 through June 6, 2018. 

 

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Other Leave of Absence for Shana Sharp as presented.

 
KLD:smw
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Change in Contract 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.057C

 

The administration requests approval of the Change in Contract for the following person: 

 

Deb Hannestad

Paraprofessional, Adult Basic Education, Vista Center for Education, 58.5 hours per month to 38.25

hours per month, effective January 1, 2018.

 

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Change in Contract for Deb Hannestad as presented. 

 
KLD:smw
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 12/5/2017

RE: Family/Medical Leave 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.059C

 

The administration requests approval of the Family/Medical Leave for the following people:

 

Jayde Schiltz
Paraprofessional, Horizon Middle School East Campus, medical leave (FMLA) beginning November

22, 2017 through December 11, 2017.

 

Lisa Seljevold
Teacher, Ellen Hopkins Elementary, medical leave (non-FMLA) effective November 28, 2017 through

June 6, 2018.

 

Abbra Olson
Paraprofessional, Horizon Middle School West Campus, medical leave (FMLA) beginning December

28, 2017 though January 19, 2018.

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the medical leave for Jayde Schiltz, Lisa Seljevold and Abbra

Olson as presented.

 
KLD:jal
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 11/30/2017

RE: New Employees 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.054C

 

The administration requests the approval of the following new employees subject to satisfactory
completion of federal, state and school statute and requirements:
 

Travis Schenck

Bus Driver, Transportation, $16.10 per hour, 5 hours per day, effective December 4, 2017. (Replaces
Joseph Larosier) 
 

Maria Tamez

Bus Assistant, Transportation, A12 (0) $14.63 per hour, 5 hours per day, effective December 4, 2017.
(Replaces Katrina Koesterman) 
 

Fatima Abdalla 

Paraprofessional, Horizon Middle School East Campus, 1.0 FTE, B21 (3) $17.01 per hour, 6.75 hours
per day, effective December 11, 2017.  (Replaces Alixandra Johnson) 
 
Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the employment of Travis Schenck, Maria Tamez and Fatima

Abdalla as presented.

 
KLD:smw
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Kristin Dehmer, Executive Director of Human Resources

 DATE: 12/5/2017

RE: Request for Additional Staffing 

  Human Resources

Memo HR.18.058C

 

The administration requests the following staffing additions to the priorities for staffing including class

sizes, equity and building support in schools:

Horizon West
Paraprofessional  +1.0 FTE

The addition of +1.0 FTE has been designated to assist during the art, music, and physical education

classes which have high student numbers to provide instructional support.

Early Intervention Services  +1.0 FTE

Early Childhood Special Education Teacher

The addition of +1.0 FTE has been designated to  provide case management and special education

service to students who qualify for preschool services.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve additional staffing for the 2017-18 school year for 1.0 FTE for

Paraprofessional staff at Horizon West and 1.0 FTE for Early Intervention Services as presented.

 
KLD:jal

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Horizon Middle School West Additional Staffing Proposal Backup Material

ECSE Additional Staffing Proposal Backup Material
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ADDITIONAL​ ​STAFFING​ ​PROPOSAL ​ ​FORM 
Budget​ ​Year: ​ ​____17-18________ 
 

 
Instructions: 

1. Must​ ​be​ ​complete ​ ​for ​ ​all​ ​positions ​ ​requested ​ ​after ​ ​the​ ​approval​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​annual​ ​staffing ​ ​plan. 
2. Make​ ​a​ ​copy ​ ​for ​ ​each ​ ​position ​ ​requested. 
3. Administrative ​ ​approval​ ​required.  
4. Approved ​ ​Proposals ​ ​will​ ​be​ ​presented ​ ​to ​ ​the​ ​School​ ​Board ​ ​for ​ ​review. 

 
Name​ ​of​ ​the​ ​Building Horizon​ ​Middle​ ​School​ ​West 

Topic​ ​of​ ​Proposal Additional​ ​general​ ​education​ ​paraprofessional 

Submitted ​ ​By: Carla​ ​Smith 

Date: 11-15-2017 

Date​ ​to​ ​be​ ​Implemented ASAP 

Person ​ ​Responsible​ ​to 
Recommend ​ ​to​ ​Superintendent: 

Carl​ ​Smith 

Recommendation ​ ​​ ​by​ ​person ​ ​responsible:  

 
District ​ ​Mission ​ ​Statement: ​ ​​ ​​To ​ ​develop ​ ​the ​ ​maximum​ ​potential​ ​of ​ ​every ​ ​learner ​ ​to ​ ​thrive ​ ​in ​ ​a 
changing​ ​world. 
 
Complete​ ​a​ ​description ​ ​of ​ ​your​ ​program ​ ​proposal.​ ​All​ ​six​ ​(6) ​ ​areas ​ ​must​ ​be​ ​addressed ​ ​and 
support​ ​the​ ​proposal.​ ​​ ​The​ ​proposal​ ​should ​ ​be​ ​as ​ ​comprehensive​ ​as ​ ​possible​ ​and ​ ​must​ ​support 
the​ ​district ​ ​philosophy. 
 

1. Describe​ ​the​ ​proposal​ ​for​ ​funding:​ ​We​ ​are​ ​requesting​ ​a​ ​general​ ​education 
paraprofessional​ ​to ​ ​assist​ ​during​ ​the​ ​art, ​ ​music,​ ​and ​ ​physical​ ​education ​ ​classes ​ ​that​ ​have 
student​ ​numbers ​ ​about​ ​30.​ ​There​ ​are​ ​23​ ​sections ​ ​that​ ​currently ​ ​have​ ​student​ ​numbers 
between ​ ​33​ ​and ​ ​39.​ ​The​ ​para​ ​would ​ ​work ​ ​to ​ ​be​ ​an ​ ​additional​ ​instructional​ ​support​ ​in ​ ​the 
large​ ​sections, ​ ​helping​ ​with ​ ​student​ ​management, ​ ​classroom ​ ​routines,​ ​materials ​ ​and ​ ​other 
assigned ​ ​duties.  

 
 

2. Explain ​ ​in ​ ​detail​ ​the​ ​rationale​ ​or​ ​purpose​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​proposal.​ ​(Please​ ​relate, ​ ​if ​ ​possible,​ ​the 
rationale​ ​to ​ ​the​ ​previously ​ ​identified ​ ​high ​ ​priority ​ ​needs):​ ​We​ ​are​ ​seeing​ ​a​ ​large​ ​number 
of ​ ​our​ ​office​ ​discipline​ ​referrals ​ ​coming ​ ​out​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​sections ​ ​where​ ​there​ ​are​ ​large​ ​student 
populations.​ ​Extra ​ ​adult​ ​support​ ​and ​ ​supervision ​ ​will​ ​provide​ ​consistent​ ​support​ ​for​ ​all 
students.  

 
 

3. State​ ​the​ ​negative​ ​implications ​ ​if ​ ​the​ ​proposal​ ​is ​ ​not​ ​approved.​ ​We​ ​will​ ​continue​ ​to ​ ​see 
office​ ​discipline​ ​referrals ​ ​and ​ ​disruption ​ ​to ​ ​instruction ​ ​due​ ​to ​ ​large​ ​class ​ ​sizes. 
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ADDITIONAL​ ​STAFFING​ ​PROPOSAL ​ ​FORM 
Budget​ ​Year: ​ ​____17-18________ 
 

 
 

4. List​ ​alternative​ ​actions ​ ​if ​ ​this ​ ​proposal​ ​is ​ ​not​ ​approved.​ ​It​ ​is ​ ​assumed ​ ​that​ ​any​ ​alternative 
listed ​ ​is ​ ​less ​ ​desirable​ ​than ​ ​the​ ​proposal.  

 
5. Estimate​ ​the​ ​cost ​ ​implications ​ ​of ​ ​this ​ ​proposal​ ​on ​ ​the​ ​following ​ ​chart: 

 
 
 

 
PROPOSAL ​ ​BUDGET 

PERSONNEL Number​ ​Requested Estimated ​ ​Cost Reimbursement Net​ ​Cost 

Paraprofessional: 1.​ ​0​ ​FTE    

Benefits:     

Subtotal:     

OTHER ​ ​COSTS NA Estimated ​ ​Cost Reimbursement Net​ ​Cost 

Supplies:     

Capital​ ​Outlay:     

Other​ ​Expenses:     

Subtotal:     

 

NET​ ​COST     

Code  

 
 

6.​ ​​ ​Comments ​ ​on ​ ​budgetary​ ​items: 
a. Equipment,​ ​remodeling,​ ​site 

improvement,​ ​etc:  
 

b. Review ​ ​by​ ​Business ​ ​Office​ ​before 
Superintendent’s ​ ​approval: 

 

c. Space​ ​implications ​ ​(short/long​ ​range):   

d. Equity​ ​implications:   

e. Technology​ ​implications:   
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ADDITIONAL​ ​STAFFING​ ​PROPOSAL ​ ​FORM 
Budget​ ​Year: ​ ​____17-18________ 
 

f. Suggested​ ​timelines ​ ​for​ ​implementations:  

g. Who​ ​has ​ ​been​ ​involved​ ​in​ ​this ​ ​decision? 
Other​ ​comments: 

 

 
Approve: ________ Disapprove: _________ Hold: __________ Date: ________________ 

 
Form​ ​must​ ​be​ ​routed ​ ​to ​ ​Human ​ ​Resources ​ ​and ​ ​the​ ​Finance​ ​and ​ ​Operations ​ ​for ​ ​review. 
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ADDITIONAL​ ​STAFFING​ ​PROPOSAL ​ ​FORM 
Budget​ ​Year: ​ ​2017-18 
 

 
Instructions: 

1. Must​ ​be​ ​complete ​ ​for ​ ​all​ ​positions ​ ​requested ​ ​after ​ ​the​ ​approval​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​annual​ ​staffing ​ ​plan. 
2. Make​ ​a​ ​copy ​ ​for ​ ​each ​ ​position ​ ​requested. 
3. Administrative ​ ​approval​ ​required.  
4. Approved ​ ​Proposals ​ ​will​ ​be​ ​presented ​ ​to ​ ​the​ ​School​ ​Board ​ ​for ​ ​review. 

 

 
Name​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​Building:​​ ​Probstfield ​ ​Center ​ ​for ​ ​Education ​ ​- ​ ​Early ​ ​Intervention ​ ​Services 

 

Topic​ ​of ​ ​Proposal: ​ ​​Early ​ ​Childhood ​ ​Special​ ​Education ​ ​Teacher  

Submitted ​ ​By:​ ​​Duane​ ​Borgeson, ​ ​Director ​ ​of ​ ​Learner ​ ​Support​ ​Services;  
Ashley ​ ​Nelson, ​ ​Early ​ ​Learning ​ ​Program​ ​Manager 

 

Date: ​​ ​11/29/17  

Date​ ​to ​ ​be​ ​Implemented: ​ ​​December ​ ​2017  

Person ​ ​Responsible​ ​to ​ ​Recommend ​ ​to ​ ​Superintendent:​ ​​Duane​ ​Borgeson  

Recommendation ​ ​by​ ​person ​ ​responsible:  

 
District ​ ​Mission ​ ​Statement: ​ ​​ ​​To ​ ​develop ​ ​the ​ ​maximum​ ​potential​ ​of ​ ​every ​ ​learner ​ ​to ​ ​thrive ​ ​in ​ ​a 
changing​ ​world. 
 
Complete​ ​a​ ​description ​ ​of ​ ​your​ ​program ​ ​proposal.​ ​All​ ​six​ ​(6) ​ ​areas ​ ​must​ ​be​ ​addressed ​ ​and 
support​ ​the​ ​proposal.​ ​​ ​The​ ​proposal​ ​should ​ ​be​ ​as ​ ​comprehensive​ ​as ​ ​possible​ ​and ​ ​must​ ​support 
the​ ​district ​ ​philosophy. 
 
Describe​ ​the​ ​proposal​ ​for​ ​funding:  
Propose​ ​to ​ ​add ​ ​1.0​ ​FTE​ ​Early ​ ​Childhood ​ ​Special​ ​Education ​ ​teacher ​ ​to ​ ​provide​ ​case ​ ​management  
and ​ ​special​ ​education ​ ​service​ ​to ​ ​students ​ ​who​ ​qualify ​ ​for ​ ​preschool​ ​services.  
 
 
Explain ​ ​in ​ ​detail​ ​the​ ​rationale​ ​or​ ​purpose​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​proposal.​ ​(Please​ ​relate, ​ ​if ​ ​possible,​ ​the​ ​rationale 
to ​ ​the​ ​previously ​ ​identified ​ ​high ​ ​priority ​ ​needs): 
Moorhead ​ ​Area​ ​Public​ ​School​ ​partners ​ ​with​ ​Lakes ​ ​and ​ ​Prairies ​ ​Community ​ ​Head​ ​Start​ ​preschool​ ​to 
provide​ ​special​ ​education ​ ​services ​ ​to ​ ​students ​ ​who​ ​have​ ​met​ ​met​ ​MN ​ ​eligibility ​ ​criteria. ​ ​Head​ ​Start​ ​has 
expanded ​ ​their ​ ​program​ ​to ​ ​include​ ​a​ ​second ​ ​location; ​ ​and ​ ​full​ ​day ​ ​programming. ​ ​As ​ ​a​ ​result, ​ ​student 
referrals ​ ​and ​ ​student​ ​eligibility ​ ​have​ ​increased. ​ ​The​ ​proposal​ ​is ​ ​to ​ ​address ​ ​the​ ​need ​ ​for ​ ​increased 
special​ ​education ​ ​service​ ​time​ ​as ​ ​a​ ​result​ ​of ​ ​the​ ​students ​ ​identified ​ ​on​ ​an ​ ​Individual​ ​Education ​ ​Plan 
(IEP).  
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ADDITIONAL​ ​STAFFING​ ​PROPOSAL ​ ​FORM 
Budget​ ​Year: ​ ​2017-18 
 

 
 
State​ ​the​ ​negative​ ​implications ​ ​if ​ ​the​ ​proposal​ ​is ​ ​not​ ​approved. 
Student​ ​IEP’s ​ ​will​ ​not​ ​be​ ​implemented ​ ​as ​ ​written, ​ ​and ​ ​services ​ ​may ​ ​be​ ​provided ​ ​in ​ ​a​ ​more​ ​restricted 
schedule​ ​or ​ ​setting ​ ​due​ ​to ​ ​increased ​ ​case ​ ​load ​ ​numbers. ​ ​Currently, ​ ​21​ ​students ​ ​at​ ​Head​ ​Start​ ​South​ ​are 
on​ ​an ​ ​active ​ ​IEP;​ ​with​ ​13​ ​students ​ ​at​ ​Head​ ​Start​ ​North.  
Transporting ​ ​students ​ ​from​ ​Head​ ​Start, ​ ​to ​ ​Probstfield, ​ ​was​ ​considered ​ ​to ​ ​provide​ ​services ​ ​outside​ ​of 
the​ ​Head​ ​Start​ ​setting;​ ​however ​ ​the​ ​student’s ​ ​time​ ​outside​ ​of ​ ​Head​ ​Start​ ​puts ​ ​them​ ​at​ ​risk​ ​of ​ ​losing 
their ​ ​placement ​ ​due​ ​to ​ ​federal​ ​requirements. 
 
 
4.​ ​List​ ​alternative​ ​actions ​ ​if ​ ​this ​ ​proposal​ ​is ​ ​not​ ​approved.​ ​It​ ​is ​ ​assumed ​ ​that​ ​any​ ​alternative 
listed ​ ​is ​ ​less ​ ​desirable​ ​than ​ ​the​ ​proposal. 
Special​ ​Education ​ ​staff ​ ​needing ​ ​to ​ ​be​ ​re-assigned ​ ​to ​ ​cover ​ ​student​ ​service​ ​time​ ​at​ ​Head​ ​Start;​ ​resulting 
in ​ ​a​ ​decrease​ ​of ​ ​service​ ​for ​ ​other ​ ​students.  
 
5.​ ​Estimate​ ​the​ ​cost ​ ​implications ​ ​of ​ ​this ​ ​proposal​ ​on ​ ​the​ ​following ​ ​chart: 

 
PROPOSAL ​ ​BUDGET 

PERSONNEL Number​ ​Requested Estimated ​ ​Cost Reimbursement Net​ ​Cost 

Teachers: 1.0 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 

Benefits:  $15,000 $7500 $7500 

Subtotal:  $65,000 $32,500 $32,500 

OTHER ​ ​COSTS NA Estimated ​ ​Cost Reimbursement Net​ ​Cost 

Supplies: Chromebook $450 $225 $225 

Capital​ ​Outlay:     

Other​ ​Expenses:     

Subtotal:     

 

NET​ ​COST     

Code  

 
 

6.​ ​​ ​Comments ​ ​on ​ ​budgetary​ ​items: 
a. Equipment,​ ​remodeling,​ ​site 

improvement,​ ​etc:  
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ADDITIONAL​ ​STAFFING​ ​PROPOSAL ​ ​FORM 
Budget​ ​Year: ​ ​2017-18 
 

b. Review ​ ​by​ ​Business ​ ​Office​ ​before 
Superintendent’s ​ ​approval: 

 

c. Space​ ​implications ​ ​(short/long​ ​range):  Will​ ​fit ​ ​in ​ ​existing ​ ​space 

d. Equity​ ​implications:   

e. Technology​ ​implications:   

f. Suggested​ ​timelines ​ ​for​ ​implementations: 1/1/2018 

g. Who​ ​has ​ ​been​ ​involved​ ​in​ ​this ​ ​decision? 
Other​ ​comments: 

Duane​ ​Borgeson,​ ​Ashley​ ​Nelson,​ ​Brandon ​ ​Lunak, 
COT 

 
Approve: ________ Disapprove: _________ Hold: __________ Date: ________________ 

 
Form​ ​must​ ​be​ ​routed ​ ​to ​ ​Human ​ ​Resources ​ ​and ​ ​the​ ​Finance​ ​and ​ ​Operations ​ ​for ​ ​review. 
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent of Finance and
Operations

 FROM: Missy Eidsness, Assistant Superintendent of Learning and Accountability

 DATE: 12/11/2017

RE: Major Magnitude Field Trip Request - Moorhead High School Orchestra Students to
New York City 

  

Assistant

Superintendent of

Learning and

Accountability

Memo ASLA18.19R

 

Attached please find information related to a proposed Major Magnitude Field Trip for Moorhead High
School orchestra students during the 2018-19 school year. The performing trip to New York City will be
Monday, March 4 through Saturday, March 9, 2019. The orchestras will perform a Moorhead Orchestra
Concert at Carnegie Hall. This trip is several days long and includes performances, clinic session,
rehearsals, a Broadway show, and visits to historical landmarks. Students will be funding the trip using
their own resources. The anticipated cost per person is $1,990, which covers transportation (anticipated
airline cost), hotel, admission to attractions, and many meals. Jon Larson and Anthony Eddleston,
Moorhead School orchestra teachers, will be in attendance at the Dec.12, 2017, School Board meeting to
present the request to the board.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Major Magnitude Field Trip request for Moorhead High
School students to travel to New York City, New York on March 4-9, 2019.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

 
MOE: tro

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

MMFT MHS Orchestra Florida Cover Memo
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 TO: Brandon Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 FROM: Missy Eidsness, Assistant Superintendent of Learning and Accountability

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Overview of K-6 Spanish Immersion Program 

  

Assistant

Superintendent of

Learning and

Accountability

Memo ASLA18.20

 

Jessica Rieniets, instructional and data coach, will provide an overview of Moorhead Area Public

Schools’ Spanish Immersion Program. In the fall of 2017, the district opened two new buildings and

reconfigured the elementary and middle school grade levels. This reconfiguration has provided the

opportunity to offer the Spanish Immersion Program to grade 6. Current enrollment in Spanish

Immersion is 357 students. This is the fourth year in row that kindergarten has begun with three sections

(Fall 2013 kindergarten started at 57 students; Fall 2017 kindergarten started at 70 students).

 
MOE: tro

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Spanish Immersion Update Cover Memo
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Spanish Immersion Update

Jessica Rieniets- SI Coach

Programming
● Moved to a K-6 program this year!
● Open to all students in Moorhead
● Transportation provided to Ellen Hopkins area K-4
● Transportation provided to Horizon West

Beyond SI…

● Advanced Spanish in grade 7 (1 quarter)
● Spanish 8 in place of Chinese (1 quarter)
● Traditional Spanish classes grades 9-12
● Middle School Spanish Club through Community Education
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Curriculum & Instruction
● Follow Minnesota Academic Standards
● Curriculum mirrors the curriculum used in English 

classroom
● Follow district assessment plan
● All Spanish instruction grades K-2
● English introduced in grades 3-4 (Word Study & some 

Writing projects)
● One English class in grades 5 & 6 (Social Studies)
● Multi-age classes in grades 5 & 6 

Celebrations
● Addition of grade 6 programming

○ Multiage class with grade 5 to maintain consistent programming
○ Spanish at all grade levels

● Addition of SI Academic Coach
○ Part-time position (other .5 District Data Coach)
○ Instructional Coaching for SI teachers
○ Helping design Literacy PD for district
○ Researching best practice for immersion classrooms
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Enrollment

43% (294) of students at Ellen Hopkins are enrolled in SI

6% (63) of students in Horizon West are enrolled in SI

Grade Sections Students

K 3 70

1 3 57

2 3 69

3 2 1/2 56

4 1 1/2 40

5/6 3 63

All 16 357

Demographics
District Spanish Immersion

American Indian/Alaskan Native 2.8% 1.7%

Asian 0.9% 1.7%

Black/African American 7.6% 5.3%

Hispanic/Latino 8.5% 7.6%

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 0.1% 0.3%

White 73.6% 96.9%

Free or Reduced Lunch 39.9% 16.8%

English Learner 7.2% 1.4%

Special Education Services 17.3% 9.2%
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MCA Scores
Test Spanish Immersion District State

Reading- 3rd 77.5% 48.0% 56.5%

Reading- 4th 84.6% 52.1% 56.8%

Reading- 5th 90.9% 67.3% 67.5%

TOTAL Reading 83.9% (3-5 only) 56.4% 60.1%

Math- 3rd 87.5% 61.0% 68.1%

Math- 4th 89.7% 63.8% 66.7%

Math- 5th 66.7% 43.2% 57.1%

TOTAL Math 82.1% (3-5 only) 52.9% 58.6%

Future Plans/Goals
● Continue to grow the program 

○ Continue trend of 3 (or more) sections per grade level
○ More accessible to all students
○ Match district demographics
○ K-12 plan- Strengthen Spanish in grades 7-12
○ Recruit highly-qualified teachers

● Intervention in Spanish
○ Trying out pull out in Spanish for one group in K
○ Trying out some EXCEL curriculum in Spanish

● Education of all district staff
○ Learn what Spanish Immersion is
○ Study research
○ Apply best practices in classroom instruction
○ Plan for struggling students
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Questions?
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Fiscal Year 2017 Audit Report  

  

Assistant

Superintendent of

Finance and Operations

Memo OASFO.18.39R

 
At the November 27, 2017 School Board meeting, a representative from Eide Bailly LLP, presented a

draft of the district's audit report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Attached please find the audit

and executive summary from Eide Bailly LLP.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to accept the fiscal year 2017 school district audit report as presented by

Eide Bailly LLP.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:dmb

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Exec Summary Cover Memo

Audit Cover Memo
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1 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Executive Summary 
Year ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
Purpose of the Executive Summary 
 
The District receives audited financial statements each year, however the document is long and users may find it 
difficult to read and understand. In an effort to help facilitate understanding we have put together an executive 
summary containing summarized information from the audited financial statements, as well as graphs and ratios. 
We believe the School Board, management, and citizens of the District will have a clearer picture of the financial 
condition of the District by reading this summary. This is not a required report and we offer no opinion on the 
executive summary. 
 
We hope this executive summary encourages discussion of the District’s financial condition and to: 
 

• Alert the School Board and management to financial condition trends, both favorable and unfavorable. 
• Put the District’s financial condition in perspective by compiling data for several years. 

 
We obtained the idea of an executive summary format based on a review of the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) of the City of Sioux Falls, South Dakota, done by the Internal Audit department of the City in 
May 2009. 
 
Audit Opinion 
 
The District received a “clean” audit opinion. What does that really mean? The audit opinion is a brief report that 
appears with the financial statements. A clean audit opinion is more precisely referred to as an unmodified 
opinion. An unmodified opinion means that the financial statements have been prepared using accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), do not contain material misstatements, and 
are fairly presented. 
 
Some readers of financial statements with an unmodified (clean) audit opinion believe that the auditors are 
signifying that the organization has a financial clean bill of health. They may believe the auditors are indicating 
that there is no fraud, that the organization is using its resources effectively and efficiently, and that the 
organization is in compliance with all laws and regulations. The auditor’s report (audit opinion) on a financial 
statement audit is merely the auditor’s professional opinion, based on audit work, on whether the financial 
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP and are free from material misstatement. 
 
Audit of Federal Funds 
 
All non-Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more of Federal awards in a year are required to obtain an annual 
audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act. A single audit is intended to provide a cost-effective audit in that 
one audit is conducted in lieu of multiple audits of individual programs. During 2017, the District expended 
approximately $5,336,000 in Federal awards. 
 
The District received an unmodified opinion on compliance for the major federal award programs report. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

General Education Aid/Cash and Investments 
June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017 
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Cash and investments is most significantly affected by the aid payment structure. Below is the cash and 
investment balances (in thousands) of the District for the past five years. 
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*The above amounts do not include cash and investments in the Building Construction Fund.
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget to Actual – General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Original Final Variance With
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues
State sources*** 61,359,216$    61,996,918$    67,142,931$    5,146,013$      
Local levies 7,935,098        8,067,835        7,653,211        (414,624)          
Federal sources 3,291,909        3,365,172        3,638,691        273,519           
Other 879,268           934,270           962,021           27,751             

73,465,491      74,364,195      79,396,854      5,032,659        

6.8%
Positive

Expenditures
Regular instruction*** 32,687,194      31,776,353      32,624,069      (847,716)          
Administration and district
  support services 4,777,075        4,777,256        4,572,062        205,194           
Special education instruction 16,217,740      17,144,860      17,827,344      (682,484)          
Instructional and
  pupil support services 9,976,790        10,352,755      10,389,276      (36,521)            
Sites and buildings 9,458,551        12,043,966      15,138,108      (3,094,142)       
Other 835,281           835,281           865,996           (30,715)            

73,952,631      76,930,471      81,416,855      (4,486,384)       

-5.8%
Negative

Revenues under Expenditures (487,140)          (2,566,276)       (2,020,001)       546,275           

Other Financing Sources 
Capital lease proceeds -                       -                       4,354,142        4,354,142        

Net Change in Fund Balance (487,140)$        (2,566,276)$     2,334,141        4,900,417$      

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 16,846,283      

Fund Balance, End of Year 19,180,424$    

 
***The revenues for state sources and the expenditures for regular instruction each contain an additional 
$1,995,590. These amounts in both revenues and expenditures represent a non-cash transaction to record the 
additional pension support received and expense related to the support received from the State of Minnesota (as a 
nonemployer contribution entity) for TRA and PERA special funding situations per GASB Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. This transaction 
has a net effect of zero and was not considered during the budget process because of the non-cash nature. 
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1Statewide Averages per Minnesota Department of Education’s Date Information 4 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

General Fund Revenues by Source 
Years Ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2017 

 
 
 District Actual Statewide Average1 
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2Statewide Averages per Minnesota Department of Education’s Date Information 5 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
General Fund Expenditures by Program 

Years Ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2017 

 
 
 District Actual Statewide Average2 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

General Fund Expenditures by Object 
Years Ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2017 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Changes in Fund Balances – General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Fund Balance Fund Balance
(Deficit) (Deficit)

Beginning of Net Change in End of 
 Year  Fund Balance  Year 

Nonspendable 85,913$           (25,310)$          60,603$           

Restricted for deferred maintenance 677,693           (677,693)          -                       

Restricted for health and safety (692,088)          275,719           (416,369)          

Restricted for operating capital 200,000           (26,445)            173,555           

Restricted for safe schools 195,202           (5,553)              189,649           

Restricted for staff development -                       60,775             60,775

Restricted for long-term facilities maintenance -                       704,196           704,196

Committed for severance obligation 1,200,000        -                       1,200,000        

Assigned for health insurance and affordable care act 500,000           -                       500,000           

Assigned for capital projects 3,000,000        -                       3,000,000        

Unassigned 11,679,563      2,028,452        13,708,015      

16,846,283$    2,334,141$      19,180,424$    

The General Fund is used to account for all revenue and expenditures of the school district not accounted for 
elsewhere. It is used to account for educational activities, district instructional and student support programs, 
expenditures for the superintendent, district administration, normal operations and maintenance, pupil 
transportation, capital expenditures, and legal school district expenditures not specifically designated to be 
accounted for in any other fund. 
 
Fund balance is the cumulative difference between fund assets and fund liabilities. Fund balance is further divided 
into nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned categories. Nonspendable fund balance 
represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as inventory and prepaid 
expenses. Restricted fund balance is legally restricted and cannot be appropriated for other spending. Committed 
fund balance is intended for a specific activity and imposed by formal action of the school board but is not legally 
restricted. Assigned fund balance is also intended for a specific activity by school board designated individuals, 
but is also not legally restricted. Unassigned fund balance can be thought of as reserves or a “rainy day” fund. 
 
A positive fund balance: 

• Contributes to a favorable bond rating 
• Produces investment income 
• Provides a source of working capital to meet cash flow needs 
• Offers a cushion for unexpected expenditures or revenue shortfalls 
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3 Fund Balance Guidelines for the General Fund, GFOA Best Practice, September 2015 
4 Statement of Position, Fund Balance for Local Governments, OSA recommended practice, February 2014 
5 ISD No. 152 Fund Balances Policy, approved June 27, 2011 8 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Changes in Fund Balances – General Fund (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends, at a minimum, that governments maintain 
unrestricted fund balance in their general fund of no less than two months (16.67 percent) of regular general fund 
operating expenditures.3 

 
The State of Minnesota Office of the State Auditor (OSA) recommends that at year-end local governments 
maintain an unrestricted fund balance in their general fund and special revenue funds of approximately 35 to 50 
percent of fund operating revenues or no less than five months of operating expenditures. Minnesota school 
districts experience a more reliable flow of cash to fund operations therefore, a recommended unrestricted fund 
balance for school districts may be less than the amounts recommended for other local governments.4 
 
The School Board will endeavor to maintain a minimum unassigned General Fund balance of at least 25% of the 
district’s General Fund operating budget, and not to fall below 17%.5 
 
The District’s unrestricted fund balance (committed, assigned, and unassigned) and unassigned fund balance as a 
percentage of expenditures in the General Fund for the last five years is as follows: 
 

21.4%

25.2%

20.3%

24.0%
22.6%

11.4%
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17.1% 16.8%

0.0%
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30.0%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Unrestricted Unassigned

 
 

Fund Balance as of June 30, 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Unrestricted 12,134,977$       15,104,305$       13,553,165$       16,379,563$       18,408,015$       
Unassigned 6,442,627           11,222,675         10,353,165         11,679,563         13,708,015          

 

The following are some fund balance amounts for various benchmarking levels: 

1 month of expenditures (8%) 6,784,738$         
2 months of expenditures (17%) 13,569,476         
3 months of expenditures (25%) 20,354,214         
4 months of expenditures (33%) 27,138,952         
5 months of expenditures (42%) 33,923,690         

Where would you like to be?
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Cost per ADM Served 
Years Ended June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2016 

 
 

Administration
Regular

Instruction

Special
Education
Instruction

Food Service
Community

Service

2014 Actual 702 4,210 2,467 476 248

2015 Actual 693 4,240 2,463 461 243

2016 Actual 702 4,154 2,551 497 224

2016 State Avg Similar Size -
Over 4,000 ADM

920 5,412 2,357 536 645

2016 State Avg 1,016 5,124 2,179 539 550

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
The School Board of 
Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Moorhead, Minnesota 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Independent School District No. 152, Moorhead Area 
Public Schools, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the District as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and 
the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
 
Implementation of GASB No. 73 and GASB No. 74 and No. 75 
As discussed in Notes 1 and 15 to the financial statements, the District has adopted the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets, GASB 
Statement No. 74 Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans and 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, which has resulted in a restatement of the net position as of July 1, 2016. Our opinions are not 
modified with respect to these matters. 
 
Prior Period Adjustment 
As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statement, the District determined that the construction in 
progress and capital assets for three building projects were inaccurately reported as of June 30, 2016 by 
$6,725,232. This resulted in a restatement of beginning of year construction in progress, buildings, and 
net position as of July 1, 2016. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the District’s net OPEB liability and related ratios, 
schedule of District OPEB contributions, schedule of employer’s share of net pension liability and 
schedule of employer’s contributions, and schedule of changes in supplemental benefits liability as listed 
in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as a whole. The School Board and Administration list, 
combining and individual fund schedules, and other supplementary information are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. 
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The combining and individual fund schedules, uniform accounting and reporting compliance table, 
schedule of changes of the student activity cash balances, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. In addition, in our opinion, the schedule of changes in student activity cash balances 
presents fairly the changes in the cash balances of the student activity funds for the year ended June 30, 
2017. 
 
The School Board and administration list has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated [DATE] on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
[DATE] 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
This section of Independent School District No. 152 – Moorhead Area Public Schools’ annual financial report 
presents our discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on 
June 30, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow 
this section. 
 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
Key financial highlights for the 2016-2017 fiscal year include the following: 
 

• General Fund 01 – The overall revenues were approximately $79.4 million while the overall expenditures 
were approximately $81.4 million. These, along with other financing sources of $4.3 million, increased the 
fund balance by approximately $2.3 million. 

 
• Food Service Fund 02 – The revenues were approximately $3.2 million and the expenditures were 

approximately $2.8 million increasing the fund balance by approximately $372,000. 
 

• Community Service Fund 04 – The revenues were approximately $1.9 million while the expenditures were 
approximately $1.7 million increasing the fund balance by approximately $191,000. 

 
• Building Construction Fund 06 – The revenues were approximately $564,000 and the expenditures were 

approximately $43.3 million decreasing fund balance by approximately $42.7 million.  
 

• Debt Service Fund 07 – The revenues were approximately $7.3 million and expenditures of approximately 
$7.0 million increasing fund balance by approximately $360,000.  

 
• OPEB Debt Service Fund 47 – The revenues were approximately $1.5 million and expenditures of 

approximately $1.5 million decreasing the fund balance by approximately $41,000. 
 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
District-Wide Statements 
 
The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to 
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District’s assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. All of the current year’s revenues and 
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.  
 
The two district-wide statements, report the District’s net position and how they have changed. Net position - the 
difference between the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources - is one way to measure the District’s financial health or position. 
 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position is an indicator of whether its financial 
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

 

65



Dr
aft

 

6 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

• To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as 
changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities. 

 
In the district-wide financial statement the District’s activities are shown in one category: 
 

• Governmental Activities – All of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular and special 
education, transportation, administration, food service, and community education. Property taxes and state 
aids finance most of these activities. 

 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds—focusing on its most 
significant or “major” funds—not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep 
track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs: 
 

• Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 
 

• The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (e.g., repaying its 
long-term debts) or to show that it is properly using revenues (e.g., federal grants). 

 
The District has three kinds of funds: 
 

• Governmental Funds – All of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which 
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and 
out and (2) the balances at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds 
statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because this 
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide 
additional information following the governmental funds statements that explains the relationship (or 
differences) between them. 
 

• Proprietary Fund – The District has a self-insured health plan designed as an internal service fund. The 
fund is used to record the premiums received, and claims paid related to the participants employed by the 
District’s governmental funds.  

 
• Fiduciary Funds – The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. The District is 

responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only by those to whom the assets 
belong. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole 
 
Net Position 
 
The District’s approximate combined net position was approximately $5,058,508 as of June 30, 2017. 
 

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Assets

Current assets 85,280,758$    124,868,651$  
Capital assets 135,167,864    93,274,210      

Total assets 220,448,622    218,142,861    
 

Deferred outflows of Resources 95,319,741      13,210,258      

Liabilities
Other liabilities 16,931,940      11,185,206      
Long-term liabilities 274,835,118    163,597,124    

Total liabilities 291,767,058    174,782,330    
 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 18,942,797      25,360,603      

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 23,404,273      (19,408,997)     
Restricted for specific purposes 33,821,586      75,575,229      
Unrestricted (52,167,351)     (24,956,046)     

Total net position 5,058,508$      31,210,186$    
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Revenues 

Program revenues
Charges for service 8,317,500$      7,664,781$      
Operating grants and contributions 5,983,029        5,358,441        

General
Property taxes 15,446,214      13,116,430      
Aids and payments from state and other 69,659,397      61,416,279      
Miscellaneous revenues 515,364           351,168           

Total revenues 99,921,504      87,907,099      
 

Expenses
Administration 3,079,011        2,893,723        
District support services 1,499,384        1,457,155        
Regular instruction 42,024,458      27,472,945      
Vocational instruction 667,976           674,022           
Special education instruction 17,794,268      16,247,246      
Community education and services 1,732,013        1,441,298        
Instructional support services 4,110,019        3,813,883        
Pupil support services 9,332,499        9,525,087        
Sites and buildings 8,910,606        5,596,922        
Fiscal and other fixed-cost programs 13,585,933      2,818,125        
Health self-insurance 5,325,861        5,231,845        

Total expenses 108,062,028    77,172,251      
 

Change in Net Position (8,140,524)       10,734,848      

Net Position - Beginning, as restated in 2017 13,199,032      20,475,338      

Net Position - Ending 5,058,508$      31,210,186$    
  

Changes in Net Position – The District’s total revenues were approximately $99.9 million for the year ended June 
30, 2017. Property taxes and state formula aid accounted for 85% of total revenue for the year. Another 15% came 
from other program revenues. 
 
The total cost of all programs and services was approximately $108.1 million. The District’s expenses are 
predominantly related to educating and caring for students. The purely administrative activities of the District 
accounted for just 4% of total costs. 
 
The total expenses exceeded revenues, reducing the net position by approximately $8.1 million for fiscal year 
2017. In 2017, there was a restatement described in Note 15. This restatement decreased net position by 
approximately $18 million.
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund includes the primary operations of the District in providing educational services to students 
from kindergarten through grade 12, including pupil transportation activities, buildings and grounds, and capital 
outlay projects.  
 
The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund Revenues.  
 

Year Ended June 30, Amount of Percent
Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Local property taxes 7,653,211$      7,078,894$      574,317$         8.1%
Other local sources 911,675           939,374           (27,699)            -2.9%
State sources 67,142,931      59,521,661      7,621,270        12.8%
Federal sources 3,638,691        3,326,878        311,813           9.4%
Miscellaneous 50,346             60,493             (10,147)            -16.8%

Total General
Fund revenues 79,396,854$    70,927,300$    8,469,554$      11.9%

Total General Fund revenue increased by approximately $8,470,000 or 11.9% from the previous year. Basic 
general education revenue is determined by a state per student funding formula and consists of an equalized mix 
of property tax and state aid revenue. The mix of property tax and state aid can change significantly from year to 
year without any net change on revenue. During the current year there was also an increase in state sources which 
was driven by a required entry under GASB statement No. 68 whereby the District had to record revenue from the 
State of Minnesota for special funding situations related to TRA and PERA in the amount of $1,995,590. The 
majority of the increase in revenue for 2017 was due primarily to an increase in enrollment and the increase in the 
local property taxes due to the issuance of school building bonds in 2016.  
 
The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures. 
 

Year Ended June 30, Amount of Percent
Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Salaries and benefits 58,543,180$    52,544,803$    5,998,377$      11.4%
Purchased services 9,316,074        9,404,474        (88,400)            -0.9%
Supplies and materials 2,443,002        2,136,656        306,346           14.3%
Capital expenditures 10,721,706      6,312,783        4,408,923        69.8%
Other expenditures 392,893           357,001           35,892             10.1%

Total General
Fund expenditures 81,416,855$    70,755,717$    10,661,138$    15.1%

Total General Fund expenditures increased by $10,661,000 or 15.1% from the previous year. The overall increase 
in the current fiscal year resulted from the increase in personnel and the purchase of the operation center building. 
The required entry under GSAB statement No. 68 also effected the salary and benefits grouping by $1,995,590 for 
expenses related to PERA and TRA. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The District’s general fund results when compared to the final budget are: 
 

• Actual revenues were approximately $5 million more than budget. The revenue in excess of budget resulted 
primarily from increased enrollment and the local property tax increases for bonds issued in fiscal year 
2016. Also, the GASB 68 entry for TRA and PERA increased revenues by approximately $2 million. 

 
• Actual expenditures were approximately $4.5 more than budget due to the timing of construction costs. 

Also, the GASB 68 entry for TRA and PERA increased expenditures by approximately $2 million. 
 
Building Construction Fund 
 
The Building Construction Fund revenues were approximately $564,000 and expenditures were approximately 
$43.3 million. Fund balance decreased by approximately $42.7 million as expenditures exceeded revenues. The 
decrease is a result of paying for the construction that was completed. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The Debt Service Fund revenues were approximately $7.3 million and expenditures were approximately  
$7.0 million, thereby increasing fund balance by approximately $360,000 as revenues exceeded expenditures. The 
increase is a result of being able to levying for 5% more than the bond payments. 
 
Other Non-Major Funds 
 
The Food Service Fund incurred an increase in the fund balance of approximately $372,000.  The increase is a 
result of more student meals served. The Community Service Fund incurred an increase in the fund balance of 
approximately 191,000. The increase is a result of the increase in the census. The OPEB Debt Service fund 
incurred current year expenditures in excess of revenues of approximately $41,000, decreasing fund balance. The 
decrease is a result of using the funds to pay the debt. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
 
By the end of 2017, the District had invested approximately $172 million in a broad range of capital assets, 
including school buildings, athletic facilities, school vehicles, and computer and audio-visual equipment. Total 
depreciation expense for the year was $2,431,737. Note 5 presents the detail of the District’s capital assets. 
 

Capital Assets Governmental Activities
June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Land 1,499,572$      1,499,572$      
Construction in progress 50,362,709      6,848,309        
Buildings 112,326,894    104,986,893    
Improvements 4,206,221        4,200,241        
Vehicles 2,024,928        2,024,928        
Equipment 1,725,980        1,666,165        
Accumulated Depreciation (36,978,440)     (34,677,130)     

Total capital assets 135,167,864$  86,548,978$    

Long-Term Debt 
 
At year end the District had $118,182,879 of long term debt consisting of bonded indebtedness of $106,225,297 
capital lease payable of $11,568,591, and vacation payable of $388,991. Note 8 presents the detail of the 
District’s long-term debt.  
 
The District has $152,222,623 in net pension liability at June 30, 2017. See Note 10 for further information.  
 
The District has $3,553,842 in net OPEB liability and $875,774 in pension-related benefits liability at June 30, 
2017. See Note 6 and 7 for further information. 
 
Factors Bearing on the District’s Future 
 
Minnesota school districts are paid based on pupil units served. Increases in enrollment this year over last year has 
given us increased revenue for operations. We are anticipating the school district’s enrollment to increase over the 
next couple of years.  
 
Contacting the District’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a 
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have any questions about this report or would like additional information, contact Brandon Lunak, 
Assistant Superintendent, at the District offices at 2410 14th Street South, Moorhead, MN 56560. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

 
 
Assets

Cash and investments  29,204,215$       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 35,156,821         
Receivables

Current property taxes  9,578,107           
Delinquent property taxes  143,713              
Accounts  14,848                
Due from other governmental units  11,094,642         

Prepaid items  63,074                
Inventory  25,338                

85,280,758         
Capital assets

Non-depreciable
Land 1,499,572           
Construction in progress 50,362,709         

Depreciable
Buildings 112,326,894       
Improvements 4,206,221           
Vehicles 2,024,928           
Equipment 1,725,980           
Less accumulated depreciation (36,978,440)       
Total capital assets, net of depreciation 135,167,864       

Total assets 220,448,622       

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension plans 95,319,741         

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 7,982,550           
Salaries payable 5,788,273           
Accrued interest payable 1,506,236           
Unearned revenue 992,318              
Claims incurred but not reported 662,563              
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year - bonds, capital leases, and vacation pay 6,806,279           
Due in more than one year - bonds, capital leases, and vacation pay 111,376,600       
Due in more than one year - pension-related retirement benefits 875,774
Due in more than one year - other postemployment benefits 3,553,842
Due in more than one year - net pension liability 152,222,623       

Total liabilities 291,767,058       

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 17,257,708         
Other postemployment benefits plan 247,206
Pension plans 1,437,883           

Total deferred inflows of resources 18,942,797         

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 23,404,273         
Restricted for specific purposes 33,821,586         
Unrestricted (52,167,351)       

Total net position 5,058,508$         
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Program Revenues Net (Expense)
Operating Revenue and

Charges for Grants and Changes in
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Net Position

Governmental activities
Administration 3,079,011$      -$                     -$                     (3,079,011)$     
District support services 1,499,384        -                       -                       (1,499,384)       
Regular instruction 42,024,458      153,296           1,584,892        (40,286,270)     
Vocational instruction 667,976           -                       -                       (667,976)          
Special education instruction 17,794,268      557,243           1,469,376        (15,767,649)     
Community education and services 1,732,013        384,026           85,260             (1,262,727)       
Instructional support services 4,110,019        -                       -                       (4,110,019)       
Pupil support services 9,332,499        1,188,461        2,279,860        (5,864,178)       
Sites and buildings 8,910,606        11,855             -                       (8,898,751)       
Fiscal and other fixed-cost programs 13,585,933      -                       -                       (13,585,933)     
Health self-insurance 5,325,861        6,022,619        563,641           1,260,399        

Total governmental activities 108,062,028$  8,317,500$      5,983,029$      (93,761,499)$   

General Revenues
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 9,115,238        
Property taxes, levied for community education and services 384,883           
Property taxes, levied for debt service 5,946,093        
Aids and payments from the state 69,525,054      
County apportionment 134,343           
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 6,208               
Miscellaneous revenues 509,156           

Total general revenues 85,620,975      

Changes in Net Position (8,140,524)       

Net Position - beginning, as restated (Note 15) 13,199,032      

Net Position - Ending 5,058,508$      
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2017 

 
 

 Other 
 Building  Governmental 

 General  Construction   Debt Service  Funds Totals

Assets
Cash and investments 19,503,135$    -$                     4,573,981$      3,142,626$      27,219,742$    
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                   35,156,821      -                       -                       35,156,821      
Receivables

Current property taxes 4,490,073        -                       3,960,494        1,127,540        9,578,107        
Delinquent property taxes 67,758             -                       60,537             15,418             143,713           
Accounts 14,848             -                       -                       -                       14,848             
Due from other governmental units 10,671,550      -                       154,885           268,207           11,094,642      

Prepaid items 60,603             -                       -                       2,471               63,074             
Inventories -                       -                       -                       25,338             25,338             

Total assets 34,807,967$    35,156,821$    8,749,897$      4,581,600$      83,296,285$    
 

Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,401,664$      6,560,875$      -$                     20,011$           7,982,550$      
Salaries payable 5,639,667        -                    -                    148,606        5,788,273        
Unearned revenue 141,852           -                       -                       80,545          222,397           

Total liabilities 7,183,183     6,560,875     -                    249,162        13,993,220   

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 8,444,360     -                    6,973,532     1,983,529     17,401,421      

Fund Balance
Nonspendable 60,603       -                       -                       27,809             88,412             
Restricted 1,128,175        28,595,946      1,776,365        2,321,100        33,821,586      
Committed 1,200,000        -                       -                       -                       1,200,000        
Assigned 3,500,000        -                       -                       -                       3,500,000        
Unassigned 13,291,646      -                       -                       -                       13,291,646      

Total fund balance 19,180,424      28,595,946      1,776,365        2,348,909        51,901,644      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, and fund balance 34,807,967$    35,156,821$    8,749,897$      4,581,600$      83,296,285$    
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 

 
 
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 51,901,644$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities
in the statement of net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not  financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 135,167,864    

Accrued interest payable for long-term liabilities are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. (1,506,236)       

Delinquent property taxes are not considered available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds. 143,713           

Vacation payable is not due and payable in the current period and therefore
is not reported as liabilities in the funds. (388,991)          

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB plans are 
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 93,634,652      

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of the self-insured
health insurance plan. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 551,989           

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, net pension liability, and capital lease 
payable, pension-related retirement benefits, other post-employement benefits, and
pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds. (274,446,127)   

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 5,058,508$       
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Governmental Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

 Other 
 Building  Governmental 

 General  Construction   Debt Service  Funds Totals

Revenues
Local property tax levies 7,653,211$        -$                       5,946,093$        1,521,499$      15,120,803$      
Other local and county sources 911,675             -                         -                         520,669           1,432,344          
State sources 67,142,931        -                         1,384,318          1,268,487        69,795,736        
Federal sources 3,638,691          -                         -                         1,847,826        5,486,517          
Sales and other conversion of assets -                         -                         -                         1,188,394        1,188,394          
Miscellaneous 50,346               563,641             -                         214,343           828,330             

Total revenues 79,396,854        563,641             7,330,411          6,561,218        93,852,124        

Expenditures
Administration 3,070,992          -                         -                         -                       3,070,992          
District support services 1,501,070          -                         -                         -                       1,501,070          
Regular instruction 32,624,069        -                         -                         -                       32,624,069        
Vocational instruction 667,976             -                         -                         -                       667,976             
Special education instruction 17,827,344        -                         -                         -                       17,827,344        
Community education and service -                         -                         -                         1,718,849        1,718,849          
Instructional support services 4,016,282          -                         -                         -                       4,016,282          
Pupil support services 6,372,994          -                         -                         2,828,801        9,201,795          
Sites and buildings 15,138,108        -                         -                         -                       15,138,108        
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 198,020             43,262,665        6,970,752          1,491,950        51,923,387        

Total expenditures 81,416,855        43,262,665        6,970,752          6,039,600        137,689,872      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,020,001)      (42,699,024)    359,659             521,618           (43,837,748)    

Other Financing Sources
Capital lease proceeds 4,354,142       -                         -                         -                       4,354,142          

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,334,141       (42,699,024)    359,659          521,618        (39,483,606)    

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 16,846,283  71,294,970  1,416,706    1,827,291  91,385,250  

Fund Balance, End of Year 19,180,424$      28,595,946$      1,776,365$        2,348,909$      51,901,644$      

 
 

76



Dr
aft

 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 17 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,  

and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (39,483,606)$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
exceeded depreciation expense and net disposals in the current period. 48,618,886      

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 11,143             

In the statement of activities compensated absences are measured by the amounts
earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for 
these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used. (31,459)            

In the statement of activities OPEB and Supplemental Benefit assets are measured by
the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used. (39,432)            

In the statement of activities the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as pension expense. In the governmental funds, however, (19,686,658)     
the contributions are reported as expense.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of principle of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transactions, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in
the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 1,773,844        

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of the self-insured
health insurance pool. The net revenue of the internal service fund is reported
in governmental activities. 696,758           

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (8,140,524)$     
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

General Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget to Actual 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Variance With
 Original Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Local property tax levies 7,935,098$      8,067,835$      7,653,211$      (414,624)$        
Other local and county sources 879,268           934,270           911,675           (22,595)            
State sources 61,359,216      61,996,918      67,142,931      5,146,013        
Federal sources 3,291,909        3,365,172        3,638,691        273,519           
Miscellaneous -                       -                       50,346             50,346             

Total revenues 73,465,491      74,364,195      79,396,854      5,032,659        

Expenditures
Administration 3,158,576        3,155,956        3,070,992        84,964             
District support services 1,618,499        1,621,300        1,501,070        120,230           
Regular instruction 32,687,194      31,776,353      32,624,069      (847,716)          
Vocational instruction 654,851           654,851           667,976           (13,125)            
Special education instruction 16,217,740      17,144,860      17,827,344      (682,484)          
Instructional support services 3,802,541        3,917,815        4,016,282        (98,467)            
Pupil support services 6,174,249        6,434,940        6,372,994        61,946             
Sites and buildings 9,458,551        12,043,966      15,138,108      (3,094,142)       
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 180,430           180,430           198,020           (17,590)            

Total expenditures 73,952,631      76,930,471      81,416,855      (4,486,384)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (487,140)       (2,566,276)    (2,020,001)    546,275        

Other Financing Sources
Capital lease proceeds -                    -                    4,354,142     4,354,142     

Net Change in Fund Balance (487,140)$        (2,566,276)$     2,334,141     4,900,417$      

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 16,846,283      

Fund Balance, End of Year 19,180,424$    
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

June 30, 2017 

 
 

Governmental
Activities -

Internal Service
Fund

Assets
Cash and investments 1,984,473$      

Liabilities and Net Position
Liabilities

Claims incurred but not reported 662,563           
Unearned revenue 769,921           

Total liabilities 1,432,484        

Net position
Unrestricted 551,989$         
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Statement of Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Governmental
Activities -

Internal Service
Fund

Revenues
Health revenue 6,022,619$      

Expenses
Health claims 5,092,928        
Admin fees 232,933           

Total expenses 5,325,861        

Change in Net Position 696,758           

Net Position, Beginning of Year (144,769)          

Net Position, End of Year 551,989$         
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Governmental
Activities -

Internal Service
Fund

Operating Activities
Receipts from participants 6,022,619$      
Payments for insurance claims and administration (5,154,840)       

Net cash from operating activities 867,779           

Cash and Investments, July 1 1,116,694        

Cash and Investments, June 30 1,984,473$      
 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash from Operating Activities

Operating income 696,758$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash from operating activities
Changes in assets and liabilities

Claims incurred but not reported 72,098             
Unearned revenue 98,923             

Net cash from operating activities 867,779$         
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Fiduciary Fund 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 

 
 

Agency Trust Funds

Assets
Cash and investments 379,880$         4,844,973$      

Liabilities and Net Position
Liabilities

Due to other organizations 379,880           -                       

Net position
Unrestricted -$                     4,844,973$      
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Fiduciary Fund 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Trust Funds

Additions
Interest 548,843$         
Scholarships 5                      

Total additions 548,848           

Deductions
OPEB health insurance 723,496           

Net Change in Net Position (174,648)          

Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,019,621        

Net Position, End of Year 4,844,973$      
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

 
 

Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A. Organization 
 
Independent School District No. 152, Moorhead Area Public Schools, Moorhead, Minnesota (the District) was 
formed and operates pursuant to applicable Minnesota laws and statutes. The District is governed by a School 
Board elected by voters of the District. The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 
 
B. Reporting Entity 
 
The accompanying financial statements include all funds, departments, agencies, boards, commissions, and other 
organizations that comprise the District, along with any component units. 
 
Component units are legally separate entities for which the District (primary government) is financially 
accountable, or for which the exclusion of the component unit would render the financial statements of the 
primary government misleading. The criteria used to determine if the primary government is financially 
accountable for a component unit include whether or not the primary government appoints the voting majority of 
the potential component unit’s governing body, is able to impose its will on the potential component unit, is in a 
relationship of financial burden or benefit with the potential component unit, or is fiscally depended upon by the 
potential component unit. 
 
Based on these criteria, there are no organizations considered to be component units of the District. 
 
Extracurricular student activities are determined primarily by student participants under the guidance of an adult 
and are generally conducted outside of school hours. In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the District’s School 
Board has elected not to control or be otherwise financially accountable with respect to the underlying 
extracurricular activities. Accordingly, the extracurricular student activity accounts are included in these financial 
statements as an agency fund. 
 
C. Government-Wide Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) display 
information about the reporting government as a whole. These statements include all the financial activities of the 
District, except for the fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net 
Position at the fund financial statement level. Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from 
the government-wide financial statements. 
 
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other 
internally directed revenues are reported as general revenues. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are generally recognized as revenues in 
the fiscal year for which they are levied, except for amounts advance recognized in accordance with a statutory 
“tax shift” described later in these notes. Grants and similar items are recognized when all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available. For capital assets that can be specifically identified with, or allocated to 
functional areas, depreciation expense is included as a direct expense in the functional areas that utilize the related 
capital assets. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the 
Statement of Activities. 
 
D. Fund Financial Statement Presentation 
 
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
Aggregated information for the remaining nonmajor governmental funds is reported in a single column in the 
fund financial statements. 
 
Fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type: pension (or other benefit) trust, 
private-purpose trust, and agency. Since, by definition, fiduciary fund assets are being held for the benefit of a 
third party and cannot be used for activities or obligations of the District, these funds are excluded from the 
government-wide statements. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting transactions are recorded in the following 
manner: 
 

1. Revenue Recognition – Revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and available. “Measurable” 
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this 
purpose, the District generally considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after 
year-end. Grants and similar items are recognized when all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. State revenue is recognized in the year to which it applies according to 
Minnesota Statutes. Federal revenue is recorded in the year in which the related expenditure is made. 
Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

 
2. Recording of Expenditures – Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, except for 

principal and interest on long-term debt, severance and healthcare benefits, and compensated absences, 
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are 
included within the applicable functional areas. 

 
Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting as described earlier in these notes. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the District’s internal service 
fund is receipts from participants. Operating expenses for the internal service fund includes payments for 
insurance claims and administration. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Description of Funds 
 
The existence of the various district funds has been established by the Minnesota Department of Education. Each 
fund is accounted for as an independent entity. A description of the funds included in this report are as follows: 
 
Major Governmental Funds 
 

• General Fund – The general fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. It includes the general operations and pupil transportation activities of the 
District, as well as the capital related activities such as maintenance of facilities, equipment purchases, and 
health and safety projects. 
 

• Building Construction Fund – The building construction fund is used to account for construction projects 
within the District. 

 
• Debt Service Fund – The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 

payment of, general obligation bond principal, interest, and related costs. 
 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 

• Food Service Fund – The food service fund is used to account for food service revenues and expenditures. 
 

• Community Service Fund – The community service fund is used to account for services provided to 
residents in the areas of recreation, civic activities, nonpublic pupils, adult or early childhood programs, 
extended day programs, or other similar services. 

 
• OPEB Debt Service Fund – The OPEB debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of 

resources for, and payment of, general obligation OPEB bond principal, interest, and related costs. 
 
Proprietary Fund 
 

• Internal Service Fund – The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the activities of the District’s self-
insured health plan. 

 
Fiduciary Funds 
 

• Scholarship Trust Fund – The scholarship fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the 
extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the donor imposed 
restrictions. 
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• OPEB Trust Fund – The Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) trust fund is used to account for the 
accumulation of resources to be used for the District’s portion of the premium cost for providing health 
insurance to the District’s retired employees. 
 

• Agency Fund – The agency fund is used to account for the extracurricular student activities, not under board 
control. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurements of 
results of operations.  

 
With respect to proprietary activities, the District has adopted GASB Statement No. 62 “Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements.” 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include the following: amounts received from those who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from a program; amounts received from parties outside the District that are restricted to one or 
more specific programs; and earnings on investments that are legally restricted for a specific program. Revenues 
that do not meet the previous criteria are reported as general revenues. 
 
Proprietary funds report operating revenues and expenses separately from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District’s proprietary 
fund are charges to participants for health insurance plans. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the 
cost of health insurance and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
E. Other Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Budgeting 
 
An operating budget is adopted by July 1 of each fiscal year for all governmental funds on the same modified 
accrual basis used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures. The superintendent is authorized to transfer budget 
amounts within line items; however, supplemental appropriations that amend total appropriations of any fund 
require a board resolution. Reported budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by board 
resolution. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
Cash balances for all district funds are pooled and invested to the extent possible. Interest earned from such 
investments is allocated to each of the funds based on the fund's average monthly cash and investments balance. 
Funds that incur a deficit balance in pooled cash and investments during the year are charged interest. 
 
Deposits and investments consist of certificates of deposit and monies deposited with the Minnesota School 
District Liquid Asset Fund (MSDLAF) and are stated at market. 
 
Restricted Cash  
 
In the General Fund, the capital lease proceeds are used to fund expenses related to ongoing construction projects 
in the Building Construction Fund. These funds will be held as restricted cash until they are used for the 
completion of these restricted construction projects. 
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Receivables 
 
All receivables are shown net of any allowance for uncollectibles. No allowances for uncollectibles have been 
recorded. The only receivables not expected to be collected within one year are property taxes receivable. 
 
Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items. Prepaid items are reported using the consumption method and recorded as an expense or expenditure at the 
time of consumption. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories are recorded using the consumption method of accounting and consist of purchased food, supplies, 
and surplus commodities received from the federal government. Food and supply purchases are recorded at 
invoice cost, computed on a first-in, first-out method. Surplus commodities are stated at standardized costs, as 
determined by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. 
 
Property Taxes 
 
The majority of district revenue is determined annually by statutory funding formulas. The total revenue allowed 
by these formulas is allocated between property taxes and state aids by the Legislature based on education funding 
priorities. 
 
Generally, property taxes are recognized as revenue by the District in the fiscal year that begins midway through 
the calendar year in which the tax levy is collectible. To help balance the state budget, the Minnesota Legislature 
utilizes a tool referred to as the “tax shift,” which periodically changes the District’s recognition of property tax 
revenue. The tax shift advance recognizes cash collected for the subsequent year’s levy as current year revenue, 
allowing the state to reduce the amount of aid paid to the District. The remaining portion of the taxes collectible in 
2016 is recorded as deferred inflows of resources (property taxes levied for subsequent years).  
 
Property tax levies are certified to the County Auditor in December of each year for collection from taxpayers in 
May and October of the following calendar year. In Minnesota, counties act as collection agents for all property 
taxes. The county spreads all levies over taxable property. Such taxes become a lien on property on the following 
January 1. The county general remits taxes to the District at periodic intervals as they are collected. A portion of 
the property taxes levied is paid by the State of Minnesota through various tax credits, which are included in 
revenue from state sources in the financial statements. 
 
Taxes which remain unpaid are classified as delinquent taxes receivable. Revenue from these delinquent property 
taxes that is not collected within 60 days of year-end is deferred in the fund financial statements because it is not 
known to be available to finance the operations of the District in the current year. No allowance for uncollectible 
taxes is considered necessary. 
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Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated historical cost for assets where actual historic cost is 
not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. The District maintains a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. The cost of 
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized. 
 
Capital assets are recorded in the government-wide financial statements, but are not reported in the fund financial 
statements. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Since 
surplus assets are sold for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for public school purposes by 
the District, no salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. Useful lives vary from 3 to 50 
years. 
 
Capital assets not being depreciated include land and construction in progress. 
 
The District does not possess any material amounts of infrastructure capital assets. Items such as sidewalks and 
other land improvements are considered to be part of the cost of buildings or other improvable property. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts, if material, are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures and expensed when incurred. 
 
Vacation Payable 
 
The District compensates substantially all full-time noncertified employees for unused vacation upon termination; 
however, no employee is allowed to accumulate more than a one-year vacation allowance. The expenditure for 
vacation pay is recognized when payment is made. As of June 30, 2017, this amount did not exceed a normal 
year’s accumulation. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
The District receives donations from several organizations and the amount that is not spent in the fiscal year is 
reported as unearned revenue. The donations will be spent in the subsequent fiscal year for miscellaneous projects 
throughout the District. 
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Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and the 
Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) and additions to/deductions from PERA’s and TRA’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA and TRA.  
 
TRA has a special funding situation created by direct aid contributions made by the State of Minnesota, City of 
Minneapolis and Minneapolis School District. The direct aid is a result of the Minneapolis Teachers Retirement 
Fund Association merger into TRA in 2006. A second direct aid source is from the State of Minnesota for the 
merger of the Duluth Teacher’s Retirement Fund Association (DTRFA) in 2015. Additional information can be 
found in Note 10. 
 
For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
They are the contributions made to pension plans after the measurement date and prior to the fiscal year-end, and 
changes in the net pension liability not included in pension expense reported in the government-wide statement of 
net position. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. The District has two types of items that qualify for reporting in this category. The 
District reports unavailable revenues from property taxes on the government-wide statement of net position and 
the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available. The other item are changes in the net other post-employment benefits 
liability and net position liability not included in OPEB and pension expense reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position. 
 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
 
For purposes of measure the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s OPEB Plan and 
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and 
participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, 
which are reported at cost. 
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Implementation of GASB Statement No. 73, GASB Statement No. 74, and GASB Statement No. 75 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Related Assets That are not within the Scope of GASB 68, GASB Statement No. 74, Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, and GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The implementation of 
these standards improves the usefulness of information about and improves accounting and financial reporting for 
postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). The effect of the 
implementation of these standards on net position is disclosed in Note 15 and the additional disclosures required 
by these standards are included in Note 6 and 7. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; natural disasters; and workers’ compensation for which the District carries commercial insurance. 
Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There were no 
significant reductions in the District’s insurance coverage in fiscal year 2017. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position represents the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources in the District’s financial statements. Net investment in capital assets consists of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any long-term debt 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position consists of 
restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Unrestricted net 
position is the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 
that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net 
position. 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The following classifications describe the relative strength of spending constraints: 
 

• Nonspendable fund balance amounts are comprised of funds that cannot be spent because they are either not 
in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. They include items that 
are inherently unspendable, such as, but not limited to, inventories, prepaid items, long-term receivables, 
non-financial assets held for resale, or the permanent principal of endowment funds. 

 
• Restricted fund balance amounts are comprised of funds that have legally enforceable constraints placed on 

their use that are externally imposed by resource providers or creditors (such as through debt covenants), 
grantors, contributors, voters, or laws or regulations of other governments, or are imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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• Committed fund balance amounts are comprised of unrestricted funds used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the School Board and that remain binding unless removed by the 
School Board by subsequent formal action. The formal action to commit a fund balance must occur prior to 
fiscal year end; however, the specific amounts actually committed can be determined in the subsequent 
fiscal year. A committed fund balance cannot be a negative number. A majority vote of the School Board is 
required to commit a fund balance to a specific purpose and subsequently to remove or change any 
constraint so adopted by the board. 

 
• Assigned fund balance amounts are comprised of unrestricted funds constrained by the school District’s 

intent that they be used for specific purposes, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed. In funds other than the general fund, the assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount 
that is not restricted or committed. The assigned fund balance category will cover the portion of a fund 
balance that reflects the school district’s intended use of those resources. The action to assign a fund 
balance may be taken after the end of the fiscal year. An assigned fund balance cannot be a negative 
number. A School Board, by majority vote, may assign fund balances to be used for specific purposes when 
appropriate. The board also delegates the power to assign fund balances to the following: Superintendent 
and Assistant Superintendent. Assignments so made shall be reported to the School Board on a monthly 
basis, either separately or as part of ongoing reporting by the assigning party if other than the School Board. 

 
• Unassigned fund balance amounts are comprised of funds that have legally enforceable constraints placed 

on their use that either are externally imposed by resource providers or creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, voters, or laws or regulations of other governments, or are imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
The first priority is to utilize the balance as restricted fund balance. Committed funds will be considered second 
with assigned fund balance third when expenditures is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those 
unrestricted fund balance classification could be used like assigned or unassigned. 
 
The School Board will endeavor to maintain a minimum unassigned General Fund balance of at least 25% of the 
district’s General Fund operating budget. When the unassigned General Fund balance is projected to decrease 
below 17% of the General Fund budget, the district shall initiate one or more measures listed in the fund balance 
policy to ensure that the year-end General Fund unassigned balance for the budget year in question does not fall 
below 17%. 
 
 

Note 2 -  Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
Excess of Expenditures over Budget 
 
Budget control for the funds is established by its total appropriations. 
 
The General Fund had expenditures exceeding appropriations of $4,486,384 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
These over expenditures were funded by revenues exceeding budget and existing fund balance. During 2017, all 
school districts were required to record the additional pension expense related to the support received from the 
State of Minnesota for TRA and PERA special funding situations per GASB Statement No. 68. During 2017, the 
District’s additional pension expense totaled $1,995,590. Therefore, the District’s General Fund actual 
expenditures did exceed budgeted expenditures by $2,490,794 prior to this additional expense being recorded.  
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Note 3 -  Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits 
 
In accordance with applicable Minnesota Statutes, the District maintains deposits at depository banks authorized 
by the District’s School Board. All such depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System.  
 
The following is considered the most significant risk associated with deposits: 
 

Custodial Credit Risk – In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s 
deposits may be lost. 
 

Minnesota Statutes require that all deposits be protected by federal deposit insurance, corporate surety bond, or 
collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by federal deposit 
insurance or corporate surety bonds. Authorized collateral includes treasury bills, notes, and bonds; issues of U.S. 
government agencies; general obligations rated “A” or better; revenue obligations rated “AA” or better; 
irrevocable standard letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank; and certificates of deposit. 
Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as collateral be held in safekeeping in a restricted account at the 
Federal Reserve Bank or in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution 
that is not owned or controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. 
 
At June 30, 2017, all deposits were not insured or collateralized by securities held by the District’s agent in the 
District’s name. 
 

Investments 
 
Credit Risk – Investments 
 
Minnesota Statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and 
instrumentalities, bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements and commercial paper rated A-1 by 
Standard & Poor’s Corporation or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments 
 
The investment in the Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund is not subject to the credit risk classifications 
as noted in paragraph 9 of GASB Statement No. 40. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – Investments 
 
The District does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities. 
 
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
the asset. Level 1 inputs are quote prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
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The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017: 

• Equities of $3,290,483 and fixed income investments of $5,351 are valued using quoted market prices 
(Level 2 inputs) 

 
The following table presents the District’s deposit and investment balances at June 30, 2017: 
 

Type Fair Value N/A < 1

Cash and cash equivalents
Minnesota School

District Liquid Asset Fund 60,136,606$    60,136,606$    -$                     
Deposits 6,153,449        6,153,449        -                       

Investments
Fixed income 5,351               -                       5,351               
Equities 3,290,483        3,290,483        -                       

69,585,889$    69,580,538$    5,351$             

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
Cash and investments are included on the basic financial statements as follows: 
 

Cash and Investments - Statement of Net Position 29,204,215$    
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Statement of Net Position 35,156,821      
Cash and Investments - Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 5,224,853        

69,585,889$    

 
The Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund is an external investment pool not registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) that follows the same regulatory rules of the SEC under rule 2a7. The fair value 
of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pools shares. 
 
 

Note 4 -  Due from Other Governmental Units 
 
Amounts receivable from other governments as of June 30, 2017, include: 
 

Fund Federal State Other  Total 

Major funds
General 1,708,050$      8,895,305$      68,195$           10,671,550$    
Debt service -                       154,885           -                       154,885           

Non-major funds 27,360             240,847           -                       268,207           

1,735,410$      9,291,037$      68,195$           11,094,642$    
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Note 5 -  Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is a follows: 
 

Balance
July 1, 2016 Balance
(Restated)  Additions  Deletions June 30, 2017

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 1,499,572$      -$                     -$                     1,499,572$      
Construction in progress 6,848,309        43,514,400      -                       50,362,709      

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 8,347,881        43,514,400      -                       51,862,281      

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 104,986,893    7,340,001        -                       112,326,894    
Improvements 4,200,241        5,980               -                       4,206,221
Vehicles 2,024,928 126,325           (126,325)          2,024,928
Equipment 1,666,165        121,369           (61,554)            1,725,980        

Total capital assets being depreciated 112,878,227    7,593,675        (187,879)          120,284,023    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 31,731,893      1,907,061        -                       33,638,954      
Improvements 1,210,664        210,162           -                       1,420,826
Vehicles 1,263,463        144,856           (126,325)          1,281,994
Equipment 471,110           169,658           (4,102)              636,666           

Total accumulated depreciation 34,677,130      2,431,737        (130,427)          36,978,440      

Net capital assets, depreciated 78,201,097      5,161,938        (57,452)            83,305,583      

Total capital assets, net 86,548,978$    48,676,338$    (57,452)$          135,167,864$  

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was charged to the following functions/programs: 
 

Regular instruction 1,843$             
Community education 13,166
Instructional support 93,737
Pupil support services 130,704
Sites and buildings 2,188,948

Total depreciation expense 2,431,737$      

Construction in progress is for the remodeling of Robert Asp Elementary, Ellen Hopkins Elementary, S.G. 
Reinertsen Elementary (SGR), Probstfield Center for Education (PCE), an addition to Horizon Middle School, 
and the building of a new elementary school that are being completed. These projects are anticipated to be 
completed over the course of fiscal years 2018 and 2019. 
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Note 6 -  Other Post-Employment Benefits  
 
A.  Plan Description 
 
Plan Description – All employees are allowed upon meeting the eligibility requirements under Minn. Stat. 471.61 
subd, 2b, to participate in the District’s health insurance plan after retirement. This plan covers active and retired 
employees. Benefit provisions are established through negotiations between the District and the union 
representing District employees and are renegotiated at the end of each contract period. Contract groups receive 
other post-retirement benefits as follows: 
 

• Superintendent – For retirees reaching age 55 with 3 years of service, the District will pay the full premium 
for the $10 copay medical insurance plan for 7 years or until Medicare eligibility, whichever is earlier. 

 
• Administrators – For retirees reaching age 55, the District will pay the full premium of a $100,000 life 

insurance policy until age 65. The percentage paid by the District reduces to 80% at age 61, 60% at age 62 
and 40% at age 63. 

 
• Principals – For retirees reaching age 55 with 8 years of service and hired on or before July 1, 2000 (10 

years of service by July 1, 2010) and who retire before July 1, 2013, the District will pay the full premium 
for the $10 copay medical insurance plan for 7 years or until Medicare eligibility, whichever is earlier. For 
retirees reaching age 55 with 8 years of service and hired on or before July 1, 2000 (10 years of service by 
July 1, 2010) and who retire before July 1, 2015, the District will pay $9,300 per year with the excess 
toward HSA/VEBA deductibles, if applicable, for 7 years or until Medicare eligibility, whichever is earlier. 
For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service, the District will pay the full life insurance premium of 
a $100,000 policy until age 65. The percentage paid by the District reduces to 80% at age 61, 60% at age 
62, and 40% at age 63. 

 
• Teachers – For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service and hired before July 1, 2010 and retired 

before July 1, 2011, the District will pay the full premium for the $10 copay medical insurance plan ($500 
Deductible plan if returned after June 30, 2011) until Medicare eligibility. For retirees reaching age 55 with 
10 years of service and hired before July 1, 2010 and retired before July 1, 2012, the District will pay the 
full premium for the $500 deductible medical insurance plan until Medicare eligibility. For retirees reaching 
age 55 with 10 years of service and hired before July 1, 2010 and retired on or after July 1, 2012, the 
District will pay $653 per month with the excess toward HSA/VEBA deductibles, if applicable, until 
Medicare eligibility. For retirees reaching age 55 with 3 years of service, the District will pay the full 
premium for a $25,000 life insurance policy until age 65. 

 
• Supervisors – For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service and hired on or before July 1, 2001 (9 

years of service by July 1, 2010), and who retire before July 1, 2013, the District will pay the full premium 
for the $10 copay medical insurance plan for 7 years or until Medicare eligibility, whichever is earlier. For 
retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service and hired on or before July 1, 2001 (9 years of service by 
July 1, 2010), and who retire on or after July 1, 2013, the District will pay $9,300 per month with the excess 
toward HSA/VEBA deductibles, if applicable, for 7 years or until Medicare eligibility, whichever is earlier. 
For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service, the District will pay 100% of the premium of a 
$100,000 life insurance policy until the age of 65. The percentage paid by the District reduces to 80% at age 
61, 60% at age 62, and 40% at age 63. 
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The retiree health plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.  
 
B.  Benefits Provided 
 
The plan provides medical, dental, and life insurance benefits provided to terminated or retired employees and 
their dependents and beneficiaries. Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer, and the cost of the benefits 
covered by the plan are described above. 
 
C.  Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
At the valuation date of July 1, 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 72

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -                       

Active employees 819

891

D.  Contributions 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District’s contribution rate was 9.60 percent of covered employee payroll. 
Employees are not required to contribute to the plan. 
 
E.  Net OPEB Liability 
 
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate 
the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  
 
F.  Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Inflation 2.50 percent

Salary increases 3.00 percent

Investment rate of return 4.90 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense,

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.75 percent for 2016 grading to 5.00% over 7 years

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2015 Generational 
Improvement Scale. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study as of June 30, 2017. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target
Allocations

Domestic equity 33%
Fixed income 50%
International equity 17%

100%

6.50%

6.80%

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Long-Term Expected

3.20%

G.  Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that the District contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially 
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
H.  Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 

Total OPEB Fiducaiary Net Net OPEB
Liability Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2016 8,492,157$      5,009,306$      3,482,851$      

Changes from the Prior Year:

Service Cost 358,297           -                       358,297           
Interest Cost 263,235           -                       263,235           
Employer Contributions -                       -                       -                       
Projected Investment Return -                       245,456           (245,456)          
Differences between Expected and -                       

Actual Experience -                       309,008           (309,008)          
Benefit Payments (723,495)          (723,495)          -                       
Administrative Expenses -                       (3,923)              3,923               

Total Net Changes (101,963)          (172,954)          70,991             

Balances at June 30, 2017 8,390,194$      4,836,352$      3,553,842$      

Increase (Decrease)
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The measurement date of the net OPEB liability was June 30, 2017; the date of the actuarial valuation on which 
the total OPEB liability is based was July 1, 2016. Update procedures were used to roll forward the total OPEB 
liability to the measurement date.  
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan 
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of changes in the 
District’s net OPEB liability and related ratios, presented as required supplementary information following the 
notes to the financial statements, presents multiple year trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits will be 
displayed. 
 
I.  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Discount Rate and the Healthcare Cost Trend 

Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 1 percentage point lower and 1 percentage point higher than 
the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Discount rate 2.10% 3.10% 4.10%

Net OPEB Liability 3,971,028$      3,553,842$      3,141,580$      

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate 1 percentage point lower and 1 percentage point 
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease in Selected 1% Increase in
Healthcare Healthcare Healthcare
Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate

Net OPEB Liability 2,913,163$             3,553,842$                  4,288,730$             
Medical trend rate 5.75% decreasing 6.75% decreasing 7.75% decreasing

to 4% over 7 years to 5% over 7 years to 6% over 7 years
Dental trend rate N/A N/A N/A

 
J.  OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued OPEB 
financial report.  
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K. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized OPEB expense of $318,197. At June 30, 2017, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings -$                     247,206$         

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Pension
Years Ended June 30, Expense Amount

2018 (61,802)$          
2019 (61,802)            
2020 (61,802)            
2021 (61,800)            
2022 -                       

 
 

Note 7 -  Pension-Related Retirement Benefits 
 
A.  Plan Description 
 
Plan Description – The District provides a defined contribution severance benefit to certain eligible employees 
and report them following the guidance of GASB Statement No. 73. All of the severance benefits are based on 
contractual agreements with employee groups. Contract groups receive other severance benefits as follows: 
 
Supervisors – For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service hired before July 1, 1996, the District will pay 
a percentage of the highest annual salary of the last 5 years at the following rates: 
 
 With 15 years of service 75% 
 With 13-14 years of service 60% 
 With 12 years of service 50% 
 With 11 years of service 40% 
 With 10 years of service 30% 
 With 9 years of service 20% 
 
The benefit is payable in one lump sum to a 403(b). 
 

100



Dr
aft

 

41 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

 
 
Secretarial & Clerical Employees and Custodians – For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service and hired 
before July 1, 2000, the District will pay a percentage of the highest annual salary of the last 5 years at the 
following rates: 
 
 With 15 years of service 60% 
 With 14 years of service 50% 
 With 13 years of service 40% 
 With 12 years of service 30% 
 With 11 years of service 20% 
 With 10 years of service 10% 
 
The benefit is payable in one lump sum to a 403(b). 
 
Paraprofessionals and TCI Employees – For retirees reaching age 55 with 10 years of service and hired before 
July 1, 2002, the District will pay a percentage of the highest annual salary of the last 5 years at the following 
rates: 
 
 With 15 years of service 60% 
 With 14 years of service 50% 
 With 13 years of service 40% 
 With 12 years of service 30% 
 With 11 years of service 20% 
 With 10 years of service 10% 
 
The benefit is payable in one lump sum to a 403(b). 
 
Teachers – For retirees reaching age 55 with 8 years of service and hired before September 1, 1999, the District 
will pay a percentage of the calculation 100 days less the number of sick leave days used in the last 2 years of 
employment at the following rates: 
 
 With 26+ years of service 121% 
 With 21-25 years of service 114% 
 With 16-20 years of service 107% 
 With 15 years of service 100% 
 With 14 years of service 93% 
 With 13 years of service 86% 
 With 12 years of service 79% 
 With 11 years of service 72% 
 With 10 years of service 65% 
 With 9 years of service 58% 
 With 8 years of service 50% 
 
The benefit is payable in one lump sum to a 403(b). 
 

101



Dr
aft

 

42 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

 
 
B.  Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
At June 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments -                       

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -                       

Active employees 48

48

 
D.  Contributions 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District’s contribution rate was 0 percent of covered employee payroll. 
Employees are not required to contribute to the plan. 
 
E.  Pension-Related Benefits Liability 
 
The District’s pension-related retirement benefits liability was measured as of June 30, 2017.  
 
F.  Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The pension-related benefits liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 
Inflation 2.50 percent

Salary increases 3.00 percent

Discount Rate 2.90 percent

20-Year Municipal Bond Yield 2.90 percent

 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2015 Generational 
Improvement Scale. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study as of July 1, 2016. 
 
G.  Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the pension-related benefits liability was 2.90 percent. Since the plan is not 
funded (has no assets), the discount rate was developed by estimating the long term investment yield on the 
employer funds that will be used to pay benefits as they come due. 
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H.  Changes in the Pension-Related Benefits Liability 
 

Service cost 34,826$           
Interest cost 29,552             
  Pension-related benefits cost 64,378             

Benefit payments (343,143)          

  Change in pension-related benefits obligation (278,765)          
Pension-related benefits liability, beginning of year, as restated 1,154,539        

Pension-related benefits liability, end of year 875,774$         

I. Sensitivity of the Pension-Related Benefits Liability to Changes in Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the pension-related benefits liability of the District, as well as what the District’s 
supplemental benefits liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 1 percentage point lower and 1 
percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Discount rate 1.90% 2.90% 3.90%

Pension-Related Benefits Liability 895,884$         875,774$         854,801$         
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Note 8 -  Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Changes in long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2016  Additions  Deletions June 30, 2017 One Year

Bonds payable 104,865,000$  -$                     4,670,000$      100,195,000$  4,910,000$      
Unamortized premium

on bond issuance 6,949,737        -                       919,440           6,030,297        919,440           
Capital lease 7,818,207        4,354,142        603,758           11,568,591      626,747           
Vacation payable 357,532           476,846           445,387           388,991           350,092           

119,990,476$  4,830,988$      6,638,585$      118,182,879$  6,806,279$      

Capital leases payable are to account for items that the District has entered into leases that are considered capital 
assets to the District. There are four separate capital leases. The first is for financing an addition to the S.G. 
Reinertsen Elementary School that was completed previously. The lease calls for semiannual principal and 
interest payments commencing in November 2011 through November 2026. 
 
There are two leases are for additions to the Robert Asp Elementary School, the Probstfield Elementary School, 
and SGR Elementary School. The District received cash from this debt issuance, which is held in cash with fiscal 
agent on the financial statements. As of June 30, 2017, all proceeds received from debt issuance were spent. 
Funding not yet utilized for construction expenses will be recognized as revenue and new debt when the 
expenditures are incurred. The projects related to these capital leases are in progress as of June 30, 2017, and are 
anticipated to be completed during fiscal year 2018. The lease for Asp and PCE additions calls for semiannual 
principal and interest payments commencing in April 2014 through February 2029. The lease for the second 
addition to SGR Elementary School calls for semiannual principal and interest payments commencing in May 
2015 through February 2030. 
 
The fourth capital lease is for the financing of the Vista building which was completed and capitalized as of June 
30, 2017, in the amount of $4,226,751. The lease calls for semiannual principal and interest payments 
commencing in February 2017 through February 2042. 
 
Total cost of the completed capital leased assets as of June 30, 2017 was $11,248,022 and had $222,353 in 
accumulated depreciation. The capital lease payments are made from the general fund. 
 
Vacation payable consists of vested vacation as discussed in Note 1. These expenses are paid out of the general 
fund. 
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Following is a summary of bonds payable as of June 30, 2017: 
 

Original Outstanding
Bond Description  Final  Interest Rate   Principal   Balance 

General Obligation School Building
Bonds, Series 2016A 2/36 3.00% - 4.00% 74,560,000$    74,560,000      

General Obligation School Building
Refunding Bonds, Series 2014A 4/22 3.00% - 5.00% 30,785,000      20,375,000$    

General Obligation School
Taxable OPEB Bonds, Series 2009A 2/21 4.00% - 5.00% 10,300,000      5,260,000        

100,195,000$  

 
Bonds payable – These are for the acquisition and betterment of school sites and facilities, as well as facility 
improvements. Payments are made out of the debt service and building construction funds.  
 
Bond principal and interest payments for the School Building Refunding Bonds of 2014 are made by the debt 
service fund. Bond principal and interest payments for the School Taxable OPEB Bonds of 2009 are made by the 
OPEB debt service fund. Bond principal and interest payments for the School Building Bonds of 2016 are made 
by the debt service fund. 
 
Remaining principal and interest payments on long-term debt are as follows: 
 

Capital Lease Payable Total
Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

4,910,000$      3,665,900$      626,747$         346,193$         5,536,747$      4,012,093$      
5,155,000        3,420,400        646,264           326,676           5,801,264        3,747,076        
5,410,000        3,162,650        666,409           306,531           6,076,409        3,469,181        
5,690,000        2,892,150        687,202           285,738           6,377,202        3,177,888        
4,470,000        2,607,650        708,665           264,275           5,178,665        2,871,925        

2023 - 2027 22,850,000      10,517,950      3,863,141        974,380           26,713,141      11,492,330      
2028 - 2032 26,905,000      6,463,850        2,374,537        422,894           29,279,537      6,886,744        
2033 - 2037 24,805,000      1,887,900        926,164           230,368           25,731,164      2,118,268        
2038 - 2042 -                       -                       1,069,462        87,069             1,069,462        87,069             

100,195,000$  34,618,450$    11,568,591$    3,244,124$      111,763,591$  37,862,574$    

Bonds Payable

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
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Note 9 -  Fund Balance 
 
Certain portions of fund balances are restricted based on state requirements to track special program funding, to 
provide for funding on certain long-term liabilities, or as required by other outside parties. 
 
The following is a summary of fund balances as of June 30, 2017: 
 

Other

Building Government
 General  Construction   Debt Service  Funds Totals

Nonspendable
Inventory -$                     -$                     -$                     25,338$           25,338$           
Prepaids 60,603             -                       -                       2,471               63,074             

Total nonspendable 60,603             -                       -                       27,809             88,412             

Restricted
Operating capital 173,555           -                       -                       -                       173,555           
Safe school - crime levy 189,649           -                       -                       -                       189,649           
Satff development 60,775             -                       -                       -                       60,775             
LT facilities maintenance 704,196           -                       -                       -                       704,196           
Building construction -                       28,595,946      -                       -                       28,595,946      
Debt service -                       -                       1,776,365        -                       1,776,365        
OPEB debt service -                       -                       -                       346,505           346,505           
Food service -                       -                       -                       1,048,324        1,048,324        
Community education -                       -                       -                       258,217           258,217           
Early childhood and
  family education -                       -                       -                       269,346           269,346           
School readiness -                       -                       -                       274,875           274,875           
Community service -                       -                       -                       123,833           123,833           

Total restricted 1,128,175        28,595,946      1,776,365        2,321,100        33,821,586      

Committed
Severance obligation 1,200,000        -                       -                       -                       1,200,000        

Assigned
Health insurance and
  affordable care act 500,000           -                       -                       -                       500,000           
Capital projects 3,000,000        -                       -                       -                       3,000,000        

Total assigned 3,500,000        -                       -                       -                       3,500,000        

Unassigned 13,291,646      -                       -                       -                       13,291,646      

Total fund balance 19,180,424$    28,595,946$    1,776,365$      2,348,909$      51,901,644$    
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The UFARS fund balance reporting standards are slightly different than the reporting standards under GASB 54 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. Below is reconciliation between the fund 
balance reporting under GASB 54 and UFARS reporting standards: 
 

GASB Reconciling UFARS 
 Balance  Items Balance

Nonspendable
Inventory 25,338$           -$                     25,338$           
Prepaids 63,074             -                       63,074             

Total nonspendable 88,412             -                       88,412             

Restricted
Health and safety -                       (416,369)          (416,369)          
Operating capital 173,555           -                       173,555           
Safe school - crime levy 189,649           -                       189,649           
Satff development 60,775             -                       60,775             
LT facilities maintenance 704,196           -                       704,196           
Building construction 28,595,946      -                       28,595,946      
Debt service 1,776,365        -                       1,776,365        
OPEB debt service 346,505           -                       346,505           
Food service 1,048,324        -                       1,048,324        
Community education 258,217           -                       258,217           
Early childhood and family education 269,346           -                       269,346           
School readiness 274,875           -                       274,875           
Community service 123,833           -                       123,833           

Total restricted 33,821,586      (416,369)          33,405,217      

Committed
Severance obligation 1,200,000        -                       1,200,000        

Assigned
Health insurance and affordable care act 500,000           -                       500,000           
Capital projects 3,000,000        -                       3,000,000        

Total assigned 3,500,000        -                       3,500,000        

Unassigned 13,291,646      416,369           13,708,015      

Total fund balance 51,901,644$    -$                     51,901,644$    
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Note 10 -  Defined Benefit Pension Plans  
 
Substantially all employees of the District are required by state law to belong to defined benefit, multi-employer, 
cost-sharing pension plans administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association (PERA) or the 
Teachers’ Retirement Association (TRA), all of which are administered on a state-wide basis. Disclosures relating 
to these plans are as follows: 
 
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) 
 
A. Plan Descriptions 
 
The District participates in the following cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by PERA. PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and administered in accordance 
with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans 
under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the District, other than teachers, are covered by General 
Employees Retirement Fund (GERF). GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. 
Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. The Basic Plan was 
closed to new members in 1967. All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan. 
 
B. Benefits Provided 
 
PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state statute and 
can only be modified by the state legislature. 
 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Increases are related to the funding ratio of the 
plan. Members in plans that are at least 90% funded for two consecutive years are given 2.5% increases. Members 
in plans that have not exceeded 90% funded, or have fallen below 80%, are given 1% increases. 
 
The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active 
plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are 
bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service. 
 
GERF benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, 
age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's 
Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual 
formula (Method 1) or a level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic 
Plan member is 2.2% of average salary for each of the first ten years of service and 2.7% for each remaining year. 
The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2% of average salary for each of the first ten years 
and 1.7% for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7% of average salary for Basic 
Plan members and 1.7% for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For members hired prior to July 
1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For 
members hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits 
capped at 66. 
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C. Contribution Rate 
 
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates can 
only be modified by the state Legislature. Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to 
contribute 9.1% and 6.5% of pay, respectively of their annual covered salary in calendar year 2016. The District 
was required to contribute 11.78% of pay for Basic Plan members and 7.5% for Coordinated Plan members in 
calendar year 2016. The District’s contributions to the GERF for the year ended June 30, 2017, were $854,196. 
The District’s contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year as set by state statute. 
 
D. Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions: 
 

Assumptions

Inflation 2.50% per year
Active Member Payroll Growth 3.25% per year
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% per year

GERF

 
Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, survivors and 
disabilitants were based on RP-2014 tables for males or females, as appropriate, with slight adjustments. Cost of 
living benefit increases for retirees are assumed to be one percent per year for all future years. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience 
studies. The most recent four-year experience study for GERF was completed in 2015, but assumptions are 
reviewed annually.  
 
The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2016: 

• The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2035 and 
2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years. 

• The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. The single discount rate was changed 
from 7.9% to 7.5%. 

• Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 2015. The assumed 
future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25% to 3.25% for payroll 
growth and 2.50% for inflation. 
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The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the 
reasonableness of the long-term expected rate of return on a regular basis using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target
Allocations

Domestic Stocks 45%
International Stocks 15%
Bonds 18%
Alternative Assets 20%
Cash 2%

100%

6.40%
0.50%

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

5.50%
6.00%
1.45%

 
 
E. Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2016 was 7.50%, a reduction from the 7.9% used 
in 2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer 
contributions will be made at the rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net 
position of the GERF was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
F. Pension Costs 
 
At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $13,616,408 for its proportionate share of the GERF’s net 
pension liability. The District’s net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s 
contribution of $6 million to the fund in 2016. The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing 
entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The State of Minnesota’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District totaled $177,846. The net pension 
liability was measured as of June 30, 2016 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on the District’s contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid 
dates from July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of 
PERA’s participating employers. At June 30, 2016, the District’s proportion was 0.1677%, which was an increase 
of 0.0008% from June 30, 2015. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $1,897,647 for its proportionate 
share of GERF’s pension expense. In addition, the District recognized an additional $53,029 as pension expense 
(and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $6 million to the GERF.
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At June 30, 2017, the District reported its proportionate share of GERF’s deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources, and its contributions subsequent to the measurement date, from the following 
sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 40,299$           1,106,131$      

Changes in actuarial assumptions 2,936,730        -                       

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 1,520,178        -                       

Change in proportion and differences between contributions made

and District's proportionate share of contributions 31,095             252,522           

District's contributions to GERF subsequent to the measurement date 854,196           -                       

Total 5,382,498$      1,358,653$      

$854,196 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions to 
GERF subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to GERF 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Pension
Years Ended June 30, Expense Amount

2018 831,734$         
2019 520,806           
2020 1,325,267        
2021 491,842           
2022 -                       
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G. Pension Liability Sensitivity 
 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it participates in, 
calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 1 percentage 
point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

GERF discount rate 6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
District’s proportionate share of

the GERF net pension liability 19,339,335$    13,616,408$    8,902,274$      

  
H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued PERA 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be 
obtained on the Internet at www.mnpera.org.  
 
Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) 
 
A. Plan Descriptions 
 
The Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) is an administrator of a multiple employer, cost-sharing, defined 
benefit retirement fund. TRA administers a Basic Plan (without Social Security coverage) and a Coordinated Plan 
(with Social Security coverage) in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 354 and 356. TRA is a separate 
statutory entity and administered by a Board of Trustees. The Board consists of four active members, one retired 
member and three statutory officials. 
 
Teachers employed in Minnesota’s public elementary and secondary school, charter schools, and certain 
educational institutions maintained by the state (except those teachers employed by the cities of Duluth and St. 
Paul, and by the University of Minnesota system) are required to be TRA members. State university, community 
college, and technical college teachers first employed by Minnesota State may elect TRA coverage within one 
year of eligible employment. Alternatively, these teachers may elect coverage through the Defined Contribution 
Retirement Plan (DCR) administered by MnSCU. 
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B. Benefits Provided 
 
TRA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to survivors upon death 
of eligible members. Benefits are established by Minnesota Statute and vest after three years of service credit. The 
defined retirement benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for any five consecutive years of 
allowable service, age, and a formula multiplier based on years of credit at termination of service. 
 
Two methods are used to compute benefits for TRA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. Members first 
employed before July 1, 1989, receive the greater of the Tier I or Tier II benefits as described.  
 
Tier I Benefits 
 

Tier 1: Step Rate Formula Percentage

Basic First ten years 2.2% per year
All years after 2.7% per year

Coordinated First ten years if service years are up to July 1, 2006 1.2% per year
First ten years if service years are July 1, 2006 or after 1.4% per year
All other years of service if service years are up to July 1, 2006 1.7% per year
All other years of service if service years are July 1, 2006 or after 1.9% per year

With these provisions: 
 

(a) Normal retirement age is 65 with less than 30 years of allowable service and age 62 with 30 or more years 
of allowable service. 

(b) 3 percent per year early retirement reduction factor for all years under normal retirement age. 
(c) Unreduced benefits for early retirement under a Rule-of-90 (age plus allowable service equals 90 or 

more). 
or 
 
Tier II Benefits 
 
For years of service prior to July 1, 2006, a level formula of 1.7 percent per year for coordinated members and 2.7 
percent per year for basic members is applied. For years of service July 1, 2006 and after, a level formula of 1.9 
percent per year for Coordinated members and 2.7 for Basic members applies. Beginning July 1, 2015, the early 
retirement reduction factors are based on rates established under Minnesota Statute. Smaller reductions, more 
favorable to the member, will be applied to individuals who reach age 62 and have 30 years or more of service 
credit. 
 
Members first employed after June 30, 1989, receive only the Tier II calculation with a normal retirement age that 
is their retirement age for full Social Security retirement benefits, but not to exceed age 66. 
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Six different types of annuities are available to members upon retirement. The No Refund Life Plan is a lifetime 
annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree – no survivor annuity is payable. A retiring member may also 
choose to provide survivor benefits to a designated beneficiary(ies) by selecting one of the five plans that have 
survivorship features. Vested members may also leave their contributions in the TRA Fund upon termination of 
service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Any member terminating service is eligible for 
a refund of their employee contributions plus interest. 
 
The benefit provisions stated apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to 
benefits but not yet receiving them are bound by the plan provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their 
public service. 
 
C. Contribution Rate 
 
Per Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 354 sets the contribution rates for employees and employers. Rates for each 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2017 were: 
 

Employees Employers

Basic 11.00% 11.50%
Coordinated 7.50% 7.50%

The following is a reconciliation of employer contributions in TRA’s CAFR “Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
Net Position” to the employer contributions used in Schedule of Employer and Non-Employer Pension 
Allocations. 
 

Employer contributions reported in TRA's CAFR, 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 354,961,140$  

Add employer contributions not related to 
future contribution efforts 26,356             

Deduct TRA's contributions not included in allocation (442,978)          

Total employer contributions 354,544,518    

Total non-employer contributions 35,587,410      

Total contributions reported in Schedule of 
Employer and Non-Employer Allocations 390,131,928$  

Amounts reported in the allocation schedules may not precisely agree with financial statement amounts or 
actuarial valuations due to the number of decimal places used in the allocations. TRA has rounded percentage 
amounts to the nearest ten thousandths. 
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D. Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Key Methods and Assumptions Used in Valuation of Total Pension Liability

Actuarial Information

Valuation date July 1, 2016

Experience study June 5, 2015

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 4.66, from the Single Equivalent 

Interest Rate calculation

Price inflation 2.75%

Wage growth rate 3.50%

Projected salary increase 3.50 - 9.50%

Cost of living adjustment 2.00%

Mortality assumptions

Pre-retirement: RP-2014 white collar employee table, male rates set
back six years and female rates set back five years.
Generational projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

Post-retirement: RP-2014 white collar annuitant table, male rates set
back three years and female rates set back three years,
with further adjustments of the rates. Generational
projection uses the MP-2015 scale.

Post-disability: RP-2014 disabled retiree mortality 
table, without adjustment.

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
 

Target
Allocations

Domestic Stocks 45%
International Stocks 15%
Bonds 18%
Alternative Assets 20%
Cash 2%

100%

6.40%
0.50%

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

5.50%
6.00%
1.45%

The TRA actuary has determined the average of the expected remaining service lives of all members for fiscal 
year 2016 is 6 years. The “Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience,” “Changes of Assumptions,” 
and “Changes in Proportion” use the amortization period of 6 years in the schedule presented. The amortization 
period for “Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments” is 
over a period of 5 years as required by GASB 68. 
 
E. Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.66 percent. This is a decrease from the discount 
rate at the prior measurement date of 8.00 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the fiscal 2017 contribution rate, contributions from 
school districts will be made at contractually required rates (actuarially determined), and contributions from the 
state will be made at current statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be depleted in 2052 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the 
determination of the Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR). The long-term expected rate of return was applied to 
periods before 2052 and the Municipal Bond Index Rate of 3.01 percent was applied to periods on and after 2052, 
resulting in a SEIR of 4.66 percent. Based on Fiduciary Net Position at prior year measurement date, the discount 
rate of 8.00 percent was used and it was not necessary to calculate the SEIR. 
 
F. Net Pension Liability 
 
At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $138,606,215 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on The District’s contributions to TRA in relation to total system 
contributions including direct aid from the State of Minnesota. The District’s proportionate share was 0.5811% at 
the end of the measurement period and 0.5651% for the beginning of the year. 
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The pension liability amount reflected a reduction due to direct aid provided to TRA. The amount recognized by 
the district as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct aid, and total portion of the net pension 
liability that was associated with the district were as follows: 
 

District’s proportionate share of net pension liability 138,606,215$  

State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the district 13,911,854$    

There was a change in actuarial assumptions that affected the measurement of the total pension liability since the 
prior measurement date. Power-retirement benefit adjustments are now assumed to remain level at 2.0% annually. 
While in the previous measurement the COLA increased to 2.5% in 2034. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $20,703,884. It also recognized 
$1,942,561 as an increase to pension expense for the support provided by direct aid. 
 
At June 30, 2017, the District reported its proportionate share of the TRA’s deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources, and its contributions subsequent to the measurement date, related to pensions from 
the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 1,357,707$      3,864$             

Changes in actuarial assumptions 79,038,540      -                       

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 5,996,201        -                       

Change in proportion and differences between contributions made 1,114,029        75,366             
and District's proportionate share of contributions

District's contributions to TRA subsequent to the measurement date 2,430,766        -                       

Total 89,937,243$    79,230$           

 
$2,430,766 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District 
contributions to TRA subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2017.  
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to TRA pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 
 

Pension
Years Ended June 30, Expense Amount

2018 17,357,487$    
2019 17,357,497      
2020 19,340,128      
2021 17,836,081      
2022 15,536,054      

 
G. Net Pension Liability 
 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 4.66% as well as the liability measured using one percent lower and one percent higher: 
 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

TRA discount rate 3.66% 4.66% 5.66%
District’s proportionate share of

the TRA net pension liability 178,559,449$  138,606,215$  106,065,609$  

 
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer contributions to TRA in relation 
to TRA’s total employer contributions including direct aid contributions from the State of Minnesota, City of 
Minneapolis and Minneapolis School District. 
 
H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about TRA’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued TRA financial report. 
That report can be obtained at www.MinnesotaTRA.org, by writing to TRA at 60 Empire Drive, Suite 400, St. 
Paul, MN, 55103-4000; or by calling 651-296-2409 or 800-657-3669. 
 
 
Note 11 -  Flexible Benefit Plan 
 
The District has a flexible benefit plan which is classified as a “cafeteria plan” (the Plan) under section 125 of the 
Internal Revenue Code. All employee groups of the District are eligible if and when the collective bargaining 
agreement or contract with their group allows eligibility. Eligible employees can elect to participate by 
contributing pre-tax dollars withheld from payroll checks to the Plan for healthcare and dependent care benefits. 
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Before the beginning of the Plan year, which is from September 1 to August 31, each participant designates a total 
amount of pre-tax dollars to be contributed to the Plan during the year. At June 30, the District is contingently 
liable for claims against the total amount of participants’ annual contributions to the medical reimbursement 
portion of the Plan, whether or not such contributions have been made. 
 
Payment of insurance premiums (health, dental, life, and disability) are made by the District directly to the 
designated insurance companies. These payments are made on a monthly basis and are accounted for in the 
General Fund and special revenue funds. 
 
Amounts withheld for medical reimbursement and dependent care are paid by the District to an outside 
administrator upon an employee submitting a request for reimbursement. Payments are made by the outside 
administrator to participating employees upon submitting a request for reimbursement of eligible expenses 
actually incurred by the employee. 
 
All property of the Plan and income attributable to that property is solely the property of the District, subject to 
the claims of the District’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of general 
creditors of the District in an amount equal to eligible healthcare and dependent care expenses incurred by the 
participants. The District believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general 
creditors in the future. 
 
 

Note 12 -  Employee Benefit Plan 403(B) 
 
All teachers having completed their fifth year of teaching in the District are eligible to participate in the matching 
403(b) program. The District will match the employees’ deferral up to the following annual maximums: 
 

Years of Service Maximum Match

6 - 10 $1,000
11+ $1,500

The maximum career matching contribution by the District will not exceed $20,000 per teacher. 
 
 

Note 13 -  Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Federal Revenue 
 
Amounts received or receivable from federal and state agencies are subject to agency audit and adjustment. Any 
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The 
amount, if any, of funds which may be disallowed by the agencies cannot be determined at this time although the 
District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
Contingencies 
 
The District has the usual and customary legal claims pending at year-end. Although the outcomes of these 
lawsuits are not presently determinable, the District believes that the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on its financial position. 
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Commitment 

The District entered into commitments during the year ended June 30, 2017 for the building of a new elementary 
school, additions to Horizon Middle School, remodeling projects at S.G. Reinertsen and Probstfield Center for 
Education, and an addition to the Robert Asp Elementary School as well as an addition to the Probstfield 
Elementary School. The total amount of these contracts committed to is $77,823,958 with the work completed on 
these projects as of year ended June 30, 2017 totaling $50,362,709, leaving construction commitments at year end 
totaling $27,461,249. 

Operating Lease 

The District is obligated under certain leases accounted for as operating leases. These leases are generally 
cancelable on an annual basis by the District. Operating leases do not give rise to property rights or lease 
obligations and, therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected as a liability in the Districts 
financial statements. The District has several operating leases for various purposes. Lease expense for all leases of 
the District for the current year was $327,226.  

The following is a summary of operating lease payments for the next year: 

Years Ending June 30, Payment

285,151$   2018

Note 14 -  Health Self-Insurance 

The District is self-insured with respect to health insurance costs. The District implemented the self-insurance 
medical plan on January 1, 2014. Terms of the plan include a stop-loss prevention of $150,000, which limits the 
District’s liability. The following is the activity for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Claims incurred but not reported at beginning of year 590,465
Claims incurred 5,088,736  
Claims paid (5,016,638)  

Claims incurred but not reported at end of year 662,563$   
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Note 15 -  Restatement of Beginning Net Position and Prior Period Adjustment 
 
As of July 1, 2016, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the scope of GASB 68, and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The implementation of these 
standards requires governments calculate and report the cost and obligations associated with these benefit plans in 
their financial statements, including additional note disclosures and required supplementary information. 
Beginning net position was restated to retroactively report the beginning liability. 
 
In 2017, the District determined the construction in progress was overstated, capital assets categorized as 
buildings were understated, and net position was overstated due to an oversite of three building projects that were 
completed as of June 30, 2016. The net position was overstated because amounts were capitalized in buildings 
and the District failed to remove them from construction in progress when the assets were placed in service. 
Beginning construction in progress, capital assets – buildings, and net position were restated to report the correct 
classification of assets and net position. 
 

Net Position - June 30, 2016, as previously reported 31,210,186$    

Restatement due to implementation of GASB Statement No. 73 (1,854,213)       

Restatement due to implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 (9,431,709)       

Restatement due to inaccurate reporting of construction in progress and capital assets (6,725,232)       

Net Position - July 1, 2016, as restated 13,199,032$    

  
 
Note 16 -  Issued But Non-Effective Accounting Pronouncements 
 
The first statement issued but not yet implemented that will significantly affect the District is statement No. 80, 
Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. This Statement 
amends the blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of component units of all state and 
local governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit 
corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. The requirements of this Statement 
enhance the comparability of financial statements among governments. This statement will be implemented at the 
District in the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
The second statement issued but not yet implemented that will significantly affect the District is statement No. 84, 
Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of 
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. 
The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific 
criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how 
business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities. Greater consistency and comparability enhances 
the value provided by the information reported in financial statements for assessing government accountability 
and stewardship. This statement will be implemented at the District in the year ended June 30, 2020. 
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The third statement issued but not yet implemented that will significantly affect the District is statement No. 85, 
Omnibus 2017. The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during 
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics 
including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and 
postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]). The requirements of this 
Statement will enhance consistency in the application of accounting and financial reporting requirements. 
Consistent reporting will improve the usefulness of information for users of state and local government financial 
statements. This statement will be implemented at the District in the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
The final statement issued but not yet implemented that will significantly affect the District is statement No. 87, 
Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement will increase the 
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring reporting of certain lease liabilities that currently are 
not reported. It will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring lessees and 
lessors to report leases under a single model. This Statement also will enhance the decision-usefulness of the 
information provided to financial statement users by requiring notes to financial statements related to the timing, 
significance, and purpose of a government’s leasing arrangements. This statement will be implemented at the 
District in the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Management has not yet determined the effect these pronouncements will have on the District’s financial 
statements. 
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Schedule of Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Last 10 Fiscal Years * 
 

2017

Service cost 358,297$         
Interest 263,235           
Benefit payments (723,495)          

Net change in total OPEB liability (101,963)          

Total OPEB liability - beginning 8,492,157        

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 8,390,194$      

Plan fiduciary net position

Projected investment return 245,456$         
Differences between expected and actual experience 309,008           
Benefit payments (723,495)          
Administrative expense (3,923)              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (172,954)          

Total fiduciary net position - beginning 5,009,306        

Total fiduciary net position - ending (b) 4,836,352$      

District's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 3,553,842$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 57.64%

Covered-employee payroll $37,021,968

District's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.60%

*GASB Statements No. 74/75 require ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 
10-year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available. 
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Note to the Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
 
The District implemented the standard as of June 30, 2017, and as such there has been one valuation performed. 
The valuation date was July 1, 2016, and the measurement date was June 30, 2017. There have been no changes 
to plan provisions, assumptions, or methods since the prior report except for the following: 
 
Changes of assumptions since prior measurement date: 
 

• The discount rate was changed from 5.50% to 3.10%. 
• The health care trends were changed to better anticipate short term and long term medical increases. 
• The mortality table was updated from RP 2000 projected to 2014 with Scale BB to the RP-2014 White 

Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2015 Generational Improvement Scale. 
 
Change in actuarial funding method from the prior measurement date: 
 

• The actuarial cost method was changed from projected unit credit to entry age as prescribed by GASB 
74/75. 
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Schedule of District OPEB Contributions, Last 10 Fiscal Years * 
 

2017

Actuarially determined contribution -$                     

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution -                       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     

Covered-employee payroll
$37,021,968

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 0.00%

 
*GASB Statements No. 74/75 require ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 
10-year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available. 
 
Note to the Schedule of District Contributions 
 
Valuation date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, 2017. 

 
Actuarial cost method   Entry Age, level percentage of pay 

 
Amortization method  Average of expected remaining service on a closed basis for differences between 

expected and actual experience and assumption changes. Closed five-year period 
for differences between expected and actual asset returns. 

 
Amortization period   20 years 

 
Asset valuation method   Closed five-year period 

 
Inflation    2.50 percent 

 
Healthcare cost trend rates  6.75 percent in 2016 grading to 5.00 percent over 7 years  
 
Salary increases  3.00 percent  
 
Investment rate of return  4.90 percent (net of investment expenses) 
 
Retirement age  In the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of general 

employees were adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. 
 
Mortality  RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2015 Generational 

Improvement Scale 
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Schedule of Changes in Supplemental Benefits Liability, Last 10 Fiscal Years * 
 

2017

Pension-related benefits liability, beginning of year 1,154,539        

Service cost 34,826             
Interest cost 29,552             
Assumption changes -                       
Plan changes -                       
Employer contributions -                       
Projected investment return -                       
Differences between expected and actual experience -                       
Benefit payments (343,143)          
Administrative expenses -                       
Other changes -                       

Pension-related benefits liability, end of year 875,774$         

* GASB Statement No. 73 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10- 
year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available. 

 
Schedule of Supplemental Benefits Liability, Last 10 Fiscal Years * 
 

2017

Pension-related benefits liability 875,774$         

Covered-employee payroll 2,539,218$      

Pension-related benefits liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 34.49%

There are no assets accumulated in an irrevocable trust to pay plan benefits. 
 
* GASB Statement No. 73 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10- 
year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available. 
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Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

Employer's
Proportionate Proportionate

Employer's Employer's Share (Amount) Share of the Net
Proportion Proportionate of the Net Pension Liability Plan Fiduciary

(Percentage) Share (Amount) Pension Liability Employer's (Asset) as a Net Position as
of the Net of the Net Associated Covered- Percentage of a Percentage of

Measurement Pension Liability Pension Liability With District Total (d) Employee its Covered- the Total Pension
Pension Plan Date (Asset) (Asset) (a) (b) (a+b) Payroll (e)** Payroll (a/e)** Liability

PERA 6/30/2016 0.1677% 13,616,408$     N/A 13,616,408$    10,447,075$    130.3% 68.9%
PERA 6/30/2015 0.1669% 8,649,624$       N/A 8,649,624$      9,880,221$      87.5% 78.2%
PERA 6/30/2014 0.1776% 8,342,758$       N/A 8,342,758$      9,367,394$      89.1% 78.8%

TRA 6/30/2016 0.5811% 138,606,215$   13,911,854$     152,518,069$  30,784,935$    450.2% 44.9%
TRA 6/30/2015 0.5651% 34,957,024$     4,287,712$       39,244,736$    29,133,620$    120.0% 76.8%
TRA 6/30/2014 0.5887% 27,126,872$     1,908,296$       29,035,168$    27,272,769$    99.5% 81.5%

*GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available. 
 
 
Schedule of Employer’s Contributions 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

Contributions in Contributions as
Relation to the a Percentage of

Statutorily Statutorily Contribution Covered- Covered-
Required Required Deficiency Employee Employee

Fiscal Year Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Pension Plan Ending (a) (b) (a-b) (d) ** (b/d) **

PERA 6/30/2017 854,196$          854,196$          -$                      11,492,596$    7.4%
PERA 6/30/2016 782,398$          782,398$          -$                      10,447,075$    7.5%
PERA 6/30/2015 727,148$          727,148$          -$                      9,880,221$      7.4%

TRA 6/30/2017 2,430,765$       2,430,765$       -$                      32,686,882$    7.4%
TRA 6/30/2016 2,286,341$       2,286,341$       -$                      30,784,935$    7.4%
TRA 6/30/2015 2,168,081$       2,168,081$       -$                      29,133,620$    7.4%

*GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available. 
 
Notes to the Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Employer’s 
Contributions 
 
Since the last actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, the following have been changed: 
 

• PERA’s CAFR may be obtained on the PERA’s website at www.mnpera.org for notes to the Schedule of 
Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Employer’s Contributions. 

• TRA’s CAFR may be obtained on the TRA’s website at www.MinnesotaTRA.org for notes to the Schedule 
of Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Employer’s Contributions. 

• Covered payroll has been retrospectively restated for all years presented to conform to the definition of 
covered payroll as clarified in GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues. 

 
**Covered payroll as restated to conform to GASB Statement No. 82. 
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Combining and Individual Fund Schedules 
June 30, 2017 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
 

129



Dr
aft

 

68 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

General Fund 
Schedule of Changes in UFARS Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Fund Balance Fund Balance
(Deficit) (Deficit)

Beginning of Net Change in End of 
 Year  Fund Balance  Year 

Nonspendable 85,913$           (25,310)$          60,603$           

Restricted for deferred maintenance 677,693           (677,693)          -                       

Restricted for health and safety (692,088)          275,719           (416,369)          

Restricted for operating capital 200,000           (26,445)            173,555           

Restricted for safe schools 195,202           (5,553)              189,649           

Restricted for staff development -                       60,775             60,775

Restricted for long-term facilities maintenance -                       704,196           704,196

Committed for severance obligation 1,200,000        -                       1,200,000        

Assigned for health insurance and affordable care act 500,000           -                       500,000           

Assigned for capital projects 3,000,000        -                       3,000,000        

Unassigned 11,679,563      2,028,452        13,708,015      

16,846,283$    2,334,141$      19,180,424$    
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2017 

 
 

Community OPEB Debt
Food Service  Service  Service Fund Totals

Assets
Cash and investments 1,175,454$      1,118,812$      848,360$         3,142,626$      
Receivables

Current property taxes -                       266,496           861,044           1,127,540        
Delinquent property taxes -                       2,889               12,529             15,418             
Due from other governmental units -                       128,161           140,046           268,207           

Prepaid expenditures 221 2,250               -                       2,471               
Inventories 25,338             -                       -                       25,338             

Total assets 1,201,013$      1,518,608$      1,861,979$      4,581,600$      

Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,598$             17,413$           -$                     20,011$           
Salaries payable 64,213             84,393             -                       148,606           
Unearned revenue 60,319             20,226             -                       80,545             

Total liabilities 127,130           122,032           -                       249,162           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue-property taxes -                       468,055           1,515,474        1,983,529        

Fund Balance
Nonspendable 25,559             2,250               -                       27,809             
Restricted 1,048,324        926,271           346,505           2,321,100        

Total fund balance 1,073,883        928,521           346,505           2,348,909        

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balance 1,201,013$      1,518,608$      1,861,979$      4,581,600$      
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Community OPEB Debt
Food Service  Service  Service Fund Totals

Revenues
Local property tax levies -$                     284,883$         1,236,616$      1,521,499$      
Other local and county sources 21,329             499,340           -                       520,669           
State sources 170,682           1,097,805        -                       1,268,487        
Federal sources 1,820,465        27,361             -                       1,847,826        
Sales and other conversion of assets 1,188,394        -                       -                       1,188,394        
Miscellaneous -                       -                       214,343           214,343           

Total revenues 3,200,870        1,909,389        1,450,959        6,561,218        

Expenditures
Community education and service -                       1,718,849        -                       1,718,849        
Pupil support services 2,828,801        -                       -                       2,828,801        
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs -                       -                       1,491,950        1,491,950        

Total expenditures 2,828,801        1,718,849        1,491,950        6,039,600        

Net Change in Fund Balance 372,069           190,540           (40,991)            521,618           

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 701,814           737,981           387,496           1,827,291        

Fund Balance, End of Year 1,073,883$      928,521$         346,505$         2,348,909$      
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Other Supplementary Information 
June 30, 2017 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Changes in Student Activity Cash Balances 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Balance Receipts and Disbursements Balance
Activity 7/1/16  and Transfers  and Transfers 6/30/17

6th Grade Activities (A) 286$                1,317$             1,603$             -$                     
6th Grade Activities (B) 556                  773                  1,329               -                       
6th Grade Activities (C) 361                  735                  1,064               32                    
7th Grade Activities (A) 143                  873                  857                  159                  
7th Grade Activities (B) 786                  1,175               1,173               788                  
7th Grade Activities (C) 386                  675                  523                  538                  
8th Grade Activities (A) 817                  125                  478                  464                  
8th Grade Activities (B) -                       796                  502                  294                  
8th Grade Activities (C) -                       6,569               1,655               4,914               
Adapted Bowling -                       125                  67                    58                    
APL Project 8,561               5,203               4,863               8,901               
APL Project - Sr. High 431                  1,425               1,707               149                  
Apollo Strings 151,778           207,877           308,953           50,702             
Auditorium Technology 2,837               -                       2,837               -                       
Band - Jr. High 7,761               16,075             13,742             10,094             
Band - Sr. High 48,458             98,151             118,588           28,021             
Baseball Club 5,210               35,058             36,988             3,280               
Basketball - Boys 1,988               45,400             35,177             12,211             
Basketball - Girls 6,889               40,812             33,971             13,730             
Caps & Gowns 1,116               1,032               2,148               -                       
Choir - Sr. High 2,043               12,038             11,336             2,745               
Chokio 413                  16,219             16,632             -                       
Clay Targets -                       12,223             10,946             1,277               
Cross Country 3,581               9,340               11,816             1,105               
CTIC Activity Fund -                       140                  -                       140                  
Danceline 1,859               9,847               10,189             1,517               
Destination Imagination 574                  25                    4                      595                  
DI Globals 1,045               180                  812                  413                  
DW Students in Need -                       15,272             15,222             50                    
DW Special Events -                       3,000               3,000               -                       
Fine Arts - Sr. High 331                  3                      334                  -                       
First Lego League -                       284                  284                  -                       
Football Club 25,605             54,781             77,134             3,252               
Golf - Boys Sr. High 3,909               9,731               9,398               4,242               
Golf - Girls Sr. High 18                    500                  79                    439                  
Gymnastics Club 5,084               4,729               3,609               6,204               
Hall of Honor -                       3,285               3,298               (13)                   
Hockey - Boys 999                  47,083             39,645             8,437               
Honor Choir - Jr. High 13,125             27,609             22,899             17,835             
Hopkins Safety Patrol 2,383               -                       13                    2,370               
Hopkins Ptac 172                  3,987               3,859               300                  
Hopkins Ptac 188 29                    1,476               1,466               39                     
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Changes in Student Activity Cash Balances 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Balance Receipts and Disbursements Balance
Activity 7/1/16  and Transfers  and Transfers 6/30/17

Horizon Art Club 43                    -                       -                       43                    
Horizon Grade 6 Dean 314                  75                    122                  267                  
Horizon Grade 7 Dean 297                  75                    106                  266                  
Horizon Grade 8 Dean 93                    99                    192                  -                       
Horizon KIVA Service Learning -                       2,498               2,498               -                       
Horizon Project Success 1                      -                       -                       1                      
Horizon Science Olympiad -                       78                    78                    -                       
Horizon Visiting Auth 17                    550                  560                  7                      
Horizon West Yearbook -                       90                    -                       90                    
Interest -                       2,109               2,109               -                       
Intramurals 2,422               243                  -                       2,665               
Journalism 7,298               4,596               2,871               9,023               
Knowledge Bowl 2,972               2,881               58                    5,795               
Media - Jr. High 220                  167                  2                      385                  
MHS Store 421                  -                       2                      419                  
MHS Literacy Committee 264                  -                       4                      260                  
MHS Pride 1,543               350                  1,305               588                  
MHS Robotics 1,225               5,484               6,709               -                       
Nordic Skiing -                       2,874               171                  2,703               
Orchestra - Jr. High 127                  33,808             26,762             7,173               
Orchestra - Horizon Donations -                       16,470             7,978               8,492               
PBIS - Horizon 2,906               5,530               8,436               -                       
PCE PTAC -                       557                  489                  68                    
Physical Education Uniforms 680                  6,278               6,958               -                       
Plays - Sr. High 3,823               61,580             64,361             1,042               
Plays - Sr. High Spring 541                  5,958               5,446               1,053               
Positive Incentives - Jr. High 1                      -                       -                       1                      
Power Club 83                    5,255               3,930               1,408               
Robert Asp Ptac 153                  1,341               1,494               -                       
Robert Asp Safety Patrol 2,244               -                       520                  1,724               
Robert Asp Yearbook -                       5,057               13                    5,044               
RRALC Pay 199                  -                       1                      198                  
RRALC Store 4,408               487                  23                    4,872               
SADD 1,381               1,000               484                  1,897               
Skills USA 2,776               4,750               890                  6,636               
Service Enhancement Club 2,499               1,200               526                  3,173               
Service Learning 3,320               4,311               28                    7,603               
SGR PTAC 189 1,188               3,221               3,461               948                  
SGR Safety Patrol 2,631               -                       14                    2,617               
Soccer - Boys 1,533               3,097               3,642               988                  
Soccer - Girls 1,209               3,315               3,565               959                  
Softball 1,807               2,084               3,049               842                  
Spanish Club 4,605               -                       4,457               148                  
Spanish Club - Jr. High 488                  -                       2                      486                  
Speech -                       40,803             27,822             12,981              
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Changes in Student Activity Cash Balances 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Balance Receipts and Disbursements Balance
Activity 7/1/16  and Transfers  and Transfers 6/30/17

Stadium Celebration 201                  -                       201                  -                       
STEP - Jr. High 429                  -                       2                      427                  
Student Council - Jr. High 12,109             4,831               13,338             3,602               
Student Council - Sr. High 15,633             7,525               8,029               15,129             
Swimming - Boys 1,417               7,333               8,750               -                       
Swimming - Girls -                       27,460             25,180             2,280               
Theatre Arts - Jr. High 37,381             46,665             38,761             45,285             
Theatre Trips 10,501             45,069             55,570             -                       
Track - Boys 206                  125                  10                    321                  
Track - Girls 1,732               550                  18                    2,264               
Volleyball 1,662               17,030             18,692             -                       
Wrestling Club 11,363             11,772             19,810             3,325               
Yearbook - PCE 3,489               2,275               5,275               489                  
Yearbook - Jr. High 24,055             16,414             11,858             28,611             

475,444$         1,111,268$      1,206,832$      379,880$         
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Uniform Accounting and Reporting Standards Compliance Table 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Federal Pass Through
Federal Grantor/Program Title  CFDA Number  Number Expenditures

Department of Agriculture
Passed through Minnesota Department of Education

Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities):
Food Distribution 10.553 0152-01-000 43,240$       

Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 0152-01-000 FIN 705 302,283       
National School Lunch Program 10.555 0152-01-000 FIN 701 257,312       
National School Lunch Program - Snack Program 10.555 0152-01-000 FIN 702 5,333           
National School Lunch Program - Free/Reduced 10.555 0152-01-000 FIN 701 968,852       
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 0152-01-000 FIN 709 71,948         

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 1,648,968$   

Total Department of Agriculture 1,648,968$   

Department of Education
Direct

Indian Education - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.060 N/A 52,460          

Passed through Minnesota Department of Education
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002 0152-01-000 FIN 438 27,361          

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0152-01-000 FIN 401 1,050,671    
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0152-01-000 FIN 406 43,013         

Total Title I Cluster 1,093,684     

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 0152-01-000 FIN 419 1,441,256    
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 0152-01-000 FIN 420 28,120         

Total Special Education Cluster 1,469,376     

Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families 84.181 0152-01-000 FIN 422 162,183        

English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 0152-01-000 FIN 417 37,258          

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 0152-01-000 FIN 414 204,171        

Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 0152-01-000 FIN 863 56,108          

Total Department of Education 3,102,601     

Department of Health and Human Resources
Passed through Minnesota Department of Education

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 0152-01-000 FIN 372 584,423        

Total expenditures of federal awards 5,335,992$   
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
Note A – Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the District 
and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. The District received federal awards indirectly 
through pass-through entities. Federal financial assistance provided to a subrecipient is treated as an expenditure 
when it is paid to the subrecipient. 
 
 
Note B – Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Governmental fund types account for the District’s federal grant activity. Therefore, expenditures in the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards are recognized on the modified accrual basis – when they become a demand on 
current available financial resources. The District’s summary of significant accounting policies is presented in 
Note 1 in the District’s basis financial statements.  
 
The District has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate. 
 
 
Note C – Food Distribution 
 
Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards at the fair market value of 
commodities received and disbursed. At June 30, 2017, the district had food commodities totaling $25,338 in 
inventory. 
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Additional Reports 
June 30, 2017 

Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
The School Board of 
Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Moorhead, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Independent School District 
No. 152, Moorhead Area Public Schools (The District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated [DATE]. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs items, 
2017-A, 2017-B, 2017-C, and 2017-D to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Response to Findings 
The District's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs and in the District's Corrective Action Plan, which is in a separate 
document. The District’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
[DATE] 
 

142



Dr
aft

 

79 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on 
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

 
 
The School Board of 
Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Moorhead, Minnesota 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The District’s major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility  
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal program. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance for the District’s major federal program 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major Federal program for the year ended June 
30, 2017. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.  
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2017-001 that we consider to be a material weakness. 
 
The District’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and in the District’s Corrective 
Action Plan, which is in a separate document. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
[DATE] 
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Report on Compliance over 
Financial Reporting of the Student Activity Accounts 

 
 
The School Board of 
Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Moorhead, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the provisions of the Manual for Activity Fund 
Accounting (MAFA), the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Independent School District No. 152, Moorhead Area Public 
Schools, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated [DATE]. 
 
Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s student activity accounts are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of the district's compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of student activity amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Finding 
2017-E in the attached Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs was noted to be in noncompliance 
through testing of these requirements. 
 
Response to Finding 
The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs and in the District’s Corrective Action Plan. The District’s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Education, the 
Minnesota Department of Education, and other state agencies and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
[DATE] 
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Report on Minnesota Legal Compliance 
 
 
The School Board of 
Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 
Moorhead, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of as of Independent School 
District No. 152 Moorhead Area Public Schools as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated [DATE]. 
 
The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the State 
Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested:  contracting 
and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and 
disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and uniform financial accounting and reporting standards for 
school districts. Our audit considered all of the listed categories. 
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the District 
failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political 
Subdivisions, except as described in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2017-F. 
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. 
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention 
regarding the District’s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.  
 
The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs and in the District’s Corrective Action Plan, which is in a separate 
document. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
[DATE] 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 

 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516: Yes

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program CFDA Number

Title 1 84.010
Child Nutrition Cluster 10.553, 10.555, 10.559

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 
Material Weakness 
 
2017-A  Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
Condition – The District does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the preparation of the 
financial statements being audited. The auditors were requested to, and did, draft the financial statements and 
accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
 
Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for internally preparing 
the District’s financial statements. 
 
Effect – The disclosures in the financial statements could be incomplete. 
 
Cause – The District does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the preparation of the 
financial statements being audited. 
 
Recommendation – It is the responsibility of management and those charged with governance to make the 
decision whether to accept the degree of risk associated with this condition because of cost or other 
considerations. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
 
 
Material Weakness 
 
2017-B  Significant Journal Entries 
 
Condition – During the course of our engagement, we proposed material audit adjustments that were not 
identified as a result of the District’s existing internal controls, and therefore could have resulted in a material 
misstatement of the District’s financial statements.  
 
Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for recording and 
processing entries material to the financial statements. 
 
Effect – This deficiency could result in a misstatement to the financial statements that would not be prevented or 
detected. 
 
Cause – The District does not have an internal control system designed to identify all necessary adjustments. 
 
Recommendation – A thorough review and reconciliation of accounts in each fund should take place prior to the 
beginning of the audit. This review should be performed at both the accounting staff and accounting supervisor 
levels. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
Material Weakness 
 
2017-C  Segregation of Duties 
 
Condition – The District does not adequately separate duties when posting journal entries. 
 
Criteria – A good system of internal control requires an adequate segregation of duties so that no one individual 
has incompatible responsibilities. No one person should have more than one duty relating to the authorization 
(approval), custody of assets (check signers), record keeping, and reconciliation functions. 
 
Effect – Inadequate segregation of duties could adversely affect the District's ability to detect misstatements in 
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements in a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions. 
 
Cause – Journal entries are prepared and posted by the same individual with no review of these entries.  
 
Recommendation – The accounting functions should be reviewed to determine if additional segregation of duties 
is feasible and to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of financial management and financial statement 
accuracy for the District. Segregation of authorization, custody of assets, record keeping and reconciliation 
functions would assist in mitigating the risk of fraud or misstatements to the financial statements.  
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
 
 
Material Weakness 
 
2017-D  Prior Period Adjustment 
 
Condition –A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for calculating and 
reviewing manual journal entries related to implicit rate subsidy payments. 
 
Criteria – During the course of our engagement, an adjustment to beginning of the year net position, construction 
in progress, and capital assets categorized as buildings due to the District inaccurately reporting three building 
projects.  
 
Effect – This deficiency could result in a misstatement to the financial statements that would not be prevented or 
detected. 
 
Cause – The District does not have an internal control system designed to identify all necessary adjustments. 
 
Recommendation – A thorough review and reconciliation of accounts and calculated entries in each fund should 
take place prior to the beginning of the audit. This review should be done at both the accounting staff and 
accounting supervisor levels. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance 
 
2017-001 Eligibility 
 
Federal program information: 
 

CFDA Contract Award
Federal Agency Number Program Title Number Year

Department of Agriculture

10.553

10.555

10.559

Child Nutrition Cluster 2017

0152-01-000 FIN 473

0152-01-000 FIN 701

0152-01-000 FIN 702

0152-01-000 FIN 705
0152-01-000 FIN 709

Criteria – Uniform Single Audit guidance requires recipients of federal funds to have appropriate internal controls 
to ensure all free and reduced applications meet the income eligibility guidelines provided by the USDA. 
 
Condition – During the course of the year ended June 30, 2017, the District did not have a process in place to 
provide evidence of a review function for the online applications and electronic calculations submitted for free 
and reduced meals. 
 
Cause – The District’s controls are not adequate to ensure that all applications are reviewed to confirm that they 
are eligible based upon approved income guidelines. 
 
Effect – Lacking controls could lead to noncompliance with the requirements of this programs could require the 
return of grant funds to the grantor agency. 
 
Questioned Costs – None 
 
Context/Sampling – A nonstatistical sample of 40 participants out of 2,900 participants were selected for 
eligibility testing. 
 
Repeat Finding from Prior Years – No 
 
Recommendation – We recommend the District design and implement internal controls and provide evidence of 
that review to ensure all free and reduced applications are accurately calculated to ensure the income entered is 
within the USDA income eligibility guideline for the effective year. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
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Independent School District No. 152 
Moorhead Area Public Schools 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Section IV – Student Activities 

2017-E Negative Student Activity Account Balance 

Condition – During the course of our engagement, we discovered a student activity account that had a negative 
balance at year-end. 

Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for compliance with the 
MAFA guidelines of requiring that no individual activity accounts operate with a negative balance at the end of 
the fiscal year without a signed written plan prior to year-end. Page 19 of the MAFA guidelines describes the 
requirements for activity balances. 

Effect – The finding could result in student activity funding being misused. 

Cause – The District did not follow procedures to prevent individual accounts from having negative balances at 
the end of the fiscal year. 

Recommendation – A thorough policy requiring the review of individual activity accounts ensuring that no 
account have a negative balance at the end of the year should be adopted and followed. A written plan which 
provides assurance the student activity fund has future funding should be prepared and signed prior to year-end. 

Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 

Section V – Minnesota Legal Compliance Findings 

2017-F Inadequate Pledged Collateral 

Condition – Minnesota statutes require that all deposits be protected by federal deposit insurance, corporate surety 
bond, or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by federal 
deposit insurance or corporate security bonds. The District’s pledged collateral did not meet this requirement at 
June 30, 2017 for US Bank. The District’s deposits were under collateralized at US Bank by approximately 
$191,400 at June 30, 2017. 

Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for monitoring the 
requirements of pledged collateral. 

Effect – The District was not in compliance with Minnesota statutes. Additionally, noncompliance increases the 
custodial risk of the District. 

Cause – The District does not have an internal control system designed to properly monitor the requirements of 
pledged collateral. 

Recommendation – The District needs to periodically review its pledged collateral to ensure compliance. 

Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
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 TO: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent of Finance and
Operations

 FROM: Office of Finance and Operations

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Certification of Final 2017 Payable 2018 Property Tax Levy 

  

Assistant

Superintendent of

Finance and Operations

Memo

OASFO.18.037R

 

School districts are no longer required to hold a separate Truth in Taxation hearing or continuation
hearing. Districts are required to discuss the levy and the current year's budget at a regularly scheduled
board meeting and allow public to speak; this will occur at the upcoming meeting on December 11, 2017
at 7:00 pm. The final levy certification will be adopted at the same meeting.
 
The School Board approved the preliminary tax levy on September 19, 2017. The next step in the levy
certification process requires the School Board to certify the district's final 2017 Payable 2018 Property
Tax Levy by December 31, 2017. Attached please find the Levy Limitation and Certification Report
provided by the Minnesota Department of Education. The amount that will be levied for each of the
categories and the total levy are listed below:
 

General - RMV Voter Exemp $1,500,666.40

General - RMV Other Exemp  $4,639,695.21

General - NTC Other GENED $0.00

General - NTC Other Exemp $3,995,402.73

Community Service - Other Exemp $478,304.33

Debt - Voter Noexemp $6,933,006.85

OPEB/Pension - Other Noexempt $1,350,532.57

Total Levy $18,897,608.09

 

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the certification of the final 2017 Payable 2018 Property Tax
Levy in the amount of $18,897,608.09.
 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
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BML:dmb

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Moorhead Pay 2018 TNT Presentation Cover Memo

MDE: Levy Limitation and Certification 2017 Payable 2018 Cover Memo

MDE: Levy Limitation and Certification Signature sheet Cover Memo
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M
oorhead Area Public Schools 

Public H
earing for Taxes Payable in 2018


D
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P
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Tax H
earing PresentaPon


	 State Law
 Requires Public M

eePng:

• 

Betw
een N

ovem
ber 24

th and D
ecem

ber 
28

th 


• 
AV

er 6:00 PM



• 
M

ay be part of regularly scheduled 
m

eePng


• 
M

ay adopt final levy at sam
e m

eePng


	 State Law
 Requires PresentaPon of:


• 
Current year budget


• 
Prior year actual revenue &

 
expenditures


• 
Proposed property tax levy including %

 
increase


• 
Specific purposes &

 reasons taxes are 
being increased


*State Law
 also requires the district allow

 
for public com

m
ent
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Agenda for 
H

earing


A. 
Background on School Funding, Property Tax 
Levies, and Budgets


B. 
Inform

aPon on D
istrict Budget


C. 
Inform

aPon on D
istrict’s Proposed Tax Levy for 

Taxes Payable in 2018


D
. 

Public Com
m

ents and Q
uesPons







156



Background 
Inform

aPon 
____________


M
innesota Public EducaPon is Strong


• 
State law

 requires all juniors and seniors be 
off

ered the ACT at no cost, but test is no longer 
m

andatory


• 
In 2017, 90%

 of M
innesota graduates took the 

ACT w
ith an average com

posite score of 21.5, 
highest score am

ong 17 states w
here every 

eligible student takes exam
 


• 
N

aPonal com
posite score for 2017 is 21.0 based 

on 60%
 of 2017 graduaPng seniors taking the 

ACT  
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M
innesota Public EducaPon is Strong


• 
State law

 requires all juniors and seniors be off
ered the ACT at no cost, but 

test is no longer m
andatory


• 
In 2017, 90%

 of M
innesota graduates took the ACT w

ith an average com
posite 

score of 21.5, highest score am
ong 17 states w

here every eligible student 
takes exam

 


• 
N

aPonal com
posite score for 2017 is 21.0 based on 60%

 of 2017 graduaPng 
seniors taking the ACT  
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Public Schools Established by 
M

innesota ConsPtuPon

	 ARTICLE XIII

	 M

ISCELLAN
EO

U
S SU

BJECTS


	 SecPon 1

	 “U

N
IFO

RM
 SYSTEM

 O
F PU

BLIC SCH
O

O
LS. The stability of a republican form

 of 
governm

ent depending m
ainly upon the intelligence of the people, it is the duty 

of the legislature to establish a general and uniform
 system

 of public schools. The 
legislature shall m

ake such provisions by taxaPon or otherw
ise as w

ill secure a 
thorough and effi

cient system
 of public schools throughout the state.”
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As a result…
 




	 State Sets:

• 

Form
ulas w

hich determ
ine revenue; m

ost 
revenue based on specified am

ounts per pupil


• 
Tax policy for local schools


• 
M

axim
um

 authorized property tax levy (districts 
can levy less but not m

ore than am
ount 

authorized by state, unless approved by voters)


	 State also authorizes school board to subm
it 

referendum
s for operaPng and capital needs to 

voters for approval


School funding is highly 
regulated by the state
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Challenge: State Set Basic G
eneral 

EducaPon Form
ula Lags InflaPon


• 
Since 2003, state is G

eneral EducaPon Revenue form
ula has not kept pace 

w
ith inflaPon


• 
For FY 2018 and FY 2019, Legislature approved an increase of 2%

 per year


o 
$121 per pupil unit in FY 2018 


o 
An addiPonal $124 for FY 2019


• 
Per-pupil allow

ance for Fiscal Year 2019 w
ould need to increase by another 

$596 (9.4%
) to have kept pace w

ith inflaPon since 2003
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Basic G
eneral EducaPon 

Form
ula Lags InflaPon
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U
nderfunding of Special EducaPon


• 
M

D
E reports cost of providing special educaPon program

s w
as underfunded 

by $697 m
illion, or an average of 40%

 underfunded 


• 
TranslaPng into a statew

ide average funding shors
all of $5,783 per special 

educaPon student


• 
U

nderfunding of special educaPon costs necessitates a transfer from
 regular 

program
 resources to support an underfunded program

 m
andated by state 

and federal law



• 
Prim

ary opPons to bridge special educaPon funding gap are to cut regular 
program

 budgets or increase referendum
 revenue, m

ost districts have done 
both
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Result: G
row

ing D
ependence on 

Referendum
 Revenue


• 
In 1993, 65%

 of districts had operaPng referendum
 revenue averaging $332 

per pupil


• 
For 2017-18, all M

innesota districts have referendum
 revenue and/or local 

opPonal revenue levy authority averaging $1,296 per pupil 


o 
20.5%

 of general educaPon form
ula allow

ance


o 
O

f this am
ount, $879 is board approved or voter approved operaPng 

referendum
, and $417 is Local O

pPonal Revenue
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Change in Tax Levy D
oes not D

eterm
ine 

Change in Budget

• 

Tax	levy	is	based	on	m
any	state-determ

ined	form
ulas	plus	voter	approved	

referendum
s	

• 
Som

e	increases	in	tax	levies	are	revenue	neutral,	offset	by	reduc:ons	in	state	aid	

• 
Expenditure	budget	is	lim

ited	by	state-set	revenue	form
ulas,	voter-approved	levies,	

and	fund	balance	

• 
An	increase	in	school	taxes	does	not	alw

ays	correlate	to	an	equal	increase	in	budget	
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School D
istrict Levy Cycle D

iffers from
 

City/County Levy Cycle

	 City/County:

• 

Budget Year sam
e as calendar year


• 
2018 taxes provide revenue for 2018 
calendar year budget


	 Schools:

• 

Budget year begins July 1st and 
coincides w

ith school year  


• 
2018 taxes provide revenue for 
2018-2019 school fiscal year  


• 
Budget w

ill be adopted in June 2018
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Budget 
Inform

aPon 
____________


	 O
ur D

istrict’s Funds:


• 
G

eneral 


• 
Food Service


• 
Com

m
unity Service


• 
Building ConstrucPon


• 
D

ebt Service


• 
Internal Service *


• 
O

PEB Trust Fund *


• 
O

PEB D
ebt Fund


*A
nnual budgets are not prepared for these funds 

Because approval of school 
district budget lags cerPficaPon 
of tax levy by six m

onths, state 
requires only current year 
budget inform

a<on and prior 
year actual financial results be 
presented at this hearing.


All school districts’ budgets are 
divided into separate funds 
based on purposes of revenue, 
as required by law

.
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FISCAL 2017
2016-17 ACTUAL

2016-17 ACTUAL
JUNE 30,2017

2017-18 BUDGET
2017-18 BUDGET

JUNE 30,2018
FU

N
D

BEGINNING
REVENUES AND

EXPENDITURES &
ACTUAL FUND

REVENUES AND
EXPENDITURES &

PRO
JECTED

FUND BALANCES
TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFERS O
UT

BALANCE
TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFERS O
UT

FUND BALANCE

G
eneral Fund/R

estricted
$3,380,807

$5,418,370
$8,066,449

$732,728
$4,090,478

$4,139,521
$683,685

G
eneral Fund/O

ther
13,465,476

    
73,978,487

      
68,996,267

      
18,447,696

      
73,271,968

      
76,467,960

      
15,251,704

      

Food Service Fund
701,814

         
3,200,869

        
2,828,800

        
1,073,883

        
3,027,870

        
3,013,420

        
1,088,333

        

C
om

m
unity Service Fund

737,979
         

2,009,389
        

1,818,849
        

928,519
           

1,963,710
        

1,936,270
        

955,959
           

B
uilding C

onstruction Fund
71,294,970

    
563,641

           
43,262,665

      
28,595,946

      
250,000

           
27,000,000

      
1,845,946

        

D
ebt Service Fund

1,416,705
      

7,330,411
        

6,970,751
        

1,776,365
        

7,357,501
        

7,078,800
        

2,055,066
        

Internal Service Fund
(144,769)

        
 

551,988
           

600,000
           

O
PEB

 Irrevocable Trust Fund
5,009,306

      
548,843

           
723,496

           
4,834,653

        
525,000

           
600,000

           
4,759,653

        

O
PEB

 D
ebt Service Fund

387,495
         

1,450,959
        

1,491,950
        

346,504
           

1,572,900
        

1,498,500
        

420,904
           

Total All Funds
$96,260,098

$94,500,974
$134,159,226

$57,298,603
$92,059,432

$121,734,471
$27,671,576

M
oorhead A

rea P
ublic S

chools
D

istrict R
evenues and E

xpenditures
A

ctual for FY 2017, B
udget for FY 2018
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G
eneral	Fund

$77,362,446
84.0%

Food	Service
$3,027,870

3.3%

Com
m
unity	Service

$1,963,710
2.1%

Building	Construction
$250,000
0.3%

Debt	Redem
ption

$7,357,501
8.0%

O
PEB	Trust
$525,000
0.6%

O
PEB	Debt	Redem

ption
$1,572,900

1.7%

M
oorhead A

rea P
ublic S

chools
R

evenue all Funds
2017-18 B

udget $92,059,432
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State	Aid
$64,704,457

83.6%

Property	Taxes
$8,244,428

10.7%

Federal	Aid
$2,978,341

3.8%

O
ther

$1,435,220
1.9%

M
oorhead A

rea P
ublic S

chools
G

eneral Fund R
evenue

2017-18 B
udget $77,362,446
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Regular	Instruction
$33,456,610

41.5%

Exceptional	Instruction
$17,915,790

22.2%

Pupil	Support	Services
$6,495,340

8.1%

Instructional	Support
$3,024,160

3.8%

Adm
in/District	Support
$5,322,590

6.6%

Site,	Building	&
	Equipm

ent
$14,392,991

17.9%

M
oorhead A

rea P
ublic S

chools 
G

eneral Fund E
xpenditures by P

rogram
2017-18 B

udget $80,607,481
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Salaries	and	W
ages

$47,129,850
58.5%

Em
ployee	Benefits
$13,099,410

16.3%

Supplies	&
	M

aterials
$3,840,160

4.8%

Purchased	Services
$7,698,540

9.6%

Capital	Expenditures
$8,839,521

11.0%

M
oorhead A

rea Public Schools 
G

eneral Fund Expenditure by O
bject

2017-18 B
udget $80,607,481
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Payable 
2018 

Property Tax 
Levy

 
____________




• D
eterm

inaPon of levy


• Com
parison of 2017 to 2018 levies


• Specific reasons for changes in tax levy

• Im

pact on taxpayers
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Property Tax Background

• 

Every ow
ner of taxable property pays property taxes to various “taxing 

jurisdicPons” (county, city/tow
nship, school district, special districts) in w

hich 
property is located


• 
Each taxing jurisdicPon sets ow

n tax levy, oV
en based on lim

its in state law



• 
County sends bills, collects taxes from

 property ow
ners, and distributes funds 

back to other taxing jurisdicPons
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School D
istrict Property Taxes


• 
Each school district m

ay levy taxes in over 30 diff
erent categories


• 
“Levy lim

its” (m
axim

um
 levy am

ounts) for each category are set by:


o 
State law




o 
Voter approval


• 
M

innesota D
epartm

ent of EducaPon (M
D

E) calculates detailed levy lim
its for 

each district
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Property Tax Background

School D

istrict Property Taxes


• 
Key steps in process are sum

m
arized on next slide


• 
Any of these steps m

ay aff
ect the taxes on a parcel of property, but district has 

control over only 1 of the 7 steps
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Schedule of Events in Approval of 
D

istrict’s 2017 (Payable 2018) Tax Levy

• 

Septem
ber 8: M

D
E prepared and distributed first draV

 of levy lim
it report 

sew
ng m

axim
um

 authorized levy


• 
Septem

ber  18: School board approved proposed levy am
ounts


• 
M

id-N
ovem

ber: County m
ailed “Proposed Property Tax Statem

ents” to all 
property ow

ners 


• 
D

ecem
ber 11: Public hearing on proposed levy at regular m

eePng 


• 
Follow

ing hearing, School Board w
ill cerPfy final levy am

ounts


179



O
verview

 of Proposed Levy  
Payable in 2018 


• 
The total 2018 proposed property tax levy w

ill increase from
 2017 by 

$1,235,938, or 7.0%



• 
State law

 requires that w
e explain the reasons for the m

ajor increases in the 
levy


• 
Som

e decreases in specific levies w
ill also be explained
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M
o

o
rh

ead
 A

rea P
u

b
lic S

ch
o

o
ls

C
om

parison of P
roposed Tax Levy P

ayable in 2018 to A
ctual Levy P

ayable in 2017

Actual Levy
P

roposed Levy
Fund

Levy C
ategory

P
ayable in 2017

P
ayable in 2018

$ C
hange

%
 C

hange

G
eneral Fund

Voter Approved R
eferendum

$2,232,563
$1,365,862

($866,702)
B

oard Approved R
eferendum

0
1,061,762

1,061,762
Local O

ptional Levy
2,381,259

2,589,311
208,052

E
quity

810,329
                 

859,309
                 

48,980
             

S
tudent Achievem

ent Levy
53,930

0
(53,930)

O
perating C

apital
413,130

382,890
(30,240)

Long Term
 Facilities M

aintenance
757,534

1,256,941
499,407

Instructional Lease Levy
1,197,461

1,225,400
27,940

S
afe S

chools
249,502

269,906
20,405

O
ther  

435,471
781,214

345,743
Levy Adjustm

ents and Abatem
ents

249,384
343,168

93,784
             

Total, G
eneral Fund

$8,780,564
$10,135,764

$1,355,201
15.4%

C
om

m
unity S

ervice Fund
B

asic C
om

m
unity E

ducation
$328,649

$331,465
$2,815

E
arly C

hildhood Fam
ily E

ducation
126,199

130,708
4,509

O
ther

15,412
15,420

8
Levy Adjustm

ents and Abatem
ents

(5,094)
712

5,806
Total, C

om
m

unity S
ervice Fund

$465,166
$478,304

$13,138
2.8%

D
ebt S

ervice Funds
Voter Approved D

ebt S
ervice

$7,214,703
$7,469,858

$255,155
O

ther P
ost E

m
ploym

ent B
enefits

1,572,900
              

1,534,313
              

(38,587)
            

R
eduction for D

ebt E
xcess

(371,663)
                

(768,581)
                

(396,918)
          

Levy Adjustm
ents and Abatem

ents
-

                         
47,949

                   
47,949

             
Total, D

ebt S
ervice Fund

$8,415,940
$8,283,539

($132,401)
-1.6%

T
otal Levy, All Funds

$17,661,670
$18,897,608

$1,235,938
7.0%

S
ubtotal by T

ruth in T
axation C

ategories:
Voter Approved Levies

$9,366,670
$8,433,673

($932,997)
O

ther Levies
$8,295,000

$10,463,935
$2,168,935

Total
$17,661,670

$18,897,608
$1,235,938

7.0%
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ExplanaPon of Levy Changes

Category: Voter approved operaPng referendum

, Board approved referendum
 levy 

and Local O
pPonal Revenue


Change: $403,113


U
se of Funds: G

eneral operaPng expenses


Reason for Increase:

• 

EsPm
ated increase of 567 pupil units


• 
N

o change in authorized levy per pupil
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O
PERATIN

G
 CAPITAL


Change: -$30,240


U
se of Funds: Technology, facility 

m
aintenance, other capital expenses


Reason for D
ecrease:


• 
Revenue neutral – off

set by increase in 
state aid


• 
D

ecrease w
ill in part off

set levy increase 
for long term

 m
aintenance


STU
D

EN
T ACH

IEVEM
EN

T


Change: -$53,930


U
se of Funds: G

eneral operaPng expenses


Reason for D
ecrease:


• 
Legislature phased out levy for 2018


• 
D

ecrease w
ill in part off

set levy increase 
for long term

 m
aintenance





ExplanaPon of Levy Changes
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ExplanaPon of Levy Changes

Category: G

eneral Fund – Long Term
 Facility M

aintenance (LTFM
)


Change: $499,400


U
se of Funds: D

eferred Facility M
aintenance


Reason for Increase:


• 
Replaces AlternaPve Facility Levy, H

ealth and Safety Levy, and D
eferred 

M
aintenance Levy


• 
Levy based on ten year m

aintenance program
 approved by district and M

D
E


• 
Levy is for “pay as you go” m

aintenance expenses 


• 
Allow

ance increased from
 $292 to $380 per pupil unit


• 
Increase off

set by reducPon in Student Achievem
ent and O

peraPng Capital levies
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ExplanaPon of Levy Changes

Category: G

eneral Fund – O
ther


Change: $105,259


U
se of Funds: G

eneral Fund O
peraPng Expenses


M
aterial Reasons for Increase:

• 

ConsolidaPon of changes in eleven levies

• 

Abatem
ent levy increased by $81,467


• 
TransiPon and safe schools levies increased as a result of increased 
enrollm

ent
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ExplanaPon of Levy Changes

Category: Adjustm

ents for Prior Years – G
eneral Fund


Change: $334,267


U
se of Funds: Various purposes


Reason for Increase

• 

Each year, iniPal levies are based on esPm
ates of enrollm

ent, values, and 
expenditures for future years


• 
In three subsequent years, esPm

ates are updated and levies are 
retroacPvely adjusted


• 
$325,739 of the current adjustm

ent is for update of a prior year levy for 
Long Term

 Facility M
aintenance
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ExplanaPon of Levy Changes

Category: D

ebt Service


Change: -$132,401


U
se of Funds: Annual required paym

ent of principal and interest on bonded debt


Reason for D
ecrease:


• 
A $306,845 reducPon in principal and interest based on the debt 
rePrem

ent schedule

• 

ReducPon in use of carryover fund balance by $157,914
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Factors Im
pacPng Individual Taxpayers 

School Taxes

M

any factors can cause the tax bill for an individual property to increase or 
decrease from

 year to year:


• 
Changes in value of the individual property


• 
Changes in the total value of all property in the district


• 
Increases or decreases in levy am

ounts caused by changes in state funding 
form

ulas, local needs and costs, voter-approved referendum
s, and other 

factors
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Four Year School Levy Com
parison 


The follow
ing are tables and graphs show

ing exam
ples of changes in the school district 

porPon of property taxes from
 2015 to 2018


Exam
ples include school district taxes only


All exam
ples are based on a 20.7%

 increase in property value over this period


• Actual changes in value m
ay be m

ore or less than this for any parcel of property


• Figures are intended to provide a fair representaPon of w
hat has happened to 

school district property taxes over this period for typical properPes
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Im
pact on Taxpayers


• 
Exam

ples are for property in the City of M
oorhead


• 
Figures for 2018 are prelim

inary esPm
ates, based on best available data – final 

figures could change slightly


• 
EsPm

ates prepared by Ehlers, district’s m
unicipal financial advisors
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M
o

o
rh

ead
 A

rea P
u

b
lic S

ch
o

o
ls

E
stim

ated C
hanges in S

chool P
roperty Taxes, 2015 to 2018

B
ased on 20.7%

 C
um

ulative C
hanges in P

roperty V
alue from

 2015 to 2018 Taxes

E
stim

ated
A

ctual
E

stim
ated

A
ctual

E
stim

ated
A

ctual
E

stim
ated

C
hange

C
hange

M
arket

Taxes
M

arket
Taxes

M
arket

Taxes
M

arket
Taxes

in Taxes
in Taxes

V
alue for

P
ayable

V
alue for

P
ayable

V
alue for

P
ayable

V
alue for

P
ayable

2015 to
2017 to

2015 Taxes
in 2015

2016 Taxes
in 2016

2017 Taxes
in 2017

2018 Taxes
Total

2018
2018

$82,836
$282

$89,878
$360

$96,618
$382

$100,000
$411

$129
$29

144,964
567

157,286
725

169,082
754

175,000
808

241
54

207,091
852

224,694
1,090

241,546
1,125

250,000
1,205

353
80

248,509
1,042

269,633
1,333

289,855
1,373

300,000
1,469

427
96

310,637
1,328

337,041
1,699

362,319
1,745

375,000
1,866

538
121

372,764
1,613

404,449
2,064

434,783
2,111

450,000
2,253

640
142

434,891
1,893

471,857
2,411

507,246
2,468

525,000
2,648

755
180

497,019
2,164

539,265
2,789

579,710
2,875

600,000
3,083

919
208

559,146
2,473

606,673
3,191

652,174
3,282

675,000
3,518

1,045
236

621,273
2,785

674,082
3,593

724,638
3,689

750,000
3,952

1,167
263

$82,836
$470

$89,878
$613

$96,618
$616

$100,000
$659

$189
$43

621,273
4,151

674,082
5,488

724,638
5,495

750,000
5,893

1,742
398

1,035,456
7,051

1,123,469
9,317

1,207,729
9,311

1,250,000
9,980

2,929
669

1,408,220
9,660

1,527,918
12,763

1,642,512
12,745

1,700,000
13,658

3,998
913

1,656,729
11,400

1,797,551
15,061

1,932,367
15,035

2,000,000
16,110

4,710
1,075

$2,485
$3.29

$2,696
$4.60

$2,899
$4.41

$3,000
$3.72

$0.43
-$0.69

5,799
7.68

6,291
10.73

6,763
10.29

7,000
8.68

1.00
-1.61

7,041
9.32

7,640
13.03

8,213
12.50

8,500
10.53

1.21
-1.97

8,284
10.97

8,988
15.33

9,662
14.70

10,000
12.40

1.43
-2.30

$2,485
$6.58

$2,696
$9.20

$2,899
$8.82

$3,000
$7.43

$0.85
-$1.39

5,799
15.35

6,291
21.46

6,763
20.59

7,000
17.36

2.01
-3.23

7,041
18.64

7,640
26.06

8,213
25.00

8,500
21.08

2.44
-3.92

8,284
21.93

8,988
30.66

9,662
29.41

10,000
24.79

2.86
-4.62

$103,546
$519

$112,347
$670

$120,773
$678

$125,000
$725

$206
$47

828,364
4,154

898,775
5,359

966,184
5,426

1,000,000
5,798

1,644
372

1,656,729
8,309

1,797,551
10,718

1,932,367
10,851

2,000,000
11,596

3,287
745

Tax R
ates

   Tax C
apacity R

ate
26.476

34.112
30.439

31.682
   R

eferendum
 M

arket V
alue R

ate
0.17058

0.16985
0.18107

0.18376

#G
eneral N

otes
1.  The figures in the table are based on school district taxes only, and do not include taxes for the city or tow

nship, county, state, or other taxing jurisdictions.
2.  E

stim
ates of taxes payable in 2018 are prelim

inary, based on the best data available as of the date above.
3.  For all exam

ples of properties, taxes are based on changes in taxable m
arket value of 8.5%

 from
 2015 to 2016 taxes, 7.5%

 from
 2016 to 2017, and 3.5%

 from
 2017 to 2018. 

For com
m

ercial-industrial property, figures above are for property in the C
ity of M

oorhead.  Taxes for com
m

ercial-industrial property in other m
unicipalities m

ay be slightly different, due to the im
pact of the 

Fiscal D
isparities P

rogram
.

( 2 or m
ore units)

of land and buildings)

A
partm

ents and

R
es. N

on-H
om

estead

(average value per acre

of land and buildings)

A
gricultural

N
on-hom

estead

(average value per acre

A
gricultural

H
om

estead

E
stim

ated

Type of P
roperty

R
esidential

H
om

estead

C
om

m
ercial/

  Industrial #
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M
oorhead A

rea Public Schools
E

stim
ated C

hanges in S
chool P

roperty T
axes, 2015 to 2018

B
ased

 o
n

 20.7%
 C

u
m

u
lative C

h
an

g
es in

 P
ro

p
erty V

alu
e fro

m
 2015 to

 2018 T
axes

*  For all four exam
ples of properties, the value show

n in the title of the chart is the estim
ated m

arket value for taxes payable in 2018.  Taxes are calculated based on changes in
    m

arket value of 8.5%
 from

 2015 to 2016 taxes, 7.5%
 from

 2016 to 2017, and 3.5%
 from

 2017 to 2018.

E
xam

ple 1:  $175,000* R
esidential H

om
estead P

roperty
E

xam
ple 2:  $300,000* R

esidential H
om

estead P
roperty

E
xam

ple 3:  $750,000* C
om

m
ercial-Industrial P

roperty
E

xam
ple 4:  $8,500* A

g H
om

estead (P
er A

cre) P
roperty

$567
$725

$754
$808

$0

$100
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$800
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$1,042
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Year Taxes are Payable
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$0 $2 $4 $6 $8

$10

$12
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School Property Taxes

Year Taxes are Payable
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$1,000
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$4,000
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$6,000
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School Property Taxes

Year Taxes are Payable
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M
innesota H

om
estead Credit Refund 

“Circuit Breaker”

• 

H
as existed since 1970s


• 
Available each year to ow

ners of hom
estead property                                    

(applies to taxes paid on house, garage and one acre for ag hom
estead property)


• 
Annual incom

e m
ust be approxim

ately $108,660 or less                               
(incom

e lim
it is higher if you have dependents)


• 
Sliding scale - refund based on incom

e and total property taxes


• 
M

axim
um

 refund for hom
eow

ners is $2,660


• 
Average refund w

as $847 for property tax in year 2015


• 
Also available to renters
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M
innesota Special Property Tax Refund


• 
Available each year to ow

ners of hom
estead properPes w

ith a gross tax 
increase of at least 12%

 and $100 over prior year


• 
H

elpful in first year aV
er referendum




• 
Refund is 60%

 of am
ount by w

hich tax increase exceeds greater of 12%
 or 

$100, up to a m
axim

um
 of $1,000


• 
N

o incom
e lim

its


• 
Com

plete state tax form
 M

-1PR (w
w

w
.revenue.state.m

n.us)
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Senior CiPzen Property Tax D
eferral


• 
Allow

s people age 65 and older w
ith household incom

e of $60,000 or less to 
defer a porPon of property taxes on their hom

e 


• 
Lim

its m
axim

um
 am

ount of property tax paid to 3%
 of household incom

e


• 
AddiPonal taxes are deferred, not forgiven


• 
Provides predictability; am

ount of tax you pay w
ill not change for as long as 

you parPcipate in the program



• 
D

eferred property taxes plus accrued interest m
ust be paid w

hen hom
e is sold 

or hom
eow

ner(s) dies
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M
ake M

oorhead H
om

e Property Tax Rebate Program



	 
2015 N

ew
 ConstrucPon Residences (198): Year 2 of 2-Year Exem

pPon 


	 
Property Addresses: 4429 Allyson Ct, 4438 Allyson Ct, 3024 7 Ave N

, 535 11 Ave N
, 543 11 Ave N

, 1211 22 Ave S, 3914 10 Ave S, 656 H
am

pton D
r E, 668 H

am
pton D

r E, 676 H
am

pton D
r E, 646 W

estm
inster D

r, 699 W
estm

inster D
r, 633 

W
estm

inster D
r, 4830 6 St S, 4831 Abby W

ay, 686 W
estm

inster D
r, 668 W

estm
inster D

r, 4872 W
estm

inster D
r, 4876 W

estm
inster D

r, 719 W
estm

inster D
r, 717 W

estm
inster D

r, 703 W
estm

inster D
r, 701 W

estm
inster D

r, 4869 W
estm

inster D
r, 4845 

W
estm

inster D
r, 1519 36 St S,141136StS,364822AveS,382622AveS,390022AveS,391222AveS,220438StS, 382522Ave S, 2208 39 St S, 1819 41 St S, 1909 41 St S, 1917 41 St S, 2005 41 St S, 2013 41 St S, 2025 41 St S, 2107 41 St S, 2115 41 St S, 

2203 41 St S, 2211 41 St S, 4123 23 Ave S, 4131 23 Ave S, 4139 23 Ave S, 1800 41 St S, 1818 41 St S, 1908 41 St S, 2028 41 St S, 2122 41 St S, 2221 42 St S, 2213 42 St S, 2119 42 St S, 2009 42 St S, 2008 42 St S, 2110 42 St S, 2214 42 St S, 2230 42 
St S, 2304 42 St S, 1585 Johnson D

r, 1529 36 Ave S, 1569 36 Ave S, 3657 16 St S, 1508 Johnson D
r, 1500 Johnson D

r, 3704 15 St S, 1503 35 Ave S, 1519 35 Ave S, 3550 16 St S, 3417 18 St S, 3413 18 St S, 3409 18 St S, 3405 18 St S, 3608 16 St S, 810 
35 St S, 1037 38 St S, 3931 13 St S, 3372 27 St S, 3370 27 St S, 3364 27 St S, 3362 27 St S, 3356 27 St S, 3354 27 St S, 3248 27 St S, 3246 27 St S, 3240 27 St S, 3238 27 St S, 3132 27 St S, 3130 27 St S, 3124 27 St S, 3122 27 St S, 3116 27 St S, 3114 
27 St S, 3108 27 St S, 3106 27 St S, 2738 31 Ave S, 2736 31 Ave S, 2630 31 Ave S, 2628 31 Ave S, 2622 31 Ave S, 2620 31 Ave S, 2614 31 Ave S, 2612 31 Ave S, 2606 31 Ave S, 2604 31 Ave S, 2542 31 Ave S, 2540 31 Ave S, 2534 31 Ave S, 2532 31 
Ave S, 2418 31 Ave S, 2416 31 Ave S, 2410 31 Ave S, 2408 31 Ave S, 3113 24 St S, 3102 26 St S, 3110 26 St S, 3118 26 St S, 3226 26 St S, 3234 26 St S, 3242 26 St S, 3558 26 St S, 3357 27 St S, 3349 27 St S, 3233 27 St S, 3117 27 St S, 3120 24 St S, 
3228 24 St S, 3352 24 St S, 3351 26 St S, 3243 26 St S, 3119 26 St S, 3111 26 St S, 3406 25 St S, 3438 23 St S, 3426 23 St, 3414 23 St S, 3405 25 St S, 4105 9 St S, 4106 9 St S, 4102 9 St S, 925 41 Ave S, 937 41 Ave S, 4103 10 St S, 912 41 Ave S, 4001 
10 St S, 4567 15 St S, 4575 15 St S, 4591 15 St S, 1525 46 Ave S, 1541 46 Ave S, 1549 46 Ave S, 1557 46 Ave S, 4582 16 St S, 4574 16 St S, 4584 15 St S, 1604 44 Ave S, 1612 44 Ave S, 1620 44 Ave S, 1628 44 Ave S, 4403 17 St S, 4405 17 St S, 4407 
17 St S, 4411 17 St S, 4404 17 St S, 4406 17 St S, 4408 17 St S, 4412 17 St S, 4420 17 St S, 201 9 St N

, 3041 41 Ave S, 4204 15 St S, 4214 15 St S, 4306 10 St S, 4312 10 St S, 1012 44 Ave S, 1018 44 Ave S, 1024 44 Ave S, 1030 44 Ave S, 1116 44 Ave 
S, 1220 44 Ave S, 1232 44 Ave S, 1238 44 Ave S, 4446 13 St S, 4440 13 St S, 4410 13 St S, 4404 13 St S, 546 Tessa D

r, 530 Tessa D
r, 3019 30 St S, 3001 32 Ave S, 3019 32 Ave S, 3139 32 Ave S, 3647 34 St S, 3705 34 St S, 3711 34 St S, 6610 1 St N

. 


	 
2015 Rem

odeled Residences (9): Year 2 of 2-Year Exem
pPon 


	 
Property Addresses: 4220 39 St S, 425 6 St S, 2150 38 St S, 2056 33 St S, 1802 32 St S, 310 37 Ave S, 1512 4 Ave S, 906 11 St S, 2201 11 St N

 


	 
2016 N

ew
 ConstrucPon Residences (142): Year 1 of 2-Year Exem

pPon 


	 
Property Addresses: 647 43 1/2 Ave S, 4430 Allyson Ct, 3036 7 Ave N

, 3233 4 Ave N
, 421 33 St N

, 512 11 Ave N
, 3831 41 Ave S, 3817 43 Ave S, 644 H

am
pton D

r E, 672 H
am

pton D
r, 671 H

am
pton D

r E, 679 H
am

pton D
r E, 623 Arlington Ave, 4879 

Abby W
ay, 4880 W

estm
inster D

r S, 4861 W
estm

inster D
r, 4853 W

estm
inster D

r, 4888 Abby W
ay, 3672 22 Ave S, 3665 22 Ave S, 3657 22 Ave S, 2321 38 St S, 2302 39 St S, 2216 39 St S, 4117 23 Ave S, 1810 41 St S, 2111 42 St S, 2016 42 St S, 2118 

42 St S, 4002 14 Ave S, 4006 14 Ave S, 4010 14 Ave S, 4102 14 Ave S, 4106 14 Ave S, 4114 14 Ave S, 4118 14 Ave S, 4126 14 Ave S, 4134 14 Ave S, 4204 14 Ave S, 4208 14 Ave S, 4216 14 Ave S, 4115 14 Ave S, 4131 14 Ave S, 4213 14 Ave S, 1603 
42 St S, 1907 42 St S, 1915 42 St S, 3745 16 St S, 3558 16 St S, 3565 17 St S, 3557 17 St S, 354917StS,354117StS,353317StS,345517StS,344717StS,343117St S,356417StS,342118 St S, 1829 53 Ave N

, 3104 24 St S, 3236 24 St S, 3244 24 St S, 3360 
24 St S, 3368 24 St S, 3376 24 St S, 3375 26 St S, 3367 26 St S, 3359 26 St S, 4423 15 St S, 4013 10 St S, 4005 10 St S, 1636 44 Ave S, 1644 44 Ave S, 1702 44 Ave S, 1710 44 Ave S, 1718 44 Ave S, 1726 44 Ave S, 4419 17 St S, 4427 17 St S, 4435 17 
St S, 4443 17 St S, 4428 17 St S, 4436 17 St S, 4444 17 St S, 3033 41 Ave S, 4414 10 St S, 1042 44 Ave S, 1202 44 Ave S, 1219 44 Ave S, 1213 44 Ave S, 1029 44 Ave S, 4428 13 St S, 1103 Lilac Ln, 4534 13 St S, 4546 13 St S, 4558 13 St S, 4516 12 St 
S, 4528 12 St S, 4532 12 St S, 4540 12 St S, 4544 12 St S, 4556 12 St S, 4561 13 St S, 4509 13 St S, 4545 13 St S, 4542 13 St S, 4538 13 St S, 4533 13 St S, 4521 13 St S, ,4523 12 St S, 4505 Blue Stem

 W
ay, 4523 Blue Stem

 W
ay, 4535 Blue Stem

 W
ay, 

4559 Blue Stem
 W

ay, 4571 Blue Stem
 W

ay, 1126 46 Ave S, 1108 46 Ave S, 1050 46 Ave S, 1032 46 Ave S, 1014 46 Ave S, 1008 46 Ave S, 1021 46 Ave S, 1103 46 Ave S, 1109 46 Ave S, 1115 46 Ave S, 1121 46 Ave S, 425 Tessa D
r, 426 Tessa D

r, 3121 
30 St S, 3118 32 Ave S, 3112 32 Ave S, 3034 38 Ave S, 3028 38 Ave S, 3022 38 Ave S, 3053 38 Ave S, 3047 38 Ave S, 3041 38 Ave S, 3726 34 St S, 3822 34 St S, 4873 6 St S, 4857 6 St S 


	 
2016 Rem

odeled Residences (23): Year 1 of 2-Year Exem
pPon 


	 
Property Addresses: 1620 4 St S, 1503 18 Ave S, 518 4 St S, 3819 41 Ave S, 4001 3 St S, 222 11 St S, 822 Rensvold Blvd, 1021 9 Ave S, 1503 36 St S, 3408 23 St S, 1411 46 Ave S, 1540 Johnson D

r, 1548 Johnson D
r, 1009 63 Ave N

, 4308 Rivershore 
D

r S, 4856 2 St SW
, 3720 40 St S, 1591 Johnson D

r, 3926 10 Ave S, 1722 7 St S, 617 33 St N
, 6507 1 St N

, 3106 Village G
reen D

r 
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N
ext Steps


• 
 Board w

ill accept public com
m

ents and quesPons on proposed levy


• 
 Board w

ill cerPfy the 2018 property tax levy
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Public Com
m

ents &
 Q

uesPons?
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Resolution Establishing Combined Polling Places 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.040R

 

School districts have authority to establish combined polling places for those elections in which no other

election is being held within the school district. Amendments to Minnesota Statutes Section 205A.11 require

school boards to annually designate, by resolution, combined polling places for stand-alone school district

elections held in the following calendar year. The locations of combined polling places have been limited to

those locations designated for use as a polling place by a county or municipality. When determining the

locations of one or more combined polling places throughout the school district, both geographical distribution

and population distribution must be considered.

 

Attached please find the Resolution Establishing Combined Polling Places for Multiple Precincts and

Designating Hours During Which the Polling Places Will Remain Open for Voting for School District

Elections Not Held on the Day of a Statewide Election.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the Resolution Establishing Combined Polling Places for Multiple Precincts and Designating Hours

During Which the Polling Places Will Remain Open for Voting for School District Elections Not Held on the Day of a Statewide Election as

presented.

 
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Resolution Cover Memo
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RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING COMBINED POLLING PLACES 
FOR MULTIPLE PRECINCTS AND 

DESIGNATING HOURS DURING WHICH THE POLLING 
PLACES WILL REMAIN OPEN FOR VOTING 

FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT ELECTIONS NOT HELD 
ON THE DAY OF A STATEWIDE ELECTION 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the School Board of Independent School District No. 152, State of 
Minnesota, as follows: 

 1. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 205A.11, the precincts and polling places for 
school district elections are those precincts or parts of precincts located within the boundaries of 
the school district which have been established by the cities or towns located in whole or in part 
within the school district. The board hereby confirms those precincts and polling places so 
established by those municipalities. 

 2. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 205A.11, the board may establish a combined 
polling place for several precincts for school district elections not held on the day of a statewide 
election. Each combined polling place must be a polling place that has been designated by a 
county or municipality. The following combined polling places are established to serve the 
precincts specified for all school district special and general elections not held on the same day 
as a statewide election: 

 COMBINED POLLING PLACE 1:  Clay County Courthouse 
807 11th Street North 
Moorhead, MN 56560 

This combined polling place serves all territory in Independent School District No. 
152 located in Moorhead City Ward 1 (Precincts 1 and 2), Georgetown City, Georgetown 
Township, Kragnes Township, Moland Township, Morken Township and Oakport Township; 
Clay County, Minnesota. 

COMBINED POLLING PLACE 2:  Grace United Methodist Church 
1120 17th Street South 
Moorhead, MN 56560 

This combined polling place serves all territory in Independent School District No. 
152 located in Moorhead City Ward 2 (Precincts 3, 4, 5a and 5b) and Glyndon Township; 
Clay County, Minnesota. 

COMBINED POLLING PLACE 3:  Valley Christian Church 
611 37th Avenue South 
Moorhead, MN 56560 
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This combined polling place serves all territory in Independent School District No. 
152 located in Moorhead City Ward 3 (Precincts 6a, 6b, 7 and 8), Holy Cross Township, 
Kurtz Township and Moorhead Township; Clay County, Minnesota. 

COMBINED POLLING PLACE 4:  Calvary Church at Village Green  
 2801 Village Green Boulevard 

Moorhead, MN 56560 

This combined polling place serves all territory in Independent School District No. 
152 located in Moorhead City Ward 4 (Precincts 9, 10, 11 and 12), Elmwood Township, 
Sabin City and Alliance Township; Clay County, Minnesota. 

 3. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 205A.09, the polling places will remain open 
for voting for school district elections not held on the same day as a statewide election between 
the hours of 7:00 o’clock a.m. and 8:00 o'clock p.m. 

 4. The clerk is directed to file a certified copy of this resolution with the county auditors 
of each of the counties in which the school district is located, in whole or in part, within thirty 
(30) days after its adoption. 

 5. As required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 204B.16, Subdivision 1a, the clerk is 
hereby authorized and directed to give written notice of new polling place locations to each 
affected household with at least one registered voter in the school district whose school 
district polling place location has been changed. The notice must be a nonforwardable notice 
mailed at least twenty-five (25) days before the date of the first election to which it will apply. A 
notice that is returned as undeliverable must be forwarded immediately to the appropriate county 
auditor, who shall change the registrant’s status to “challenged” in the statewide registration 
system. 
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Bill Tomhave, Chair

 DATE: 12/5/2017

RE: Superintendent Search Process 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo SB.18.054R

 

Dr. Lynne Kovash retired as superintendent of Moorhead Area Public Schools on November 30, 2017,
which will require the School Board to begin a search for a new superintendent of schools. Brandon
Lunak is currently serving as the interim superintendent through June 30, 2018, or at such time that a new
superintendent has been hired.
 
It is recommended that the School Board utilize the Minnesota School Boards Association (MSBA)
Executive Search Service to provide leadership and support in the superintendent search to begin January
2018. MSBA's Executive Search Service's mission and philosophy are:
 

MISSION: The mission of the MSBA Executive Search Service is to assist school boards in
recruiting and employing superintendents or other district-level administrators utilizing best
practices in keeping with MSBA’s mission to support, promote, and enhance the work of public
school boards and public education.
 
PHILOSOPHY: The MSBA Executive Search Service is grounded in its commitment to provide
a collaborative, highly professional, and efficient search process that supports school boards in
fulfilling one of their most important school board responsibilities — hiring a superintendent. The
MSBA Executive Search Service approaches the search process from a school board perspective,
and the school board maintains control of all search-related decisions. MSBA’s search consultants
partner with the school board and provide assistance to ease the onus of the search process from
start to finish — coordinating the search tasks, collecting information, etc.
 

MSBA has provided a proposal with an estimated professional fee not to exceed $10,000, which includes
the MSBA search consultant(s)’ time, travel and mileage. This proposal also includes MSBA’s in-district
superintendent search workshop. Additional costs may occur if the school district requires additional
advertising services, interviewee expenses, or site visits. The level of services and fee included in this
proposal are negotiable based on the School Board’s needs.

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve a proposal from the MSBA Executive Search Service to assist
in recruiting a superintendent for Moorhead Area Public Schools beginning January 2018 for an estimated
professional fee not to exceed $10,000.
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Moved by:
Seconded by:
Comments:
 

 
BKT:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Search Proposal Cover Memo
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Moorhead Area  
Public Schools
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Introduction
The most important decision a school board will probably ever make is to choose a  new  
superintendent. As the school district’s chief executive officer, the superintendent is responsible 
for providing leadership and implementing the school board’s policies and ensuring the school 
board’s priorities are met. Effective superintendents ensure that all students are learning at high 
levels. Ultimately, hiring the right superintendent — someone who possesses the skills and  
attributes needed to help achieve the school district’s vision and strategic priorities — requires 
time, thoughtful planning, and a sound recruitment and employment process and procedure. 

The Minnesota School Boards Association (MSBA) is pleased to present the School Board of  
Moorhead Area Public Schools with a proposal for executive search services (search). MSBA 
has been serving Minnesota school boards for more than 95 years, and, as a result, MSBA 
search consultants bring a strong school board perspective to the search. MSBA wants to help 
the School Board find and hire the best person for its superintendent.  
  
MSBA-led searches are based on one clear premise: the School Board is in charge of all  
decisions. With the assistance of other MSBA staff, the MSBA search consultant(s) will  
professionally handle the details of the search and guide the School Board  through the  
search process. The MSBA search consultant(s) will customize the search to meet the needs 
of the school district and community, allowing the School Board  to concentrate on the most 
important aspects of the search — interviewing the most qualified candidates and selecting the 
next superintendent.

1
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Planning, Hiring Criteria  
and Stakeholder Input

INITIAL PLANNING MEETING
An MSBA search begins with an initial planning meeting between the School Board and the 
MSBA search consultant(s). At the planning meeting, the MSBA search consultant(s) will 
work with the School Board to establish the best possible search timeline and procedures for 
conducting the search.

DETERMINING HIRING CRITERIA
The MSBA search consultant(s) will help the School Board determine the personal and  
professional skills and attributes it most desires in a superintendent, which, in turn, will  
provide the basis for the position leadership profile and hiring criteria. 

STAKEHOLDER INPUT
Five stakeholder involvement-related opportunities are included in the search package. The 
opportunities include:

    district staff members and/or community leaders,

in conjunction with the second round of interviews, and 

    
MSBA search consultant(s) will work with the School Board and its designee(s) to schedule and 
promote the stakeholder input sessions and will provide a brief summary of the key findings.

2
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ADVERTISE AND RECRUIT
MSBA will work with the School Board to develop a one-page brochure to advertise the  
position. 

In addition, the vacancy announcement will be posted on MSBA’s website and in MSBA’s 
The Leader newsletter; will be posted on the Minnesota Association of School Administrators’ 
website; and will be sent to Minnesota school districts and select college and university 
departments of education administration. The vacancy announcement will also be posted on 
St. Cloud State University’s EdPost website and on similar websites for universities in North 
Dakota and South Dakota. 

In addition, MSBA’s reach extends nationally to other states through the National Affiliation 
of Superintendent Searchers (NASS). The NASS is comprised of more than 60 superintendent 
search consultants representing 40 state school boards associations who assist search  
consultants in other states by providing access to nationwide job postings and vital reference 
and work-history verification concerning out-of-state applicants. Ultimately, when a school 
board hires MSBA to conduct its superintendent search, the school district taps into NASS — 
one of the most experienced, qualified networks of search consultants in the United States.

At the direction of the School Board, other advertising beyond the methods noted above may 
be utilized to promote the position and recruit applicants, in which case, the advertising fees 
must be approved by the School Board and be borne by the school district. 

MSBA search consultant(s) will directly contact superintendents and administrators to inform 
them of the vacancy and application procedures.

MSBA search consultant(s) will develop application procedures, handle all applicants’ calls 
and correspondences concerning the vacancy, collect applicants’ files, and develop a pool of 
applicants.

Advertising and Recruitment
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INTERVIEW TRAINING AND PREPARATION
Prior to the application deadline, the MSBA search consultant(s) will meet with the School 
Board to help it prepare for and conduct the first and second rounds of interviews, reference 
checks, and site visit(s). Interview training will include information which will help the 
School Board members conduct interviews in open sessions as required by state law and in a 
professional manner. This training may be conducted by the MSBA search consultant(s) from a 
remote location via Skype.

The MSBA search consultant(s) will also help the School Board develop interview  
questions that fit the leadership profile and hiring criteria, that do not violate the law, 
either directly or indirectly, and that standardize the interview process. The MSBA search 
consultant(s) will assist the School Board with planning second interview, reference check, 
and site visit(s) questions and help the School Board plan a site visit(s). The MSBA search 
consultant(s) will be on-site during the first and second rounds of interviews.

Because hiring the superintendent is the School Board’s role, MSBA recommends that only its 
members participate in the interviews. If the School Board decides to involve non-school board 
members in the interview process, MSBA search consultant(s) will help the School Board 
develop a process that makes clear the advisory nature of the non-school board members’ 
roles. MSBA search consultant(s) will also provide interview training for the non-school board 
members, review and approve the interview questions, and be on-site during the interviews. 
By following these recommendations, the School Board is able to standardize the interview 
questions and format, to provide more control over the selection decision, and to reduce the 
school district’s risk of liability. 

If desired, the School Board may decide to invite community and school district staff to 
participate in an MSBA search consultant(s) facilitated question-and-answer forum in 
conjunction with the second round of interviews. 

Interview Preparation
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SCREEN APPLICATIONS AND SELECT FINALISTS
After the application deadline has passed, the MSBA search consultant(s) and MSBA screener(s) will 
review the applicants’ files in relationship to the position leadership profile and the hiring criteria 
that were established by the School Board in order to identify the applicants who best meet the 
School Board’s hiring criteria. The MSBA search consultant(s) will then conduct preliminary  
verification of references and pre-interviews of the applicants who best meet the School Board’s  
hiring criteria.

Following MSBA’s review of the applications, a copy of all completed applications will be sent to the 
school district for the School Board members to review prior to the finalists’ determination meeting 
noted below, if requested.

Once the screening, preliminary verification of references, and pre-interviews have been conducted, 
the MSBA search consultant(s) will meet with the School Board to determine the finalists. 

The MSBA search consultant(s) will prepare a communication piece to send to the media, school 
district staff, and community including the names of the finalists who will be interviewed as well as 
the schedule of remaining search-related activities.

Screening, Interviews and References

5

DECISIONS, CONTRACT, AND ANNOUNCEMENT
The MSBA search consultant(s) will guide the School Board through the process of contacting 
the lone finalist to offer the position. The MSBA search consultant(s) will recommend the School 
Board use the MSBA/MASA Model Superintendent Contract as the basis for negotiating the 
superintendent’s contract. MSBA search consultant(s) will not negotiate the contract for the School 
Board. The MSBA search consultant(s) will draft a communication piece for the media, school 
district staff, and community introducing the new superintendent.

MSBA search consultant(s) will also personally contact the non-selected finalists.

FOLLOW-UP 
Once the search is concluded and the parties have a signed contract, the MSBA search consultant(s) 
will continue to provide support for the School Board and superintendent. 

To assist the School Board’s and superintendent’s working relationship and provide support 
to the new superintendent, the MSBA search consultant(s) will:

    School Board and superintendent after the new superintendent begins work in the school district. 

    employment. 

    transition and beyond via phone, email, in-district workshop, etc.

Contract and Follow-up
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The proposed search for the Moorhead Area Public Schools includes the services outlined below.

Search Service and Estimated Fee
MSBA search consultant(s):

Conduct an initial meeting with the School Board for purposes of developing the search timeline,
preliminary discussion of the hiring criteria, advertising venues, etc.*
Conduct community/school district staff online survey — created and summarized by MSBA     
Conduct community/school district staff activities — hold community/school district staff
listening sessions and conduct one-on-one interviews of school board members and school district
staff/community members over a three-day time frame as determined by the School Board*
Develop a 1-page (2-sided) vacancy announcement and post vacancy via various sources 
Handle applicants’ calls and correspondence and receive applicants’ credentials
Conduct a meeting with the School Board for purposes of interview training, developing interview
questions, and clarifying remaining steps of the search process* (MSBA search consultant(s) may
join the meeting from a remote location via Skype)
Screen the applicant pool against the School Board’s established hiring criteria 
Conduct preliminary verification of references and pre-interviews of applicants who best meet
the School Board’s hiring criteria as determined by MSBA’s screening team
Conduct a meeting with the School Board to present applicants so it can take action to select
“finalists” for interviews and finalize first round of interview questions*
Conduct a meeting with non-school board member committees for purposes of training and be
on-site during the interviews, if requested*
Be on-site during the first and second rounds of interviews*
Prepare a communication piece to send to the media, school district staff, and community including
the names of the finalists who will be interviewed
Assist with developing second round of interview, reference check, and site visit questions  
Facilitate a community/school district staff question-and-answer forum with finalists in conjunction
with the second round of interviews, if requested*
Prepare a communication piece to send to the media, school district staff, and community
introducing the new superintendent

employment*
*In-district meeting with School Board and/or community/school district staff groups. 

ESTIMATED FEE FOR SERVICE 
The estimated professional fee for this search proposal shall not exceed $10,000, which includes the 
MSBA search consultant(s)’ time, travel, and mileage. Additional fees the school district may incur 
above the professional fee include advertising beyond the venues noted on Page 3, expenses associated 
with finalists’ interviews, and School Board members’ site visits. This proposal also includes MSBA’s 
in-district superintendent search workshop. The level of services and fee included in this proposal are 
negotiable based on the School Board’s needs.
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SATISFACTION GUARANTEE
MSBA will conduct the superintendent search from a strong school board perspective and with 
impartiality and professionalism while focusing on the School Board’s identified hiring criteria. 
If, at any time within one year after the conclusion of the MSBA-led search, the School Board 
has released the superintendent and the hiring School Board members have not changed, 
MSBA will conduct a second superintendent search for no additional professional fee for 
services; however, the School Board will be responsible for expenses incurred by MSBA for the 
second search.

BENEFITS OF MSBA EXECUTIVE SEARCH SERVICES
The school board is in charge. MSBA search consultants focus on the School Board’s   

    critical role in performing a superintendent search.

MSBA is your organization. MSBA is a school board-oriented organization, committed
to working in partnership with the School Board to identify individuals who meet the
School Board’s hiring criteria. 

MSBA has knowledgeable staff. MSBA has more than 95 years of experience serving
Minnesota school boards and superintendents. MSBA’s staff is competent, experienced,
helpful, and dedicated to the principle of serving local school boards. 

MSBA staff work as a team. The School Board gets the entire MSBA staff and their
experience working for its benefit, not just a single search consultant.

MSBA has a national reach. MSBA staff bring extensive state and national contacts to
each search. 

MSBA has high standards. MSBA staff strive to maintain the highest personal,
professional, and ethical standards in all aspects of service delivery. 

MSBA provides on-going support. MSBA is committed to the long-term success of
school board and superintendent teams, and MSBA will continue to provide support
for member school boards and superintendents well after the search is over.

Choosing an MSBA-led Search
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■ Late December 2017 to Late January 2018

    the search, including develop a timeline, search procedures**

    staff forums for public input, if applicable**

■ Early January 2018 to Early March 2018

    staff forums for public input, if applicable**

    interviews of applicants

■ Early March 2018 

select finalists for interviews and conducts training of non-school board member
committees, if requested**

■  Mid-March 2018 to Mid-April 2018

    interviews, if requested**

    for interviews**

■ Mid-April 2018 to Late April 2018

■ July 1, 2018

* This timeline provides a starting point for considering and adopting a superintendent search 
timeline. 

Tentative Timeline*
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MSBA search consultants understand that selecting a superintendent is one of the Board’s 
most important duties and have a vested interest in the success of your search. Below are brief 
résumés of MSBA’s search team.

MSBA Search Team

■ SANDY GUNDLACH, Ed.S.
Sandy brings more than 25 years of experience working with school boards and 
superintendents, including being a local school board member (St. Peter School Board,  
1992-1999), a member of the MSBA Board of Directors (1995-1999), and a superintendent 
search consultant. Sandy is a member of the National Affiliation of Superintendent Searchers 
and has conducted 60 superintendent searches in Minnesota and Illinois. Sandy joined MSBA 
in 2005. Below is a summary of Sandy’s work history and relevant work experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE

Relationship, Mutual Expectations, School Board Self-Evaluations

o  Superintendent Evaluation
o  Area Negotiations 
o  Strategic Planning
o  Phase I: School Board Governance/Roles and Responsibilities
o  Various Other Topics

The Leader 

o  Targeting Student Learning
o  School Boards in a Democracy
o  Strategic Planning
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MSBA Search Team
■ AMY FULLENKAMP-TAYLOR, S.P.H.R., SHRM-SCP
Amy has more than 20 years of extensive experience in human resources including  
recruitment, retention, training, employee relations, benefit administration, and employment 
and labor law compliance, and she is a member of the National Affiliation of Superintendent 
Searchers. Amy joined MSBA in 2007. Below is a summary of Amy’s work history and relevant 
work experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE

o  Superintendent Evaluation
o  Teacher Development and Evaluation
o  Area Negotiations 
o  Strategic Planning
o  Phase II: Employment; Contracts; Termination and Public Employment Labor Relations 
    Act 
o  Various Other Topics

    agreements
The Leader 

    o  Americans with Disabilities Act
    o  Family and Medical Leave Act
    o  Harassment
    o  Violence

     employee relations, leaves of absence, and performance management
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MSBA Search Team
■ GARY LEE
Gary has 29 years of experience in private business — both in a large corporate setting and as 
an owner/president of small rural businesses. Gary is a former member of the Fertile-Beltrami 
School Board. Gary also served on the MSBA Board of Directors, the Northwest Service  
Cooperative Board of Directors, the Minnesota Service Cooperatives Board of Directors, the 
MSBA Insurance Trust Board of Directors, and the Big Three working group. Gary joined 
MSBA in 2009.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

Superintendent Relationship

o  Teacher Development and Evaluation
o  Area Negotiations 
o  Board Treasurers 
o  Strategic Planning
o  Various Other Financial and Data Trainings

The Leader 
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MSBA Search Team
■ JEFF OLSON, Ph.D.
Jeff has 40 years of experience in education including serving as superintendent (St. Peter  
Public Schools, 2003-2014) and high school principal (St. Peter High School, 1993-2003).  
Jeff has also served on the Board of Directors of the Minnesota Association of School  
Administrators (MASA) (President, 2010-2011) and the Minnesota State High School League 
(President, 2002-2003). In 2013, Jeff was named the Minnesota Superintendent of the Year by 
the MASA. Below is a summary of Jeff ’s work history and relevant work experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

o  Superintendent Search
o  Strategic Planning

12

■ STEVE NIKLAUS
Steve Niklaus brings 43 years of experience in education including serving as superintendent 
(Annandale Public Schools, 1992-2007) and principal (Annandale High School, 1986-1992, 
and Atwater-Grove City High Schools, 1980-1986). Steve has served on several state and 
regional professional boards and committees. Steve has worked in both Minnesota and 
North Dakota school districts. Below is a summary of Steve’s work history and relevant work 
experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 
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MSBA Search Team
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■ HAROLD REMME, Ed. S.
Harold has 45 years of experience in public schools in Minnesota  and Wisconsin. His 
classroom experience was as an elementary teacher in grades 4, 5, and 6. His administrative 
experience included Elementary Principal, Curriculum Director, and Superintendent. Harold 
has served on the Minnesota Association of School Administrators (MASA) Board of Directors 
and the MASA Foundation. He also was one of the founders of the Minnesota Rural Education 
Association, and he served as a Board of Directors member and one term as resident. Harold 
has also served on the Minnesota State High School League Region 2 AA Committee. 

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

    Service Cooperative Area
o  Superintendent Search
o  Strategic Planning
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MSBA Search Team
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■ RENAE TOSTENSON, Ed.S.
Renae has nearly 40 years of experience in education.  She has served as superintendent  
(Lac qui Parle Valley School District, 2011-2017), principal (Appleton Elementary School, 
2007-2011), and teacher coach (Lac qui Parle Valley Schools, 2005-2007). Below is a summary 
of Renae’s work history and relevant work experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

■ DAVE THOMPSON, Ed.D.
Dave has more than 40 years of experience in education including serving as superintendent 
(Stewartville Public Schools, 2000-2017), Director of Secondary Education and Middle School 
Principal (Farmington Public Schools, 1993-2000), High School Principal (Stewartville Public 
Schools, 1986-1993), High School Principal (Goodhue Public Schools, 1984-1986), Athletic 
Director, teacher and coach (Elgin-Millville Public Schools, 1977-1984). Dave has served 
on several local and regional organizational committees. Dave has served on the Minnesota 
Association of School Administrators Board of Directors, the MASSP Board of Directors and 
the Minnesota High School League Delegate Assembly. Dave has been a presenter at MASA 
and MSBA state conferences. Dave was selected as the National NAEOP Superintendent of the 
Year in 2011. Below is a summary of Dave’s work history and work experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

program.
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MSBA Search Team
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■ TERRY QUIST, Ph.D.
Terry has nearly 40 years of experience in education including serving as superintendent 
(Alexandria Public Schools, 2006-2012), assistant superintendent (Alexandria Public Schools, 
1999-2006), director of teaching and learning (Alexandria Public Schools, 1987-1999) and 
administrative assistant (Apple Valley High School, 1983-1987). Below is a summary of Terry’s 
work history and relevant work experience.

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

    elementary, a new high school and several building renovations and air quality upgrades.

SANDI NOVAK, Ed. S.
Sandi has 40 years of experience as a teacher, principal, curriculum director, assistant 
superintendent, acting superintendent, education consultant and author. Specifically, she 
served as the acting superintendent in Butterfield-Odin School District (February-June 2016), 
as assistant superintendent in the Burnsville-Eagan-Savage Schools (2004-2010), and has 
served on the Board of Minnesota ASCD. 

WORK HISTORY

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

independent reading in schools across the country
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MSBA Search Team Administrative Support
■ SUE MUNSTERMAN
Sue has more than 15 years of experience providing a full range of administrative support  
services. Sue joined MSBA in 2000.  

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE 

brochures, flyers, etc.

database, etc.

■ SUE HONETSCHLAGER
Sue has over 30 years of experience providing a full range of administrative support services. 
Sue joined MSBA in 1985.  

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE  

database, etc.
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■ Annandale Independent
School District

■ Atwater-Cosmos-Grove City
Public Schools

■ Blackduck Independent
School District

■ Brooklyn Center School District
■ Butterfield-Odin Public School
■ Canby Public School District 
■ College Prep Elementary

Charter School
■ Cook County Schools 
■ Grand Rapids Area Schools
■ Hermantown Community Schools
■ Hibbing Public Schools
■ La Crescent-Hokah Public Schools
■ Lac Qui Parle Valley Area Schools
■ Moose Lake Community Schools
■ Monticello Public School District

■ Morris Area Schools 
■ Nashwauk-Keewatin School District
■ Northland CommunitySchools
■ Odyssey AcademyCharter School
■ Pelican Rapids School District
■ Pillager School District
■ Pine River-Backus Schools 
■ Red Lake Public School District
■ St. Louis County

School District 
■ South Koochicing-Rainy River

School District
■ Tri-County Public Schools 
■ Ulen-Hitterdal Public

School District
■ Warroad Public Schools
■ Willmar Public Schools
■ Winona Area Public Schools
■ Wright Technical Center

■ Crookston Public Schools

Previous MSBA-Led Searches 
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 731 MAPS Electronic Network and Systems Responsible Use and Safety 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.041R

 

Attached please find the policy, MAPS Electronic Network and Systems Responsible Use and

Safety 731, and Administrative Procedures, Responsible Use of MAPS Electronic Network 731.1,

Notification of Network Use 731.2 and Use of Moorhead Area Public Schools Electronic Network

Violation Report 731.3, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, MAPS Electronic Network and Systems

Responsible Use and Safety 731, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

731 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 610 Online Learning Options 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.042R

 Attached please find the policy, Online Learning Options 610, and Administrative Procedure, Online

Learning Supplemental Notice of Student Registration 610.1, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Online Learning Options 610, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

610 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 640 MAPS Graduation Policy 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.043R

 Attached please find the policy, MAPS Graduation Policy 640, and Administrative Procedure, Middle

and High School Completion 640.1, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, MAPS Graduation Policy 640, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

640 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 102 State and Federal Law Prohibiting Discrimination 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.044R

 
Attached please find the policy, State and Federal Law Prohibiting Discrimination 102, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, State and Federal Law Prohibiting Discrimination

102, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

102 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 232 Health Insurance Committee 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.045R

 
Attached please find the policy, Health Insurance Committee 232, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Health Insurance Committee 232, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

232 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 303 Records Retention 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.046R

 
Attached please find the policy, Records Retention 303, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Records Retention 303, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
LAK:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

303 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 201 School Board Legal Status 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.047R

 
Attached please find the policy, School Board Legal Status, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, School Board Legal Status 201, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

201 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 216 Out-of-State Travel by Schoo Board Members 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.048R

 Attached please find the policy, Out of State Travel by School Board Members 216, and Administrative

Procedure, Payment to Employees for Travel Time 824.1, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Out-of-State Travel by School Board Members 216

, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

216 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 221 School Board Policy Development, Adoption, Implementation, and Review 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.049R

 Attached please find the policy, School Board Policy Development, Adoption, Implementation, and

Review 221, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, School Board Policy Development, Adoption,

Implementation, and Review 221, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

221 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 233 Policy Review Committee 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.050R

 
Attached please find the policy, Policy Review Committee 233, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Policy Review Committee 233, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

233 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 236 Activities Advisory Council 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.051R

 
Attached please find the policy, Activities Advisory Council 236, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Activities Advisory Council 236, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

236 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/4/2017

RE: Policy 239 Parent Organizations/Booster Clubs 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.052R

 
Attached please find the policy, Parent Organizations/Booster Clubs 239, and Administrative

Procedures, Moorhead Elementary Schools Parent Teacher Advisory Council (PTAC) Operating

Procedures 239.1 and Booster Club Procedures 239.2, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, Parent Organizations/ Booster Clubs

239, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
LAK:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

239 Cover Memo
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 TO: School Board

 FROM: Brandon M. Lunak, Interim Superintendent

 DATE: 12/6/2016

RE: Policy 301 School District Administration 

  Office of Superintendent

Memo S.18.053R

 
Attached please find the policy, School District Administration 301, for your review.

 

Suggested Resolution: Move to approve the policy, School District Administration 301, as presented.

 

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Comments:

 

 
BML:mde

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

301 Cover Memo
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